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To, financial year sugar trading was Nil). Profit  after interest 
The Members, and depreciation stood at Rs.  901 Lacs   as against the 

profit of Rs. 1279 Lacs in  preceding year.  Profit  after tax 
Your Directors have pleasure in placing the 42nd for the 18 months ended March 31, 2015 was Rs.749 
Director's Report along with the Audited Statement Lacs compared to profit of Rs. 1260 Lacs in  the 
of Accounts for 18 months ended on 31st March, preceding year.
2015. It is also pertinent to mention here that in                                     
terms of the requirement of section 2(41) of the Dividend
Companies Act, 2013, the Company aligned its Due to accumulated losses your directors have not 
financial year from April- March. Hence, accounts for recommended any dividend for the financial year  
the 18 months started on 1st October 2013 to 31st ended 31st March 2015.
March, 2015 are being placed. Further, subsequent 
financial years of the Company shall begin on 1st  Transfer to reserves:
April and end as on 31st March.                                                                                                          

Performance of Divisions:-
Financial Performance Sugar Division
The Financial performance of the Company during Crushing season till 31st March, 2015 consisted of two 
the year 18 months ended 31st March 2015 as under sugar seasons for 18 months for the Company.  The 
: company has crushed 183.48 Lacs qtls.  of cane and the 
(Rupees in Lacs) season ran for 263 days. Sugar sale was Rs.47441 lacs as 

against Rs.23249 lacs.  The other details are as under:

Overall Performance
For the period of  18 months ended on 31st March, 
2015,  sales stood at Rs. 55044.84 Lacs (net of excise 
duty) against the Rs. 27258.79  (net of excise duty) of 
previous financial  year 2012-13( 12months ended 
on 30-09-2013). During the financial year under Co-Generation:
review, the company had done trading of sugar for During the crushing season reported the company 
Rs. 1330.34 lacs whereas during the preceding  produced 16,44,42,230 KWH power and exported 

 For 18  
Months 

ended as at 
 31st

 March,2015

 (Rs.)

 

As at 
30th 

September,
2013
(Rs.)

Profit before interest,
depreciation & tax

 

3700

 

3504

Less: Interest

 
Depreciation

 

(1373)

 
(1426)

 

(1324)
(901)

Profit before tax

 

901

 

1279
Provision for taxation  (including 
FBT)

 

Provision for taxation  (deferred)

 

(103)

 

(49)

 

-
(19)

Net Profit before extraordinary 
Items

 

749

 

1260

Add: Extra ordinary item (0) (0)
Net Profit 749 1260

Earning Per Share of Rs 2/- each 0.81 1.37

 18 months 
ended  

31-03-2015  

      Season 
2012-2013 

(12 months) 
Gross Working days  263  142  
Total Cane Crushed (qtls.)  18348401  9156678 
White sugar Produced
(qtls)  

1708881  877655 

Average Recovery  9.32%  9.60% 
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9,82,95,057 KWH to UPPCL. Power sale was Rs.4668 Auditors
lacs as against Rs.2395 lacs. M/s. Mehrotra & Mehrotra, Chartered Accountants, 

New Delhi, Auditors of the Company retires at the 
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. 
They have furnished a certificate to the effect that their 
proposed reappointment, if made, will be in 
accordance within the limits specified u/s 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the existing Auditors can be 
re-appointed to hold office maximum up to the 
conclusion of 44th Annual general meeting of the 

Distillery Company, whereafter new Auditor shall be required to 
During the 18 months ended as at 31-03-2015, be appointed. Accordingly the Board propose for re-
Company Produced 167.48 Lacs BL of Rectified Spirit appointment of existing Auditors to hold office up to 
with a recovery of 21.12%  which is better  in the conclusion of 44th Annual General Meeting for 
comparison of preceding year production of 85.96 audit of financial statements for year ending at 31st 
Lacs BL. with a recovery of 20.41% during preceding March, 2017, subject to ratification their continuance 
Financial Year 2012-2013 ( twelve months). Sale of by shareholders at annual general meeting.     
RS and Country liquor were Rs.6475 lacs as against Auditors' Report
Rs.2587 lacs The comments on the statement of account referred to 

in the report of the auditors are self-explanatory, and 
explained in the appropriate notes to the accounts.
Secretarial Auditors
M/s Amit Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries were appointed as secretarial auditors of 
the Company for the year 2013-15 as required under 
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
made thereunder. The secretarial audit report for FY 
2013-15 forms part of the Annual Report (Annexure to 
the Directors' Report in Form MR. 3) and carries no 
qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or 

Reference to BIFR Under Section 15 and Other disclaimers and hence no explanations are required.
Applicable provisions  of  the Chapter III of  the  Sick   The Board has further appointed M/s Amit Gupta & 
Industrial  Companies    ( Special Provisos ) Act  , Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as 
1985 secretarial auditor of the Company for the financial year 
As mentioned in the last report that due to erosion of 2015-16. 
the Net worth of the Company, the reference was Cost Auditors 
registered with the Board for Industrial and Financial The Central Government approved the appointment of 
Reconstruction (BIFR) in terms of the provisions of M/s. Aman Malviya & Company, Cost Auditor, Lucknow 
the Sick Industrial Companies ( Special Provisions) as Cost Auditors for conducting Cost Audit for Sugar and 
Act , 1985 on 28-02-2013 on the basis of audited Industrial Alcohol businesses for the 18 months ended 
accounts for the year ended 30th September,2012. 31st March 2015, report of which shall be submitted in 
The reference made with BIFR is still pending. due course of time The Board has approved their 
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appointment for the year 2015-16 and their Listing Agreement
remuneration is subject to approval by the Company in The equity shares of the company are listed with the 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock 
Directors Exchange Limited and listing fees for 2015-16 had 
At the ensuing Annual General Meeting Shri L.K. been duly paid.
Jhunjhunwala and Shri Adiya Jhunjhunwala, Directors Directors' Responsibility Statement
of your Company, retire by rotation u/s 152 of the In pursuance of sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and being  eligible had  offered Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Directors' 
themselves for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual Responsibility Statement, the Board of Directors 
General Meeting. confirms:
Ms. Shruti Modi who was appointed as an Additional (i)   that in the preparation of the annual accounts 
Director of the Company by passing a resolution by for the 18 months ended on March 31, 2015  
circulation on 30-03-2015, resigned on 28-05-2015. the applicable accounting standard have been 
Further, Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala, Chairman-cum- followed by the Company.
Director, Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala, Managing Director, (ii)  that the directors of the company have 
Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala, Jt. Managing Director and selected such accounting policies, applied 
Shri S.C. Agarwal, Executive Director were appointed at them consistently, made judgments and 
the Annual General Meeting held on 19-03-2012 for a estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 
period of three years  w.e.f. 1st March,2013 to 28th as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
February,2015 and their term expire thereafter. After affairs of the Company at the end of the 
having been recommended by the Nomination & financial year and of the profit  of the Company 
Remuneration Committee of the Company, the Board for the year ended on that date.
recommended their appointment in the Board (iii)  that the directors of the Company have taken 
meeting held on 14-02-2015 for a period of 5 ( five ) proper and sufficient care for the maintenance 
years w.e.f. 1st March,2015 to 29th February,2020. of adequate accounting  in accordance with 
Mrs. Madhu Mathur were  appointed as Independent provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
Directors of the Company by the Board in their safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
meetings held on 28-05-2015 and  Mr. H.P. Singhania, detecting fraud and other irregularities; and
Mr. S.K. Gupta, Dr. Kirti Singh and Mr. R.S. Shukla were  (iv) that the directors of the Company have 
appointed as Independent Directors of the Company prepared the annual accounts on a going 
by the Board in their meetings held on 11-08-2015 concern basis.
respectively, subject to approval of the shareholders at (v) that  the directors, had laid down internal 
general meeting.  In terms of Section 149, 150 and 152 financial controls to be followed by the 
read with Schedule IV and any other applicable company and that such internal financial 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules controls are adequate and were operating 
made thereunder and Clause 49 of the Listing effectively.
Agreement, the approval of the shareholders is sought (vi) that the directors had devised proper systems 
for their appointment as Independent Directors for a to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
term of five consecutive years from the original date of applicable laws   and that such systems were 
appointment. The Board considers that their adequate and operating effectively.
continued association would be of immense benefit to 
the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail Significant and material orders
their services. There are no significant and material orders passed 
Public Deposits by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
During the financial year ended 31-03-2015 for the going concern status and the Company's operations 
period 18 of months, the company has not accepted in future. 
any public deposits.



Audit committee and vigil mechanism ? Reviewing and approving the Company's Risk 
Pursuant to requirement of section 177(1) of Management Policy so that it is consistent with 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the the Company's objectives; and
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, ? Ensuring that all the risks that the Company faces 
2014 and Clause 49 of Listing Agreement, your such as strategic, operational, financial, 
Company has already formed the Audit Committee, compliance and other risks are identified and 
composition of which is covered under Corporate assessed and there is an adequate risk 
Governance report section of this Annual Report. management infrastructure in place capable of 
The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also addressing those risks. 
incorporates a Whistle Blower Policy in terms of the The Risk Management Policy was reviewed and 
Listing Agreement, includes appointment of a approved by the Committee. The policy on Risk 
Whistle Officer who will look into the matter, Management will be uploaded very soon on the 
conduct detailed investigation and take appropriate C o m p a n y ' s  w e b s i t e  a t  t h e  l i n k :  
disciplinary action. Protected disclosures can be http://www.kmsugar.com
made by a whistle blower through an e-mail, or The objective of the Company's risk management 
dedicated telephone line or a letter to the Whistle process is to support a structured and consistent 
Blower Officer or to the Chairman of the Audit approach to identify, prioritize, manage, monitor and 
Committee. The Policy on vigil mechanism and report on the principal risks and uncertainties that can 
whistle blower policy will be uploaded very soon on impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. 
t h e  C o m p a n y ' s  w e b s i t e  a t  t h e  l i n k :   The Company has introduced several initiatives for risk 
http://www.kmsugar.com. During the year under management including the introduction of audit 
review, no employee was denied access to Whistle functions and processes to identify and create 
Blower Officer or Audit Committee. awareness of risks, optimal risk mitigation and efficient 
Extract of annual return management of internal control and assurance 
Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed activities.
herewith in form no. MGT-9  as Annexure 7 to this 
Report.  Corporate social responsibility
Internal financial controls The Company strongly believes in concept of 
The Company has in place adequate internal sustainable development and is committed to operate 
financial controls with reference to financial and grow its operations in a socially and 
statements. During the year, such controls were environmentally responsible way. Our vision is to 
tested and no reportable material weakness  in the expand our operations whilst reducing the 
design or operation were observed. environmental impact of our operations and increasing 
Risk management the positive social impact on our community. 
The Company aims to have a formalised and As per the Companies Act, 2013, all companies with a 
systematic approach for managing risks across the net worth of Rs. 100 crore or more, or turnover of Rs. 
Company. It encourages knowledge and experience 1,000 crore or more or a net profit of Rs. 5 crore or more 
sharing in order to increase transparency on the key during any financial year are required to constitute a 
risks to the Company to the extent possible. This Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee of the 
approach increases risk awareness, and ensures Board of Directors comprising of three or more 
proper management of risks as part of the daily directors, at least one of whom should be an 
management activities. independent director and such company shall spend at 
During the year, the Company has constituted a Risk least 2% of the average net profits of the company's 
Management Committee which has been entrusted immediately preceding three financial years on CSR 
with the responsibility to assist the Board in: activities. The provision regarding CSR were not 

D
ire

c
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt ...



applicable on the Company during the period under of the Company during the year.
report. Subsidiary Company
The Company has duly constituted a Corporate Your  Company has a subsidiary a company viz. M/s. 
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee pursuant to K.M. Energy Private Limited, incorporated on 01-12-
the requirement of Section 135(1) of Companies Act, 2014 for setting up of Solar Power Project. There was 
2013 and the Rules made thereunder. no operational activities during the period under 

review. However, this company has loss Rs.6.77 lacs for 
Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption the year ended 31-03-2015. Further, your Company 
and Foreign Exchange and Outgo had given a loan of Rs.285.00 lacs to it at interest 
Information relating to conservation of energy, @10%.  In terms of proviso to section 139(3) of the 
technology absorption and foreign exchange Companies Act,2013, the salient features of the 
earnings and outgo as required under Section financial statements of the subsidiary is set out in the 
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule prescribed form (AOC-1) under Rule-5 of the 
8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 as Annex.5 The 
Annx-1. consolidated financial statements presented by the 
Research and Development Company include financial information of its subsidiary 
The details relating to Research and Development prepared in compliance with applicable Accounting 
activities carried out by the company during the year Standards.  
are stated in annexure to this report. The Company will make available the annual report of 
Particulars of Employees subsidiary Company upon request by any shareholder 
The disclosure as required under the provisions of of the Company interested in obtaining the same. 
Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read Pursuant to the provisions of section 136 of the Act, the 
with Rule 5(2) of The Companies (Appointment and financial statements of the Company, consolidated 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 financial statements along with relevant documents 
in respect of the employees of the Company has and separate audited accounts in respect of subsidiary, 
been given in 'Annexure 2' and forms part of this are available on the website of the Company.
Report. Number of meetings of the Board 
Corporate Governance The Board met  six  times during the financial year, the 
As stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a details of which are given in the Corporate Governance 
separate section on Corporate Governance forming Report that forms part of this Annual Report. The 
part of the Directors' Report and Management intervening gap between any two meetings was within 
Discussion & Analysis Report and the certificate from the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Practicing Company Secretary confirming the the Listing Agreement.
compliance of the conditions on Corporate Policy on directors' appointment and remuneration
Governance are included in the Annual Report. The Company seeks to maintain an appropriate mix of 
The  Report on Corporate Governance is attached as executive and independent directors in order to 
Annexure-3 to this report. A certificate from M/s. maintain the independence of the Board and segregate 
Amit Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries the functions of governance and management. As at 
regarding compliance of  conditions of Corporate year end, the Board consists of 10 members, four of 
Governance as stipulated under 49 of the Listing whom are Whole-time directors, five are Independent 
Agreement is also annexed to this report.  directors and one is a Nominee director. The Company 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report has five independent directors and all are qualified 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on personnel with requisite qualifications, experience, 
the business and operations of the company is positive attributes and satisfy all the criteria as set out 
attached to this report as 'Annexure-4'. under Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013. These 
Industrial Relation appointees are only eligible for sitting fees for 
The industrial relations have been cordial at all plants attending Board meetings and Committee meetings 
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and other out of pocket expenses duly made for directors was evaluated.
attending meetings of the Board or any committee of Committees of the board
the Board thereof. Remuneration proposed for Currently, the Board has 4 nos of committees. A 
whole time directors is in accordance withj the detailed note on the Board and its committees is 
Remuneration Policy approved by Nomination and provided in the Corporate Governance Report section 
Remuneration Committee of the Board. of this Annual Report. The composition of the 
Your Company, in compliance with section 178(1) of committees and compliances, as per applicable 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies provisions of the Act and Rules, are as follows:
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, has 
duly constituted a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. This committee is chaired by an 
independent director and formulates the criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a director and other matters.
Appointment and the remuneration of Board 
members, key managerial personnel or one level 
below the Board level is fixed on the basis of the 
recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee made to the Board, which 
may ratify them, with or without modifications.
Disclosures pursuant to the requirements of section 
197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 have been made in Annexure 
2 of this Board Report.
Declaration by independent directors
As per the requirement of section 149(7), the 
Company has received a declaration from every 
Independent Director that he or she meets the 
criteria of independence as laid down under section 
149(6) read with rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rule, 
2014 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
Board evaluation
Pursuant to the requirement of the Companies Act, 
2013, a formal annual evaluation needs to be made 
by the Board of its own performance and that of its 
committees and individual directors. The Act states 
that the performance evaluation of the independent 
directors shall be done by the entire Board of 
Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.
The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a 
whole was conducted based on the criteria and Particulars of Loans, Guarantee or Investments
framework adopted by the Board as explained under As per the requirement of section 186(4) of Companies 
the Corporate Governance section of this Annual Act, 2013, particulars of loans given, investments 
Report.  In a separate meeting of independent made, guarantees given or securities provided along 
Directors, performance of non-independent with the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or 

Name of the 

committee 

Composition 

of the 

committee 

Highlights of duties, 

responsibilities and activities 

Audit 
committee

 
 
 

•
 

All recommendations made by 

Nomination 
and 
remuneration 
committee

 

 

•

 

The Committee oversees and 
administers executive 
compensation.

 

•

 

All recommendations made by 
the committee during the year 
were accepted by the Board. 

 Stakeholders 
relationship 
committee

 

 

•

 

The Committee reviews and 
ensures redressal of investor 
grievances.

 

•

 

The committee noted that no 
grievances of the investors 
have been reported during the 
year. 

 

Corporate 
social 
responsibility 
committee

 

 

•

 

The Board as laid down the 
Company’s policy on 
Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR).

 

• The CSR policy will be 
uploaded very soonon 
Company website, 
www.kmsugar.com
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are provided in the standalone financial statements. of Energy
The Company is in compliance with the limits as Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
prescribed under Section 186 of Companies Act, Foreign Exchange and Outgo
2013 read with rule 11 of the Companies (Meeting of Form A
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation 
Particulars of contracts or arrangements with of Energy
Related Party Annexure 'A'
The Company's policy on related party transactions Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
may be accessed on the Company's website at  Foreign Exchange outgo 
http://www.kmsugar.com.. Particulars of contracts 
or  arrangements with Related Parties referred in 
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is 
furnished in accordance with Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given Not to 
Accounts no.2.29-(12-D) also  in Form AOC-2 as 
Annexure-6.
Material changes and commitments affecting 
financial position between the end of the financial 
year and date of report 
No material changes and commitments have 
occurred after the close of the year till the date of 
this Report, which affect the financial position of the * Excluding captive generation of plant turbines
Company. Form B
Acknowledgement I. Disclosure  of particulars with respect to 
Yo u rs  D i re c t o rs  p l a c e  o n  re c o rd  t h e i r  Technology Absorption Research &  Development 
acknowledgement and sincere appreciation of all (R&D)
the bankers and financial institutions for their 
continued assistance. They further appreciate and 
acknowledge with gratitude the co-operation and 
assistance received from all executives, staff and 
workmen of the Company.

                                                                                                                   
For and on behalf of the Board

of  K. M. Sugar Mills Ltd.

 Sd/-
L. K. Jhunjhunwala

Chairman

Date: 11.08.2015
Place: Lucknow

Annexure to the Directors Report
Annexure 1

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange and Outgo

1. 
 

 
Specific areas in which R & D 
carried out by the Company

 
1-Co-gen Area –Power load sharing 
system device provided 15MW,10MW 
& gird

 

2-Boiling House
 

-Modular pan 
provided to increased capacity of 
KCP Pan for “B/C” Boiling

 

3-Hot wa ter cooling tower -  Jet 
spray cooling tower provided for 
excess hot water for cooling.  

4 Mill Area -   Grease lubrication 
system provided in Mill house in place 
of oil lubrication ..  

2. Benefits derived as results of 
the above R & D 

1-Co-gen Area-Turbine stoppages as 
well as cane crushing stoppages 
reduced during grid failure/
fluctuation.  

2-Boiling house –  After providing 
modular pan at KCP capacity of pan 
increased.  

3-Hot water cooling tower  –  After 
providing jet spray cooling tower 
excess hot water cooled  down 80 °c 
to 32° c & re used the same water in 
boiling house, Resulting reduced bore 
well  water and effluent water.  
4- Mill Area –  After providing grease 
lubrication system lubricants quantity 
0.25kg/100 qtls of cane reduced 
against last year & oil in effluent water 
reduced.  

 

Particulars Units 18 months Previous 

Electricity
   (i) Purchased Unit (in

 
lacs)

 
Kwh

   
2.78

   
2.07

 Total Amount (in lacs)

 

Rs.

 

26.06

 

22.96

 (ii) Own generation

   Through Diesel Generator

   
  

-

 

Unit (in lacs)

 

Kwh

   

0.02

 

-

 

 

-

 

Unit per litre of diesel oil

 

3.28

 

-

 
   

-

 

Cost per uni t

 

Rs.

 

15.85

 

-

 
Through steam turbine *

   
 

-

 

Unit (in lacs)

 

Kwh

 

1515.27

 

806.32

 
- Unit per MT of fuel ( Bagasse) 376.76 391.09
- Cost per unit Rs. 4.22 1.78
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Annexure 2
Information pursuant to section 217(2A) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies 
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 and forming 
part of the Director's Report for the year ended 
September 30, 2013.

A. Employed throughout the financial year and 
were in receipt of remuneration in aggregate of not 
less than Rs. 60,00,000 per annum.

I. Technology absorption, adaptation and 
innovation:
I. Efforts made : The steps taken and efforts B. Employed for part of the financial year and were 
made in the earlier years towards technology in receipt of monthly Remuneration of not less than 
absorption, adaption and innovations in respect of Rs. 5, 00,000.
latest technology were kept continued during the 
year under review. Modernized technology, 
automation adopted were adopted. So many kaizen 
done. Guniting done in Juice clarifier 
Benefits  : The benefits were derived in the form of  For and on behalf of the Board
cost reduction and improvement in the quality of of  K. M. Sugar Mills Ltd.
products, capacity of plant and working improved. 
Further improvement  continuously be available to  Sd/-
the Company. L. K. Jhunjhunwala
Particulars of technologies imported during the last Chairman
5 years :   Date: 11.08.2015
a- Mills primary steam driven movers (Turbine) Place: Lucknow
replaced by DC Drive electric motors with complete Annexure 3
automation & DCS. Report on Corporate Governance
b-   Variable frequency drives .  Corporate Governance introduced by SEBI through 
C- Direct contact heaters & plate type heat Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock 
exchangers. Exchanges and amended from time to time is complied 

in all respects by the Company. The policies, 
Foreign Exchange earnings & Outgo procedures and processes of the Company are at all 

times directed in furtherance of following the best 
practices and institutionalizing the code of corporate 
governance. 

This Report is furnished in terms of Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement. Auditors' certificate on Corporate 
Governance as prescribed is also attached. Further, this 
Report also discloses relevant information in terms of 
Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and forms 
an integral part of the Board's Report to shareholders.

3. Further plan of action 1-Mill House Area -   
a- Cane kicker on Auxiliary cane 
carrier.                                                                               
b- Bagasse Moisture device on Zero  
     Mill  and  last  Mill                 .                              
C-  Rope drum coupling on last mill in 
place  
     of  muff coupling                       .                              
d- Modification at 50TPH Boiler 
Bagasse feeder.  

4. Expenditure on R & D 
i) Capital

 
ii)  

Recurring Expenditure
 

iii) Total
 

iv)
 

Total R & D expenditure 
as a percentage of total 
turnover 

 

 
Rs.90.00 lacs   (Approx.)

 
Rs. 10.00 lacs

 
(Approx.)

 
Rs.100.00 lacs (Approx.)

 
0.18%

 

 

i) Activities relating to The Company made

ii)
 

Development of new Efforts are being made to 

iii)

 

Total foreign exc hange 113.94

 

iv)

 

Used  (Rs. Lacs)

 

49.75

 

 

Sl Name Age Designation qualification experience Date of Remuneration Previous 

NIL

Sl Name Age Designation qualification experience Date of Remuneration Previous 

NIL



Corporate Governance is an integral part of values, Management of the Company and the same will be 
ethics and the best business practices followed by uploaded very soon on the website of the Company 
the Company. The core values of the Company are: (www.kmsugar.com). All the Board Members and 

Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
1. COMPANY 'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF compliance with the Code. 
GOVERNANCE: The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of 

Executive and Independent Directors to maintain the 
? Transparency in policies and action. independence of the Board of the Company. As at 18 

months ended on 31st March, 2015, the board consists ? Maximizing long term shareholders' value 
of ten directors; out of which four are executive ?  Socially valued enterprise and
directors and five are non- executive directors and one ? Commitment to excellence and customer 
Nominee Director. Executive directors consist of satisfaction
Chairman, Managing Director, Joint Managing Director ? Independence to develop and maintain a 
and Executive Director. The present mix of the Board of healthy work culture.
the Company is as under:? Growth for stakeholders.
? Three  Promoters, Executive Directors? Caring for people and environment.
? One Independent, Executive Director? Accountability for performance.
? Five  Independent, Non- Executive Directors

? One Non-Independent & Non-Executive DirectorIn a nutshell, the philosophy can be described as 
? One Nominee, Non-Executive Directorobserving of business practices with the ultimate 
During the year 18 months ended on 31st March, 2015 , aim of enhancing long-term shareholders' value and 
six Board meetings were held on 28.11.2013, commitment to high standard of business ethics. 
08.02.2014, 12.05.2014 ,11.08.2014, 14.11.2014 and 
14.02.2015. As at 18 months ended on 31st March, The Company has in place a Code of Corporate Ethics 
2015, the composition of the Board of Directors, the and Conduct reiterating its commitment to  maintain 
number of other board of directors or Board the highest standards in its interface with 
committees of which they are member or chairperson stakeholders and clearly laying down the core values 
and the attendance of  each director at these board and corporate ethics to be practiced by its entire 
meetings and the last Annual General Meeting are as management cadre.
under:

Your company , since its inception , being always 
guided by ethical principles and being transparent 
and fair in its business dealings  and administration , 
have adequate system of control and check in place 
to ensure that the executive decisions should result 
in optimum growth and development. 

2.  Board of Directors

The Board periodically reviews Compliance Reports 
of all laws applicable to the Company and has put in 
place procedure to review steps to be taken by the 
Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if 
any.
Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, the Board has laid down a Code of 
Conduct for all Board members and Senior 

Name of Director

 

Category

 

No. of
other 
director

 

ships 
(Public 
Limited 
Company)

 

No. of 
Board

 

Meeting

 

attends

 

Attendance 
at last

 

AGM

 

1-Sh. L. K. Jhunjhunwala

 
 

Promoter,

 

Executive

 

-

 

5

 

No

 

2-Sh.Aditya Jhunjhunwala

 
 

Promoter,

 

Executive

 

2

 

2

 

No

 

3-Sh.Sanjay Jhunjhunwala

 
 

Promoter,

 

Executive

 

2

 

6

 

Yes

 

4-Sh. S. C.

 

Agarwal

 
 

Independent,

 

Executive

 

-

 

2

 

No

 

5-Sh.

 

H. P. Singhania

 
 

Independent,

 

Non-executive

 

1

 

5

 

No

 

6. Dr. Kirti Singh

 

Independent,

 

Non-executive

 
-

 

2

 

No

 

7. Sh. R. S. Shukla

 

Independent,

 

Non-executive

 
-

 

6

 

No

 

8. Sh. S. K. Gupta

 

Independent,

 

Non-executive

 -

 

5

 

Yes

 

‘9. Shri P.N. Mathur

 
Nominee -Non-
Executive

-

 
6

 
No

 

’10 Ms. Shruti Mo di
 

**
 

Non-
Independent 
Non-Executive 

-
 

0
 

No
 

 

’11. Mrs. Madhu Mathur* Independent –
Non-Executive  

- 0 No 
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'** Appointed on 28-03-2015 and  resigned on 28- encouraged to plan their functions well in advance, 
05-2015. * Appointed on 28-05-2015 particularly with regard to matters requiring 

discussions/approval/ decisions in the Board and 
ii) Independent Directors Committee Meetings. All such matters are 
a) The Chairman is Executive and falls under communicated to the Secretary in advance by the 

P ro m o te r  cate go r y.  T h e  n u m b e r  o f  Departments /Divisions. Secretary segregates the 
Independent Directors is one-half of the total matters that can be discussed and decided internally 
strength. Any reduction in the strength of and the matters, which need to be put up before the 
Independent Directors is filled within 3 months board, in consultation with the Chairman, Managing 
or the next Board meeting, whichever is later, Director and Joint Managing Director.
for ensuring minimum stipulated strength of 
Independent Directors in the Board. The information as per Annexure I to clause 49 of the 

b) Independent directors are appointed for a listing agreement is regularly made available to the 
tenure of 5 years taking into account the members of the Board.
transitory provisions u/s 149(11) of the Act. 
They would be eligible for one more term on The members of the Board are informed at every 
passing of a special resolution by members. No meeting about the overall performance of the 
independent director of the Company serves in company during the quarter, which enable the Board to 
more than 7 listed companies as Independent discharge their duties and responsibilities more 
Director. efficiently. Apart from the matters statutorily requiring 

c)  Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, board's approval, all other major decision including 
the Company has formulated a familiarization policy formulation, capital expenditure budgets, new 
programme for Independent Directors with the investments, compliance with statutory / regulatory 
objective of making them familiar with their requirements are also considered by the Board.
role, rights & responsibilities, nature of the 
industry, business model and compliance The Minutes of the Board Meeting are circulated to all 
management. the members of the board in advance and are 

d) All the Independent Directors have given the confirmed at subsequent Board Meeting.
declarations pursuant to Section 149(7) of the 
Act affirming that they meet the criteria of Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the 
independence as provided in sub section (6). ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Board Procedure In respect of Directors seeking appointment or re-
The Board Meeting of the Company held at least appointment, the Notice for the Annual General 
once in each quarter in order to review the quarterly Meeting contains all the relevant information, like brief 
performance and the financial results. The resume of the Directors, nature of their expertise in 
intimation of the Board Meeting is given to the specific functional areas and name of the companies in 
members of the Board at least seven clear days which they hold Directorship and Membership of any 
before the date of the Board Meeting in writing  by Committee of the Board. 
mail / postal service / courier and over the phone as During the financial year for 18 months Six Board 
well as the agenda of the meeting and the relevant meetings were held. The details are as follows:-
notes are sent to each director in advance and only in 
exceptional circumstances it is tabled at the meeting. 
All the items of agenda are accompanied with 
detailed notes providing information on the related 
subject. 

All divisions/departments in the Company are 

Date of Board 
Meeting 

Board 
Strength 

Directors 
Present 

28.11.2013 9 7 

08.02.2014
 

9
 

5
 

12.05.2014
 

9
 

7
 

11.08.2014
 

9
 

7
 

14.11.2014
 

9
 

6
 

14.02.2015
 

9
 

7
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1. Board Committees Recommends the appointment and removal of 
Earlier, there were three committees, the Audit external auditor, fixing audit fees and also approval for 
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and payment for any other services.
Investor Grievance Committee. On the enactment of 
new Companies Act,2014, the Committee of Reviews the quarterly, half yearly annual financial 
Corporate Social Responsibility was constituted and statements with the management before submission 
the name of Shareholders' Grievance Committee to the Board.
was changed to Stakeholders' Relationship Reviews the external and internal auditors, and 
Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company adequacy of internal control system with the 
acts as the Secretary to all the Committees. management.
The quorum for the meetings is either two or one-
third of the members of the committees, whichever Reviews the adequacy of internal audit function 
is higher. including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official 
Audit Committee heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
The Audit Committee comprises of four directors out and frequency of internal audit.
of which three are Non-Executive Independent 
Directors and one is Promoter and Executive Reviews the findings of any internal investigation by the 
Director. Mr. H. P. Singhania acts as the chairman to Internal Auditors into matters where there is suspected 
the Committee.  The Company Secretary acts as the fraud.
Secretary of the committee.  The Chief Financial 
Officer, the External and Internal Auditors are the Discussion with External Auditors before the 
regular invitees. The Composition of the   Audit commencement of Audit about the nature and scope 
Committee meets the requirement of the Clause 49 of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any 
and the provisions of the Companies Act 2013. area of concern.

The Composition of the Audit Committee:- Review of company's financial risk management 
policies also to look into the reasons for substantial 
defaults in payments to depositors, shareholders and 
creditors.

Meetings and Attendance:-
During the year  six meetings of the company were held 
on 28.11.2013, 08.02.2014, 12.05.2014 ,11.08.2014, 
14.11.2014 and 14.02.2015

Terms of Reference and Powers:
All the members of the Committee have sound 
knowledge of finance and accounts. The terms of 
reference and powers of the audit committee covers 
areas mentioned under clause 49 of the listing 
agreement and section 177 of the Companies act, Remuneration Committee
2013 (hereinafter referred as “the act”). The Remuneration Committee comprises of three 
The Committee observes the Company's financial directors, and all the three directors are non executive 
reporting process and disclosure of its financial independent directors. Mr. H. P. Singhania acts as the 
information to ensure that the financial statements chairman of the committee. During the year 6 meetings 
are correct, sufficient and credible. of the Committee were held on 28.11.2013, 

Sl 
no. 

Name of the Member  Position Category 

1 Mr. H. P. Singhania  Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

2 Mr. R. S. Shukla  Member Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

3 Mr. Sanjay Jhunjhunwala  Member Promoter  
Executive Director  

4 Mr. S. K. Gupta  Member Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

 

Sl 
no.  

Name of the Member  Position  Number 
of 
meetings 
held  

Number 
of 
Meetings 
Attended  

1  Mr. H. P. Singhania  Chairman  6  5  

2  Mr. R. S. Shukla  Member  6  6  

3  Mr. Sanjay Jhun jhunwala  Member  6  6  

4  Mr. S.K. Gupta  Member  6  5  
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08.02.2014, 12.05.2014 ,11.08.2014, 14.11.2014 Besides, it monitors implementation and compliance 
and 14.02.2015. The details are as follows : of the Company's Code of Conduct for Prohibition of 

Insider Trading in pursuance of SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. 

During the financial year for 18 months Six Board of the 
Committee were held on 28.11.2013, 08.02.2014, 
12.05.2014 ,11.08.2014, 14.11.2014 and 14.02.2015. 

Remuneration Policy The details are as follows:
The remuneration as applicable to executive/non-
executive directors provides for the following:

Non-Executive Directors
The remuneration to the non-executive directors is 
decided and approved by the Board of Directors of 
the Company unanimously. The sitting fees paid to 
the non- executive directors is    Rs. 5000/- for each Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
Board meeting and Rs.2000/- for each meeting of Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the 
any Board Committee attended by them. Companies Act,2013, the Companies having minimum 

threshold limit of net worth, turnover or net profit as 
Executive Directors prescribed have to carry out the corporate social 
The executive directors are paid remuneration as responsibility. Since the company does not meet any 
decided and recommended by the remuneration one of these criterion, it remains outside the purview 
committee to the Board of Directors. The of Sec.135 and consequently the reporting 
remuneration package for the Chairman, Managing requirements thereunder do not at present apply to us. 
Director, Jt. Managing Director & Executive Directors The company, however, as a responsible corporate 
is subject to the limit prescribed under the citizen has constituted a CSR Committee on 12-05-2014 
Companies Act, 2013. and formulated a CSR policy, which will pursue the 
The remuneration paid to the directors during the 18 objects as mentioned u/s 135 in schedule VII. The 
months ending on 31st March,2015 is  given in form Committee  comprises of three directors out of which 
no. MGT-9 as  Annexure -7. two executive and  one  non- executive Independent 

Directors.
Stake Holders' Relationship Committee 
The name of shareholders' Grievance Committee During the financial year for 18 months, four 
was changed to Stake Holders' Relationship Committee meetings  were held on 12.05.2014 
Committee and comprises of four directors out of ,11.08.2014, 14.11.2014 and 14.02.2015. The details 
which one executive and three non- executive are as follows:
Independent Directors.

The Stake Holders' Relationship Committee looks 
after the cordial investor relations and oversees the 
mechanism for redressing of shareholders and 
investors complaints like non-receipt of Annual 
Report, non-receipt of declared dividend warrants 
and transfer of shares. Share transfers/transmissions Circular Resolution
are approved by the Share Transfer Committee and The Company passes resolution by  circulation in 
are placed at the Board Meeting from time to time. exceptional and emergent cases which are recorded at 

Sl 
no. 

Name of the Member  Position Number 
of 
meetings 
held 

Number 
of 
meetings 
attended 

1. Mr. H. P. Singhania  Chairman 6 5 

2. Mr. R. S. Shukla Member  6 6 
3. Mr. S. K. Gupta Member  6 5 

Sl 
no.  

Name of the Member  Position  Number 
of 
meetings 
held  

Number 
of 
meetings 
attended  

1  Mr. H. P. Singhania  Chairman  6  5  

2  Mr. R. S. Shukla  Member  6  6  

3  Mr. S. K. Gupta  Member  6  5  

4  Mr. Aditya Jhujhunwala  Member  6  2  

Sl 
no.  

Name of the Member  Position  Number 
of 
meetings 
held  

Number 
of 
meetings 
attended  

1  Mr. L.K. Jhunjhunwala  Chairman  4  4  

2  Mr. Sanjay Jhunjhunwala  Member  4  4  

3  Mr. S. K. Gupta  Member  4  3  
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the succeeding Board / Committee Meetings. During having potential conflict with the interest of the 
the year, two  circular resolutions were passed. Company at large. Adequate disclosure has been made 
General Body Meeting as per Accounting Standard 18 in Note no. 2.29 (12)(d) 
Day, date, time and venue of the Annual General of the Financial Statements.  
Meeting
Day & Date:    19th September, 2015 b) Disclosure of accounting treatment
Time: 11.00 AM The financial statements are prepared under the 
Venue: 11- Moti Bhawan, Collector Ganj, historical cost convention and have been prepared in 

 Kanpur-208001 accordance with the applicable mandatory accounting 
Dates of Book Closure: standards prescribed by The Institute of Chartered 
From 14th September to 19th September, 2015, Accountants of India and relevant presentational 
both days inclusive requirements of the Act.
The details of the last three Annual General 
Meetings are as follows :- c) Business risk evaluation and management is an 

ongoing process within the Company, which is 
periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors for 
determining its effectiveness. 

d) There have been no instances of non-compliance, 
penalties, structures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any 
matter related to capital markets during the last three 
years. 

Extra ordinary General Meeting
'* The Company had an Extra Ordinary General Whistle Blower Policy 
Meeting  on 23-12-2013 and approved the payment In pursuit to maintain the highest ethical standards in 
of remuneration to Mr. L K Jhunjhunwala, Mr. Aditya the course of its business, the Company has put in place 
Jhunjhunwala, Mr. Sanjay Jhunjhunwala and Mr. S C a mechanism for reporting of instances of conduct 
Agarwal,  w.e.f. 01.04.2013 within limits set out in which is not in conformity witg its Code. The Company 
section 198 & 309 of the Companies Act, 1956. It has has formulated a Whistle Blower policy wherein the 
also  authorized the Board to change the employees are free to report violations of law, rules, 
remuneration of aforesaid managerial personnel's regulations, unethical conduct, misuse of authority, 
from time to time within the statutory limits set out financial irregularities etc. by way of e-mail directly to 
by the Companies Act, 1956 (including any statutory the Chairman of Stakeholder Relationship Committee. 
modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time The whistle blowers may also have direct access to the 
being in force). Chairman of Audit Committee. 

The Whistle blower policy aims at: 
Postal Ballot ? Encouraging the directors and employees to feel 
No resolution was passed through postal ballot confident in raising serious concerns.
during the year under review. ? Providing ways for the directors and employees to 

raise their concerns and get feedback on the 
Disclosures concerns raised by them.  
a) Related Party Transaction ? Ensuring that the directors and / or employees get 
There were transactions with related parties i.e. a response to their concerns.
promoters, directors, management, subsidiaries or ? Reassuring the directors and / or employees that if 
relatives etc. which were not  of material nature, not  the concerns are raised in good faith,

Financial Year  Day & Date Location Time 
2010-2011  19.03.2012 Kahana continental 

Coco cola Crossing 
Kanpur  

11.00 AM  

2011 -2012 22.03.2013 Kahana continental 
Coco cola Crossing 
Kanpur  

11.00 AM  

2012-2013 22.03.2014 Regd. Office- 11 -Moti 
Bhavan, Collector
Ganj, Kanpur-208001 

11.00 AM 



? they will be protected from victimisation.  well as the employees in the senior Management of 
the Company, The Managing Director has confirmed Initiating action, where necessary, to set right 
and declared that all the Members of the Board as well the concern raised.
of the employees in the senior Management have ? Ensuring that the Policy is not abused.
affirmed Compliance with the Code of Conduct

The Directors and Management personnel maintain 
Communicationconfidentially of such reporting and ensure that the 
The quarterly and annual results of the Company are whistle blowers are not subjected to any 
published in prominent newspapers viz. The Financial discrimination.
Express and Rashtriya Sahara. The results are sent to No employee was denied access to the Audit 
stock exchanges, immediately after approval of the Committee.
b o a r d .  T h e  C o m p a n y  h a s  i t s  w e b s i t e  
w w w. k m s u g a r. c o m ,  w h i c h  p r o v i d e s  t h e  Compliance
Comprehensive details of the operations of the The Board has complied with all the Compliance 
Company. The management discussion and analysis related to Clause 49 of Listing Agreement
report forms a part of the annual report.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Norms
Green initiatives in Corporate GovernanceThe Company has complied with Mandatory 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs have taken a Green requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance 
Initiative in Corporate Governance by allowing as Stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing 
paperless Compliance by the Companies after Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. The Company 
considering the relevant sections of the Information has submitted its Compliance Report in the 
and Technology Act, 2000, for legal validity of prescribed format to the Stock Exchange for the 
Compliance under the Companies Act, through quarters ended 28.11.2013, 08.02.2014, 12.05.2014 
Electronic Mode.,11.08.2014, 14.11.2014 and 14.02.2015. The 

Statutory Auditors have certified that the company 
In terms of the provisions of the Companies act, 2013 has complied with the Corporate Governance norms 
and rules made thereunder various notices/ as stipulated by the Stock Exchanges under Clause 49 
documents (including notice calling Annual General of the Listing agreement. The said certificate is send 
Meeting, Audited Financial Statements, Directors' to the Considered Stock Exchange where Company is 
Report, Auditors' Report, etc) are being sent to the listed.
shareholders through electronic mode to the 
registered e-mail addresses of the shareholders.Reconciliation of the Share Capital Audit
The Company has not issued any Press Release or As Stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of 
made any presentation to the investors or analysts India (SEBI), a qualified Company Secretary carries 
about its financial results during the yearout the  Reconciliation  of the Share Capital Audit to 

reconcile the total admitted Capital with National 
Listing on Stock ExchangesSecurities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 

Depository Services (India) Ltd (CDSL) and the total 
Issued and Listed Capital . The Audit is carried out 
every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to 
the Stock Exchanges, NSDL and CDSL and is also 
placed before the Board of Directors.

Listing fees up-to the financial year ended 31-03-2015 Code of Conduct
has been paid to all the concerned stock exchanges by The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of 
the Company.conduct for the Members of the Board members as 

Equity Shares  Equity Shares  
Bombay Stock Exchange Lim ited, 25th  
Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai -400001   
Tel: 91 -22-22728527/ 8307  

Fax:91-22-22721072  

Website: www.bseindia.com

National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited, Exchange Plaza,  C-1, Block 
-  ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex,  
Bandra(E),  Mumbai-400051  

Tel: 91 -22-26598100  

Fax: 91-22-26598237/38  
Website: www.nseindia
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Depositories: Shareholding Pattern as at 31st March ,2015

Stock Market Data

1. National Securities
Depository Ltd., 
Trade Worlds, 4th  floor,  
Kamala mills Compound,  
Senapati Bapat Marg,  
Lower Parel, Mumbai –  400013 

2. Central Depository
Services (India) Ltd.,  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  
17th  floor, Mumbai 400023  
 

Compliance officer
Mr. Rajeev Kumar, 
Company Secretary, 
76-Eldeco Green, 
Gomti Nagar, Lucknow-226010  
is  Compliance Officer of 
the Company. 

Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent  
Link Intime (India) Pvt. 
Limited,  
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills 
Compound,  
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup West,  
Mumbai-400078

 
 

 

Quotation at BSE

 

Quotation at NSE

 Month

 

High

 

Low

 

Closing

 

High

 

Low

 

Closing

 
October, 13

 

1.37
 

0.99
 

1.30
 

1.40
 

1.25
 

1.30
 

November, 13
 

1.37
 

1.13
 

1.13
 

1.40
 

1.25
 

1.25
 

December,13
 

1.29
 

1.00
 

1.23
 

1.30
 

1.00
 

1.00
 

January, 14
 

1.51
 

1..05
 

1.06
 

1.25
 

0.90
 

1.00
 

February, 14
 

1.21
 

0.96
 

1.12
 

1.20
 

0.95
 

1.10
 

March, 14
 

1.43
 

0.99
 

1.10
 

1.40
 

1.00
 

1.20
 

April ,14
 

1.68
 

1.12
 

1.50
 

1.60
 

1.20
 

1.50
 

May,14
 

2.78
 

1.33
 

2.78
 

2.75
 

1.45
 

2.75
 

June, 14
 

7.54
 

2.90
 

7.51
 

6.70
 

2.85
 

6.70
 

July, 14
 

8.15
 

3.47
 

4.88
 

7.35
 

3.50
 

4.70
 

August, 14
 

5.37
 

3.75
 

3.82
 

5.10
 

3.80
 

3.80
 

September, 14 5.19 3.46 3.78 5.10 3.45 3.65 

October, 14 3.88 3.06 3.11 3.90 3.05 3.10 

November, 14 5.04 3.00 4.43 4.90 3.00 4.35 

December,14 4.64 3.29 3.63 4.55 3.25 3.65 

January, 15 4.83 3.41 4.01 4.60 3.40 4.10 

February, 15 4.15 2.80 3.06 4.25 2.60 3.05 

March, 15 3.45 1.83 2.10 3.35 1.85 2.10 

Category of 
Shareholder 

No. of 
Share 

holders 

Total No. 
of 

Shares 

Total No. of 
Shares held in 
Dematerialized 

Form 

Total 
Shareholding 

as a % of 
Total No. of 

Shares
 

(A) Shareholding of 
Promoter and Promoter 
Group

     

(1) Indian
         
Individuals / Hindu   
Undivided Family

 

17

 
45581189

 
45581189

 
49.54

 

Bodies Corporate

 

5

 

15679315

 

15679315

 

17.04

 Sub Total

 

22

 

61260504

 

61260504

 

66.58

 (2) Foreign

         Total shareholding of 
Promoter and Promoter 
Group (A)

 

22

 

61260504

 

61260504

 

66.58

 
(B) Public Shareholding

         (1) Institutions

      
Central Government / 
State Government(s )

 

1

 

1140

 

1140

 

0

 Sub Total

 

1

 

1140

 

1140

 

0

 
(2) Non-Institutions

         
Bodies Corporate

 

167

 

4954678

 

4954673

 

5.39

 

Individuals

         

Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital up to Rs. 1 lakh

 

9590

 

16009504

 

16008479

 

17.40

 
Individual shareho lders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs. 
1 lakh

41

 

8830928

 

8830928

 

9.60

 Any Others (Specify)

 

142

 

943416

 

943416

 

1.03

 

Non Resident Indians

 

88

 

521083

 

521083

 

0.57

 

Clearing Members

 

54

 

422333

 

422333

 

0.46

 

Sub Total

 

9940

 

30738526

 

30737496

 

33.42

 

To tal Public 
shareholding (B)

 

9941

 

30739666

 

30738636

 

33.42

 

Total (A)+(B)

 

9963

 

92000170

 

919999140

 

100

 

(C) Shares held by 
Custodians and against 
which Depository 
Receipts have been 
issued

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 (1) Promoter and 
Promoter Group

0 0 0 0

(2) Public 0 0 0 0

Sub Total 0 0 0 0

Total (A)+(B)+(C) 9963 92000170 91999140 100
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them.
SEBI in January 2015 has notified a new set of 
Regulations, namely, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 that has come into force from 15th 
May 2015. In terms of these Regulations, the Board in 
March 2015 in supersession of the earlier code 
formulated the:
i) Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair disclosure 

of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information; and
ii) Minimum Standards for Code of Conduct to 

Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders.
Notes: These shall be  uploaded in the Company's website very 
Demat of Shares shortly and Stock Exchanges be  advised of same.
The trading of the Company's equity shares falls The trading window shall remain closed during the period 
under the category of compulsory delivery in when designated persons in terms of the Regulations can 
dematerialized mode and are available for trading reasonably be expected to have possession of 
on both the depository system of India, National unpublished price sensitive information.  In any event, 
Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository the trading window shall remain closed between the 
Services (India) Ltd. twentieth trading day prior to the last day of any financial 

period for which results are required to be announced by 
Share Transfer System the Company and the second trading day after the 
A valid share transfers are normally affected within disclosure of such financial results.
maximum of 30 days from the date of receipt. The Company Secretary is designated as the compliance 

officer for this purpose. The Audit Committee monitors 
Distribution of Shareholding the adherence to various requirements as set out in the 

Code.

Related  Party Transactions
The Board has formulated a Policy on Related Party 
Transactions (RPTs). It has also fixed the materiality 
threshold under this policy at 10% of its turnover as per 
the last audited financial statements. Transactions with a 
related party individually or taken together in a financial 
year crossing this 10% threshold would be considered 
material. 

Plant Location All RPTs during 18 months ended 31-03-2015 were on an 
Unit : Sugar, Cogeneration, Distillery, District arms-length basis and were in the ordinary course of 
Faizabad, Uttar Pradesh. business. They have been disclosed in deference to 
Insider Trading Accounting Standard 18 in Note 39 of the financial 
The Company had framed a Code of Conduct for statements. 
prevention of insider trading based on SEBI None of these transactions are likely to have a conflict 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. with the Company's interest.
This code was applicable to all directors and All RPTs have the approval of Audit Committee. Prior 
designated employees. It is hereby affirmed that all omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for 
directors and designated employees have the transactions that are non material and repetitive in 
complied with this code during FY 2014-15 and a nature.
confirmation to this effect has been obtained from The Company has Related Party Transactions  on a 

Category  No.of 
Share  

Holders  

% of 
Total  

Shares  % of 
Total  

1-5000
 

9,263
 

92.974
 

9,247,644
 

10.052
 5,001-10,000

 
363

 
3.643

 
2,822,451

 
3.068

 10,001-20,000
 

55
 
0.552

 
1,347,241

 
1.464

 20,001-

   
30,000

 
172

 
1.726

 
2,572,224

 
2.796

 30,001-

   

40,000

 

18

 

0.181

 

631,225

 

0.686

 40,001-

   

50,000

 

17

 

0.171

 

762,631

 

0.829

 
50,001-

 

1,00,000

 

28

 

0.281

 

2,021,143

 

2.197

 
1,00,001 & Above

 

47

 

0.472

 

72,595,611

 

78.908

 
TOTAL

 

9,963

 

100.000

 

92,000,170

 

100.000
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continuing basis with promoters and other Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to 
companies in which they are Directors at arm redress complaints received on sexual harassment. All 
length and within specified limit u/s 188. These employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 
transactions have the approval of Audit Committee trainees) are covered under this policy. No complaint on 
and Board obtained in respective meetings and not sexual harassment was received during  the period under 
need shareholders' approval. review.
None of the directors has any pecuniary 
relationships or transactions other than the Other Compliances 
remuneration duly disclosed vis-à-vis the i) Management Discussion and Analysis
Company. Management Discussion and Analysis Report is made in 

conformity with Clause 49(VIII)(D) of the Listing 
Risk Management Agreement and is attached to the Board's Report forming 
The Company has a robust risk management part of the Annual Report of the Company.
framework to identify and evaluate business risks ii) Quarterly Financial Results
and opportunities. It seeks to create transparency, Pursuant to Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement, Quarterly 
minimize adverse impact on the business objective Financial Results are approved by the Board on the 
and enhance the Company's competitive recommendations of the Audit Committee.
advantage. It aims at ensuring that the executive These are communicated to Stock Exchanges by email 
management controls the risk through means of a and courier after the conclusion of the Board Meeting 
properly defined framework. and published in leading dailies, as required, within the 
The Company has laid down appropriate stipulated time. These are also immediately posted on 
procedures to inform the Board about the risk the Company's website.
assessment and minimization procedures. The (iii) Quarterly Compliance Report
Board periodically revisits and reviews the overall The Company has submitted the Compliance Report on 
risk management plan for making desired changes Corporate Governance to Stock Exchanges in the 
in response to the dynamics of the business. prescribed format within 15 days for six quarters during 
Key areas of risks identified and mitigation plans 1st Oct.,2013 to 31st March,15 from the close of each 
are covered in the Management Discussion and quarter.
Analysis Report. The Company is not currently (iv) Online filing
required to constitute a Risk Management NEAPS - Quarterly reports to National Stock Exchange are 
Committee. filed through NSE Electronic Application Processing 

System (NEAPS) in addition to filing hard copy of such 
Whistle Blower Policy reports.
In deference to Section 177 (9) of the Act read with SCORES -SEBI requires all listed Companies to process 
relevant Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of investor complaints in a centralized web based complaint 
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Clause 49 of system called 'SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES). 
the Listing Agreement, the Company has All complaints received from shareholders of listed 
established a vigil mechanism overseen by the Companies are posted in this system. Listed Companies 
Audit Committee. This will  be  uploaded in the are advised to view the complaint and submit Action 
Company's website very shortly. No complaint Taken Report (ATR) with supporting documents in 
under this facility was received during  the period SCORES. 
under review. During the year, there were no complaints on our 

Company posted at SCORES site.
Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy (v) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual The Company submits quarterly  Reconciliation of Share 
Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of Capital Audit to Stock Exchanges on reconciliation of the 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace total admitted capital with NSDL / CDSL and the total 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. issued & listed capital submitted for quarter ended 
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31-12-2013, 31-03-2015,30.06.2014, 30.09.2014, The Board in its Report has confirmed that the annual 
31.12.2014 31.03.2015 on 18-01-2014, 11-04-2014, accounts for 18 months ended 31st March 2015 have 
14.07.2014, 17.10.2014, 16.01.2015 and 20.04.2015 been prepared as per applicable accounting standards 
respectively. and policies and that sufficient care has been taken for 
(vi) Accounting treatment maintaining adequate accounting records.
In the preparation of financial statements, no (xi) Peer Review of Auditors
accounting treatment different from that prescribed Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement stipulates that 
in any Accounting Standard, has been followed. limited review / audit reports shall be given only by an 
(vii) Cost Audit Auditor who has subjected himself to the peer review 
Pursuant to Section 148 read with the Companies process and holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company Review Board of the ICAI. The statutory auditors of the 
has appointed M/s. Aman Malviya & Associates, Cost Company M/s. Mehrotra & Mehrotra, Chartered 
Accountants , Lucknow to undertake cost audit of the Accountant, New Delhi have undergone the peer 
Company for 18 months ended as at 31-03-2015. review process and been issued requisite certificate 
Their remuneration was approved by the Board. The that were placed before the Audit Committee.
due date for filing of Cost Audit Report  for period  is Compliance with non-mandatory requirements
30.09.2015. (a) Board - Chairman's office is separated from CEO. 
- Audit Qualification in Report --- Nil The Chairman is Executive and maintains an office at 
(viii) Secretarial Standards & Secretarial Audit - the Company's expense.
Pursuant to Section 118 (10) of the Act, every (b) Shareholders' Rights
Company shall observe Secretarial Standards with Audited Results on the Company's financial 
respect to General and Board meetings specified by performance are sent to shareholders. These are 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The posted on the Company's Website and soft copy of 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has accorded approval same emailed to shareholders whose email ids are 
for the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of Board of available with the Company. Shareholders who have 
Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) that not furnished their email ids' are advised to furnish 
come into force from 1st July 2015. The Company's same to cs@kmsugar.com or delhi@linkintime.co.in  
practices and procedures mostly meet with all these (c) Section 136(1) of the Act and Clause 32 of Listing 
prescriptions and residual requirements will be taken Agreement permits circulation of abridged Accounts in 
care. lieu of full-fledged Annual Report. The Company has 
Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, however not exercised this option and continues to 
2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and send Annual Report in full form to all shareholders.
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, The Company has sought shareholders' cooperation to 
the Company has appointed M/s. Amit Gupta & fall in line with the Green Initiatives of the Central 
Associates, a Practicing Company Secretary- Government by way of sending communications in e-
(C.P.No.4682) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of mode.
the Company for 18 months ended as at 31-03-2015. (d) Audit Qualifications
The Secretarial Audit Report was placed before the The Company since inception has ensured to remain in 
Board on 11-08-2015 as per Annexure-9.  There are the regime of unqualified financial statements. SEBI 
no qualifications in the Secretarial Audit Report. vide its circular dt.13th August 2012, has evolved a 
(ix) Internal Auditor system to monitor audit qualification covered in 
Pursuant to Section 138(1) of the Act the Company Auditor's Report. Accordingly, listed companies while 
has appointed M/s VAA & Associates, Chartered submitting Annual Report under Clause 31 (a) of the 
Accountants, to conduct internal audit of the Listing Agreement are required to submit Form A in 
functions and activities of the Company for 18 case of Unqualified Auditor's Report and Form B in 
months ended as at 31-03-2015. The internal auditor case of Qualified... / Subject to... / Except for... audit 
reports directly to the Audit Committee. report. Stock Exchanges will initiate further steps as 
(x) Review of Directors' Responsibility Statement specified in the circular, in case of companies where 
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Form B has been filed. Our Company will comply with Website
this SEBI Circular while filing the Annual Reports for The Company maintains a functional website 
the 18 months  (financial year) ended 31st March www.kmsugar.com that contains relevant information 
2015. updated in time and complies with Clause 54 of the 

Listing Agreement.
Disclosures
(i) No strictures / penalties have been imposed on General Shareholder Information

the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or Business Responsibility Reports
any statutory authority on any matters related SEBI has mandated by its circular dt.13.08.2012 the  
to the capital market during the last 3 years. inclusion of Business Responsibility Reports (BR 

(ii) No significant and material orders were passed Reports) as part of the Annual Reports for listed 
by the Regulators, Courts or Tribunals impacting entities. Clause 55 has been inserted in the Equity 
the going concern status and the Company's Listing Agreement for this purpose. Initially this has 
operations in future. been made applicable for top 100 listed entities and our 

(iii) No loan or advance in the nature of loan was Company is not presently covered by this.
made during or outstanding at the close of the 
year to Associates or Firms/ Companies in which Company Commitment
a director of the Company is interested. Our Company keeps constant track of prevalent 
Accordingly no disclosure in terms of Clause 32 practices among bellwether corporates towards 
on this score is applicable. formulating and fine tuning its responses to the 

Means of Communication emerging areas on Corporate Governance and 
Intimation of Board meeting - The Company responsible business.  It continues to take affirmative 
publishes Notice of Board Meeting to consider steps for substantive compliance commensurate with 
financial results in newspapers. The given below is its size, nature of business and governing structure.
the details of publishing of quarterly results of the Our Company enjoys considerable goodwill of the 
Company - residents in its neighbourhood for its transparency in 

dealings and fair practices in place. It would be 
relentless in its pursuit and strengthen its focus for 
doing responsible business.

Declaration
Code of Conduct
The Board has formulated a Code of Conduct for 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company which will be  posted on its website. It is 
hereby affirmed that all the Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel have complied with the Code 
and a confirmation to this effect has been obtained 

* Publication arranged from them individually for the period under review. 
The results published also show as footnote relevant Further, the senior management personnel have 
additional information and/or disclosures to the declared to the Board that no material, financial and 
investors.  Financial results are emailed  & courier  to commercial transactions were entered into by them 
Stock Exchanges immediately after the conclusion of during for the period under review where they have 
the Board meeting. A confirmation copy is sent by personal interest that may have a potential conflict with 
courier/ speed post. the interest of the Company at large.

It is hereby declared that all the members of the Board 

 Date of  
Publication  of Notice of 

Board

 meeting

 

Financial Results  
 

News paper

  

Date of

 
approval by

 
Board

 

Date of

 
Publication

 
 

Quarter

 

ended31.12.2013

 

(Un-audited)

 

01.02.2014

 

08.02.2014 

 

09.02.2014

 

Financial Express ; 
Rashtriya Sahara

Quarter ended

 

31.03.2014

 

(Un-audited)

 

02.05.2014

 

12.05.2014 

 

13.05.2014

 

Financial Express ; 
Rashtriya Sahara

Quarter ended

 

30.06.2014

 

(Un-audited)

 

02.08.2014

 

11.08.2014 

 

12.08.2014

 

Financial Express ; 
Rashtriya Sahara

Quarter ended 30.09.2014

 

(Un-audited)

 

03.11.2014

 

14.11.2014 

 

15.11.2014

 

Financial Express ; 
Rashtriya Sahara

Quarter ended 31.12.2014
(Un-audited)

01.02.2015 14.02.2015 15.02.2015 Financial Express ; 
Rashtriya Sahara

Quarter and
Year ended 31.03.2015
(Audited)

17.5.2015 28.05.2015 29.05.2015 Financial Express ; 
Rashtriya SaharaC
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and Senior Management personnel have affirmed 174.3 mmt. 
compliance with the “Code of Conduct for Members Indian Sugar Industry
of the Board and Senior Management of K M Sugar The Government of India in its recent decision has 
Mills Ltd.” during the 18 months ended on 31st dispensed with the regulated  release mechanism of 
March, 2015. sugar for domestic consumption. Further, obligation to 

supply sugar as levy on production at a control rate for 
 For and on behalf of the Board Public Distribution System (PDS) has also been done 

of  K. M. Sugar Mills Ltd. away with for sugar produced . Now, the PDS 
requirements will be procured by the States  through 

 Sd/- open market and the  gap will be supported by the 
L. K. Jhunjhunwala Central Government. These measures shall facilitate 

Chairman the Sugar Industry to plan their cash flows and reduce 
the working capital requirement. However, the 

Date: 11.08.2015 deregulation process remained incomplete as they 
Place: Lucknow have not addressed  the issues of the State Control on 

cane prices with lack of parity between sugar and cane 
Annexure-4” prices.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report INDUSTRY SCENARIO
Industry Facts  :- Cane management is the most indispensable part of 
? Sugar is one of world's major agro- based the whole sugar manufacturing process. It is said 

“Sugar is produced in the field and extracted in the industries and is also one of the most actively 
factory”.  This makes Cane management, the most traded soft commodities on the exchange
important part of the Sugar Industry. The Uttar ? More than 80 % of Sugar produced is from 
P ra d e s h  G o ve r n m e nt  h a d  a n n o u n c e d  a n  sugarcane while balance is from sugar beet.
unprecedented increase in State Advised Cane Price ( ? Top 5 sugar producers in the world, namely, 
SAP ) by Rs.40/- per quintal for the year 2012-13, which Brazil, India, EU, China & Thailand , account for 
increased the Cane Prices in the State to the range of over 60 % of the total production .
Rs.275/- to Rs.290/-  per quintal. The U.P. Government ? The global sugar prices have been seen high level 
retained the cane prices at Rs.280/- per quintal during of volatility. 
the season 2013-14 and 2014-15. However, The U.P. ? India is the second largest producer of sugar in 
Government announced a financial assistance of the world and its production's share in 2014-15 
Rs.40/- per quintal to reduce the burden of increase in was 16%.
cane price.

Global Sugar Industry
Sugar Mills in U.P. pay SAP for sugar cane which Global Sugar Industry has managed the growth in 
historically is significantly higher than the FRP fixed by demand for a fifth  consecutive year. The estimated 
the Central Government. This has made an aggregate sugar production for year ended 31st March, 2015 
increase of Rs.150/- per quintal in SAP of cane in the was 174.3 mmt (rv) as against consumption of 170.6 
last four years. The Cost of Sugar in U.P. has become the mmt(rv), with  a surplus of 3.7 mmt(rv)(source : USDA 
highest in the Country. This escalation in cane price Trade Report-May,2015). However, the sugar 
announced by the U.P. State Government has rendered production in Brazil was 35.8 mmt lower  by 8% than 
the U.P. Sugar Industry cash- crunched, heavy losses the previous year. Brazil exported 24.5 mmt during 
and  uncompetitive. The Sugar Mills have been facing year ended 31st March, 2015. Further, a moderate 
hardship in making payment to the Cane Growers in global sugar surplus is expected in the year 2015-16, 
time. The Central Government has come out with loan continue to remain positive for the fifth consecutive 
assistance to the Sugar Mills for clearance of dues of year. As per the latest  estimates, the Sugar 
cane growers, which would not be enough for the Production forecast for the sugar year 2015-2016 is at 
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survival of the Sugar Industry. 25,600mw or 12% of the Indian Power generation 
Government Policies  capacity. Sugar industry has been traditionally 
The Government is becoming aware of the woes of practicing cogeneration by using bagasse as a fuel. It can 
the sugar industry on account of stifling Government also produce significant surplus electricity for sale to 
intervention, policy inertia and absence of realistic the grid using bagasse. To make Sugar Mills viable, they 
initiatives. The GOI, during the year under review, have now started to set-up cogeneration plant.  There is 
dispensed with the system of allocating sugar mill- potential to increase this capacity to 10,000 mw. 
wise export quota and permit export of sugar 
without any restrictions. Ethanol Sector

The Central Government had made 5% ethanol 
Government hikes import duty on sugar blending mandatory with petrol across the country 
The Government hiked the import duty on sugar to procured at market. In order to give boost to ethanol 
40 per cent from 15 per cent to curb inflow of blending program, the State Oil Firms (OMC) have 
cheaper sweetener, a move that could see a rise in decided to procure for the year 2015-16 at the  price of 
sugar prices.  Rs. 49/-per liter. OMCs had invited bid for 156 crore 
Govt. notifies export subsidy of Rs. 4,000/- per ton liters of ethanol from the domestic and international 
for raw sugar suppliers for blending with petrol in the sugar year 
The Government has notified the incentive for sugar 2015. 
mills to export raw sugar. The rate of incentive will be 
Rs. 4,000/- a tonne. According to a gazette SWOT ANALYSIS:
notification, sugar factories which produce raw sugar KM Sugar Mills consists of manufacturing and trading 
and undertake export eiter by themselves of through facilities of sugar, alcohol and power. Each of its 
exporters will be eligible for the incentive. business segments has its own strengths and 
Trend in Sugar Industry Trade weaknesses and exposures to a variety of  
Domestic sugar prices have continued moving opportunities and threats. The Company has the 
downwards during the period. Weakening world following SWOT attributes broadly :
market prices have made export parity negative as 
sales of sugar to the world market are not Strengths and Opportunities
commercially attractive to the Indian Sugar Industry. i) The promoters are in this line for over 4 decades 
The domestic sugar prices during the 18 months and are having good experience of the line.
ended at 31-03-2015 have fallen deeply. The prices 
at the major markets during the year have been ii) Company has integrated Sugar Plant, alongwith 
volatile. The prices of sugar in 2011-12 ( Aug.,2012) distillery and Co -Generation situated in the 
moved upto Rs.3900/- per quintal and throughout sugarcane-rich Indian State of U.P.
the past three years hovered in the band of Rs. 
3900/- to Rs.2600/- per quintal.  For the fear of food iii) Company has integrated facilities to produce sugar 
inflation being stoked, Government policies aimed at and also has ability to Process Raw Sugar.
pegging domestic sugar prices at lower level 
continued, regardless of the fact that the incidence iv) Company Produces Ethanol, Power which 
of sugar price of inflation is miniscule.  Going enhances the Revenue of the Company. 
forward, any significant   strengthening of domestic 
sugar prices in the near future is uncertain. Weaknesses and Threats

i) Though de-licensed, sugar industry remains a 
Power Sector highly regulated industry with the acts and orders 
As per the report of Central Electricity Authority through which government regulates the sugar 
(CEA), the renewable power constitutes about Industry. 
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for a period exceeding one month against the 
ii) Sugarcane being an agricultural commodity, its Company as per the records maintained by share 

availability is dependent on vagaries of holders/investor grievance committee.
monsoon.

iii) Non availability of sugar cane may adversely 5. We further state that such compliance is neither 
affect the sugar mills as well as cogeneration an assurance as to the future viability of the 
power plants. Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 

iv) Sugar Industry has political  intervention. which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 

v) Steep decline in sugar price adversely affect the  
sugar mills For Amit Gupta & Associates

Company Secretaries
AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Sd/- 
UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT (Amit Gupta) 

Proprietor 
To, Date: 11.08.2015      C.P. No. 4682
The Shareholders Place:  Lucknow
K M Sugar Mills Limited 
Moti Nagar Faizabad. CEO and CFO Certi?cation

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions We, S. C. Agarwal , CEO  and  A K Gupta, CFO of K M 
of Corporate Governance by K M Sugar Mills Sugar Mills Limited , to the best of our knowledge and 
Limited for the year 18 months ended 31st belief, hereby certify that :
March, 2015 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the (A) We have reviewed the ?nancial statements and 
Listing Agreement of the said Company  with cash ?ow statements for the 18 months ended at 
Stock Exchanges. 31st March, 2015 , and that based on our 

knowledge and belief :-
2. The compliance of conditions of corporate (i) these statements do not contain any 

governance is the responsibility of the materially untrue statements or omit to state 
management. Our examination was limited to any material fact or contain statements that 
procedures and implementation thereof, might be misleading; and
adopted by the Company for ensuring (ii) these statements present a true and fair view 
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate of the Company's affair and are in 
Governance.  It is neither an audit nor an compliance with existing accounting 
expression of opinion on the financial standards, applicable laws and regulations.
statements of the Company. (B) Based on our knowledge and information, there 

are no transactions entered into by the Company 
3. On the basis of our review and according to the during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or 

information and explanations given to us, the violation of the Company's code of conduct.
conditions of Corporate Governance as (C) We along with Company's other certifying officers 
stipulated in Clause 49 of the listing agreement accept responsibility for establishing and 
with National Stock Exchange Limited. and maintaining internal  controls and that we have:-
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. have been (i) evaluated the effectiveness of the internal 
complied with in all material respect by the control systems of the Company;     and
Company. (ii) disclosed to the auditors and Audit 

Committee, deficiencies in the design or 
4. We state that no investor grievance is pending operation of internal controls, if any, of which 
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we are aware and the steps we have taken 
or propose to take to rectify these For and on behalf of the Board
de?ciencies. of  K. M. Sugar Mills Ltd.

(D) We along with Company's other certifying 
officers, have indicated to the auditors and the  Sd/-
Audit Committee of the Company, the L. K. Jhunjhunwala
following:- Chairman
(i) signi?cant changes in internal control 

during the year; Date: 11.08.2015
(ii) signi?cant changes in accounting policies Place: Lucknow

during the year and that the same have 
been disclosed in the notes to the ?nancial 
statements; and Annexure 6 Board's Report

(iii) instances of signi?cant fraud of which they 
have become aware and the involvement FORM NO. AOC-2
therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a signi?cant role in the (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 
company's internal control system. of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 
Date:   11-08-2015 Sd/- Sd/-
Place:  Lucknow S C Agarwal   A K Gupta Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / 

arrangements entered into by the company with 
Annexure 5 Board's Report related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 
FORM NO. AOC-1 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 
Statement containing salient features of the length transactions under third proviso thereto 
Financial Statement of subsidiary
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3)of section 1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions 
129 of the Act read with  Rule 5 of the Companies not at arm's length basis -                       NIL
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
Part 'A' (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of 

relationship 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / 

transactions 
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transactions including the value, if any 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions 
(f) date(s) of approval by the Board 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: 
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

general meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or 
transactions at arm's length basis :- 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars M/s. K.M.
Energy Pvt.
Limited

 

1
 

Reporting period of the subsidiary
 

01-12-2014 to 
31-03-2015

 

2
 

Reporting currency
 

Indian Rupees 
in lacs

 

3

 

Share Capital

 

1.00 lacs

 

4

 

Reserve & Surplus 

 

0.00

 

5

 

Total Assets

 

384.35

 

6

 

Total Liabilities

 

384.35

 

7

 

Investments 

 

0.00

 

8

 

Turnover

 

3.83

 

9

 

Profit before tax

 

(6.77)

 

10

 

Provision for tax

 

0.00

 

11

 

Profit after tax

 

(6.77)

 

12

 

Proposed Dividend

 

0.00%

 

13

 

% of shareholding

 

73%
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Place: Lucknow
As details given in Note no.2.29(12-D) Annexure 7 Board's Report

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31st March 2015
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of 
the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship :-

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
:-  III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND 

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-
transactions :   01-10-2013 to 31-03-2015

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any: 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:  This has 
been reviewed and recommended by the Audit 
Committee  and also approved by the Board in 
their meetings. The approval of the shareholders 
is not required the transactions are within the 
prescribed limit u/s 186.

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:  
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L.K. Jhunjhunwala
(Chairman)

Date: 11.08.2015

Name(s) of the related Nature of 

Nature of Duration of 

Salient 
Amount

Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala

 

Whole Time Remuneration

 

01-10-2013 to At arms 45.91

Bal. payable

 

48.39

Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala

 

Mg.

 

Director

 

Remuneration

 

01-10-2013

 

to 
31-03-2015

 

At arms 
length

24.34

Bal. payable

 

73.40

Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala

 

Jt. Mg. Remuneration

 

01-10-2013 to 
31-03-2015

 

At arms 
length

24.34

Bal. payable

 

77.04

Shri S.C.Agarwal

 

Exe. Remuneration

 

01-10-2013 to 
31-03-2015

 

At arms 
length

22.20

Bal. payable

 

7.08

Total

    

116.79

Shri Shakti Credits Related 

Sale of Sugar 

 

01-10-2013 to 
31-03-2015

 

At arms 
length

98.50

Rent paid

 

8.77

Advance 
25.00

Advance given

 

25.00

Adv. recd. 54.31

Bal. payable

 

K.M. Vyapar Pvt. Ltd.,

 

Related 
group C

 

Rent Paid

 

01-10-2013 to 
31-03-2015

 

At arms 
length

86.37

Advance 
40.00

Advance given

 

55.16

Bal. payable

Zar Intl. Pvt. Ltd., Related 
group C

01-10-2013 to 
31-03-2015

At arms 
length

1.71

Bal. payable 3.42

K.M. Energy Pvt. Ltd.,

Investment in 

01-10-2013 to 
31-03-2015

At arms 
length

0.73

Loan given 285.00

Bal. receivable 287.95

i) CIN  L15421UP1971PLC003492  

ii) Registration Date  17.12.1971  

iii) Name of the Company  M/s. K.M. Sugar Mills Limited  

iv) Category / Sub -Category 
of the Company

 
Public Limited Company -  Limited by 
Shares

 

v) Address of the Registered 
office and contact details

 
 

Regd. Office : 11 -
 

Moti Bhavan, 
Collector Ganj, Kanpur -208002, 
Phone no. 0522 -2310762

 

vi) Whether listed company 
 

Yes -
 

BSE / NSE
 

vii) Name, Address and 
Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agen t, if any

 
 

Link Intime (India) Pvt. Limited,
 

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
 

L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup West,
 

Mumbai-400078

 

Phone no. 022 - 6171 5400

   

   

   
   
   

   
   

Sl. 
No.  

Name and  

Description of  

main products /  

services  

NIC Code of  

the Product/  

service  
 

% to total  

turnover of the  

company  

1
 

Sugar
 

10721
 

81%
 

2
 

Rectified Spirit
 

/Ethanol
 
11019

 
12%

 

S.
N0

NAME AND 
ADDRESS OF 
THE
COMPANY 

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY 
/ 
ASSOCIATE 

% of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

1 K.M. Energy 
Private  
Limited 

U40300UP2004PTC067293 Subsidiary 73 2(46) 
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(ii)Shareholding of Promoters 

Sl 
No. 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year as at  

01-10-2013 

Share holding at the end of the year-
31-03-2015 

 

  No. 
of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
company 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged/ 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. 
of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
company 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged/ 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

% 
change 
in 
share 
holdi 
ng 
during 
the 
year 

1
 

Marvel Business 
Private Limited 
AABCM7231K 

12450951
 

 

13.53
 

 
 

12450951
 

 

13.53
 

 
 

0
 

2
 

Laxmi Kant 
Dwarka Das 
AAAHL9403N 

10065900
 

 

10.94
 

 
 

10065900
 

 

10.94
 

 
 

0
 

3

 
Prakash Chandra 
Jhunjhunwala 
AAKPJ4437C 

9946600

 
 

10.81

 
 

 
9946600

 
 

10.81

 
 

 
0

 

4

 

Laxmikant 
Jhunjhunwala 
AEJPJ8858H 

5602600

 
 

6.09

 
 

6.09

 

5602600

 
 

6.09

 
 

6.09

 
 

0

 

5

 

Umadevi 
Jhunjhunwala 
ABQPJ7823H 

4456500

 
 

4.84

 
 

 

4449527

 
 

4.84

 
 

 

0

 

6

 

Naina Devi 
Jhunjhunwala 
AANPJ0921A 

4168955

 
 

4.53

 
 

4.53

 

4168955

 
 

4.53

 
 

4.53

 
 

0

 

7

 

Praksash Chandra 
Jhunjhunwal(HUF) 

3825900

 
 

4.16

 
 

 

3825900

 
 

4.16

 
 

 

0

 8

 

Aditya 
Jhunjhunwala 
AANPJ0923C 

3704200

 
 

4.03

 
 

4.03

 

3704200

 
 

4.03

 
 

4.03

 
 

0

 

9

 

KM Vyapar Private 
Limited 
AAACK5991M 

2642619

 
 

2.87

 
 

 

2283364

 
 

2.48

 
 

 

(0.39)

 
10

 

Sanjay 
Jhunjhunwala 
AANPJ9747L  

2494600

 
 

2.71

 
 

2.71

 

2494600

 
 

2.71

 
 

2.71

 
 

0

 
11

 

Jhunjhunwala 
securities private 
Limited 

500000

 
 

0.54

 
 

 

500000

 
 

0.54

 
 

 

0

 
12

 

Vatsal 
Jhunjhunwala 
AGHPJ6163E 

450000

 
 

0.49

 
 

 

450000

 
 

0.49

 
 

 

0

 
13

 

Vridhi 
Jhunjhunwala 
AMWPJ0962E 

450000

 
 

0.49

 
 

 

450000

 
 

0.49

 
 

 

0

 
14

 

KM Plantations 
Private Limited 
AAACK5695A 

425000

 
 

0.46

 
 

 

25000

 
 

0.03

 
 

 

(0.43)

 15 Francoise 
commerce Private 
Limited 

420000 0.46 420000 0.46 0
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16 Vridhi Trust 128142 0.14  188780 0.20  0.06 
17 Shivam Trust 120549 0.13  120549 0.13  0 
18 Madhu Prakash 

Jhunjhunwala 
83550 
 

0.09 
 

 61857 
 

0.07 
 

 (0.02) 

19 Sh. H.P. Singhania 18000 .02     (0.02) 
20

 
Vatsal Trust

 
41558

 
0.05

  
49721

 
0.05

  
0

 

 
Total

 
61995624

 
 

67.39
 

 

17.36
 

61260504
 

 

66.59
 

 

17.37
 

 

(0.81)
 

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change) 

Sl.
 No. 

Name of the shareholder
 

Shareholding
 

Cumulative Shareholding
 during the year 

  
Nos. of shares

 
% of total share 
of the Company 

Nos. of shares
 

% of total share 
of the Company 

1.

 

M/s. K.M.

 

Vyapar Pvt. Ltd.

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

2642619

 

2.87

 

2642619

 

2.87

 

 

Less: Sale on 01-07-2014

 

-189157

 

-0.21

 

2453462

 

2.66

 

 

Less: Sale on 02-07-2014

 

-170098

 

-0.18

 

2283364

 

2.48

 

 

At the End of the year

 

2283364

 
 

2.48

 

2283364

 
 

2.48

 

      
2.

 

M/s. K.M. Plantation Pvt. Ltd.

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

425000

 

0.46

 

425000

 

0.46

 

 

Less: Sale on 01-07-2014

 

-200000

 

-0.21

 

225000

 

0.25

 

 

Less: Sale on 02-07-2014

 

-200000

 

-0.22

 

-200000

 

0.03

 

 

At the End of the year

 

25000

 
 

0.03

 

25000

 
 

0.03

 

      

3.

 

Vridhi Trust

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

128142

 
 

0.14

 
 

425000

 

0.46

 

 

Add: Purchase 0-02-2014

 

60638

 

0.06

 

188780

 
 

0.20

 
 

 

At the End of the year

 

188780

 
 

0.20

 
 

188780

 
 

0.20

 
 

      

4.

 

Vatsal Trust

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

41558

 
 

0.05

 
 

41558

 

0.05

 

 

Add: Purchase 0-02-2014

 

8163

  

49721

 

0.05

 

 

At the End of the year

 

49721

 
 

0.05

 
 

25000

 
 

0.05

 

      

5.

 

Madhu P.  Jhunjhunwala

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

83550

 
 

0.09

 
 

83550

 
 

0.09

 
 

 

Add: Purchase 0-02-2014

 

1400

    

 

Less: Sale on 02-07-2014

 

-23093

 

-0.02

 

-61857

 

0.07

 

 

At the End of the year

 

61857

 
 

0.07

 
 

61857

 
 

0.07

 
 

      

6.

 

Sh. H.P. Singhania

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

18000

 
 

0.02

 
 

18000

 

18000

 

 

Less: Sale on 00-07-2014

 

-18000

 
 

-0.02

 

0

 
 

0

 

D
ire

c
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt ...



30

 At the End of the year 0 0 
 

0 
 

0 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

 Top 10 shareholders Shareholding Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Sl.
 

No. 
Name of the shareholder

 
Nos. of shares

 
% of total share 
of the Company 

Nos. of shares
 

% of total share 
of the Company 

1.
 

Kunal  Rakesh  Agarwal 
     

 
At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

 
Add: Purchased on 29-11-13

 
100000

 
0.11

 
100000

 
0.11

 

 
Add: Purchased on 06.12.13

 
300000

 
0.32

 
400000

 
0.43

 

 
Add: Purchased on 03.01.14

 
360373

 
0.39

 
760373

 
0.82

 

 

Add: Purchased on 
07.02.2014 

389627

 

0.42

 

1150000

 

1.24

 

 

Add: Purchased on 14.03.14

 

691091

 

0.76

 

1841091

 

2.00

 

 

Add: Purchased on 21-03-14

 

3909

 

0.00

 

1845000

 

2.00

 

 

At the End of the year

 

1845000

 

2.00

   

      
2.

 

VIP Growth Fund Pvt.Ltd.,

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

1532640

 

1.66

 

1532640

 

1.66

 

 

Less: Sale on 20.03.2015

 

-5507

  

1527133

 

1.66

 

 

Less: Sale on 27.03.2015

 

-5000

  

1522133

 

1.66

 

 

At the End of the year

 

1522133

 

1.66

 

1522133

 

1.66

 

      
3.

 

Manish Patodia (HUF) 

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

1099208

 

1.19

 

1099208

 

1.19

 

 

At the End of the year

 

1099208

 

1.19

 

1099208

 

1.19

 

      

4.

 

Jeevan Jyoti Infotech Pvt.Ltd.,

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

 

Add: Purchased on 06.12.13

 

786000

 

0.85

 

786000

 

0.85

 

 

Less: Sold  on 04.07.14

 

-120824

 

-0.13

 

665176

 

0.72

 

 

At the End of the year

 

665176

 

0.72

 

665176

 

0.72

 

      

5.

 

Nalin Dalal (HUF)

     

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

 

Add: Purchased on 20.03.15

 

569400

 

0.62

 

569400

 

0.62

 

 

At the End of the year

 

569400

 

0.62

 

569400

 

0.62

 

      

6.

 

Front Line Dealcomm. Pvt. 
Ltd., 

    

 

At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

 

Add: Purchased on 06.12.13

 

648000

 

0.70

 

648000

 

0.70

 

 

Less: Sale on 04-07-2014

 

-111224

 

-0.12

 

536776

 

0.58

 

 

At the End of the year

 

536776

 

0.58

 

536776

 

0.58

 

      

7.

 

Vishwanathan M. Pujari

     

 

At the beginning of the year

 

as at 01-10-2013 
500000

 

0.54

 

500000

 

0.54

 

 

At the End of the year

 

500000

 

0.54

 

500000

 

0.54
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8. Motilal Oswal Fin. Services 
Ltd., 

    

 At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

0 0 0 0 

 Add: Purchased on 03.01.14 490000 0.53 490000 0.53 

 At the End of the year 490000 0.53 490000 0.53 

      

9. Dr. (Mrs.) Sushma Mehrotra     

 At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

514302 0.56 514302 0.56 

 Less: Sale on 30.06.2014 -42877 -0.05 471425 0.51 

 Less: Sale on 04-07-2014 -50000 -0.05 421425 0.46 

 At the End of the year 421425 0.46 421425 0.46 

10. Ashish Patodia     

 At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

381445 0.41 381445 0.41 

 At the End of the year 381445 0.41 381445 0.41 

 (v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sl. 
No. 

 Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

 For Each 
of the 
Directors 
and KMP 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

1 Sh. L.K. Jhunjhunwala      

 At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

5602600 
 

6.09 
 

6.09 5602600 
 

 At the End of the year 5602600 
 

6.09 
 

6.09 5602600 
 

      

2 Sh. Aditya Jhunjhunwala      

 At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

3704200 
 

4.03 
 

3704200 
 

4.03 
 

 At the End of the year 3704200 
 

4.03 
 

3704200 
 

4.03 
 

      

3 Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala      

 At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

2494600 
 

2.71 
 

2494600 
 

2.71 
 

 At the End of the year 2494600 
 

2.71 
 

2494600 
 

2.71 
 

      

4 Shri H.P. Singhania     

 At the beginning of the year 
as at 01-10-2013 

18000 
 

0.02 
 

18000 
 

0.02 
 

 Less: Sale on 02-07-2014 -18000 
 

-0.02 0 
 

0 

 At the End of the year 0 
 

0 0 
 

0 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS '* Shri S.C. Agarwal is CEO of the Company also. 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest B. Remuneration to other directors:
outstanding/accrued but not due for payment- 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time 
Directors and /or Manager:

'* Shri S.C. Agarwal, who is Executive Director of the 

 Secured 
Loans  

Excluding 
deposits  

Unsecured  
Loans  

Deposits  Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the 
beginning of the 
financial year

 i) Principal Amount
 ii) Interest due but not 

paid

 iii) Interest accrued but 
not due

 

 
 11108.25
 245.52
 21.67
 

 
 164.41
 -
 -
 

 
 -
 -
 -
 

11272.66
245.52
21.67

Total (i+ii+iii)

 

11375.44

 

164.41

  

11539.85
Change in 
Indebtedness during 
the  financial year

 
??Addition

 
 
??Reduction

 
 

 
 

4951.08

 
 

(1832.45)

 

 
 

-

 
 

-

 

 
 

-

 
 

-

 

 
 

4951.08

(1832.45)

Net Change

 

3118.63

  

3118.63
Indebtedness at the end 
of the financial year

 

i) Principal Amount

 

ii) Interest due but not 
paid

 

iii) Interest accrued but 
not due

 
 

14411.18

 

82.89

 

-

 

 
 

164.41

 

-

 

-

 

 
 

-

 

-

 

-

 

14575.59
82.89

-

Total (i+ii+iii) 14494.07 164.41 - 14658.48

  

Sl.
no.

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of MD/WTD/Manager  Total
Amount

Sh. L K 
Jhunjhunwala 

Sh. Aditya 
Jhunjhunwala  

Sh. Sanjay 
Jhunjhunwala  

‘*  Sh. S. C. 
Agarwal  

 

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per  
rovisions 
contained in section 
17(1) 
of the Income-tax 
Act,1961 
(b) Value of 
perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act,1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary 
under 
section7(3)Incometax 
Act, 1961 

 
4150000 

 
 

16023 

 
2200000  

 
 
70565  

 
2200000  

 
 

830  

 
2200000  

 
 

193835  

 
10750000

 
 

281253

2. Stock Option      
3. Sweat Equity      
4. Commission - as % of 

profit 
- others, specify… 

     

5. Others, please specify      
Total (A) 4166023 2270565  2200830  2393835  11 031253
Ceiling as per the Act      

     

      

      

Sl.
no.

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of Directors Total 
Amount 

H. P 
Singhania 

R S 
Shukla 

S K 
Gupta 

Dr. Kirti 
Singh 

 

1.Independent 
Directors
 · Fee for attending 
board / committee 
meetings
 · Commission

 · Others, please 
specify

 

43000
 

51000
 

51000
 

10000
 

155000
 

Total (1)

 

43000

 

51000

 

51000

 

10000

 

155000

 
2. Other Non-
Executive 
Directors

 Fee for attending 
board /committee 
meetings

 

Commission

 

Others, please 
specify

 

P.N. 
Mather, 
Nominee

 
 
 

30000

 
 

0

 

    
 
 
 
 
30000

 

Total (2)

 

30000

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

30000

 

Total(B)=(1+2)

 

73000

 

51000

 

51000

 

10000

 

185000

 

Total Managerial

 

Remuneration
0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 
Overall Ceiling as 
per the Act

0 0 0 0 0

 
 

 

 

 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

               Key Managerial Personnel 

  CEO * Company 
Secretary 

CFO Total 

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per 
provisions 
contained in section 
17(1) of the Income -
tax Act, 1961 

 
(b) Value of 
perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income -tax Act, 
1961 

 
(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary under section 
17(3) Income -tax Act, 
1961

 

  
1403802 

 
1741342 

 
3145144 

2.
 

Stock Option
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 3.

 
Sweat Equity

 
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

4.
 

Commission
 -

 
as % of profit

 -
 

others, specify…
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

5.
 

Others, please 
specify

 
    

 
Total 

 
0
 

1403802
 

1741342
 

3145144
 Ceiling as per the Act
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Company  is also the CEO of the Company. The details '*The figures are not comparable  1. The company did 
of remuneration paid to CEO is mentioned in category not pay the remuneration to the directors during 2012-
(A) - Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole- 13 for the whole year as it was in loss in F.Y. 2011-12.      
time Directors and /or Manager.  2- The company has changed its F.Y. to align it as per the 
Pl see: Director sitting fee Rs.30000/- has been paid requirement of new Companies Act,2013, accordingly 
to PNB for PNB Nominee director MR P N Mathur the accounts are for 18 months ended as at 

31-03-2015.
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF 
OFFENCES :

(Amt. In Lakhs)

                          

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L.K. Jhunjhunwala
(Chairman)

Date: 11.08.2015
(Amt. in Lakhs)

Place: Lucknow
Annexure - 8 to Board's Report

Disclosure under the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
Particulars of Employees Rule 5 (1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014

(Amt. In Lakhs)

                          (Amt. in Lakhs)

* The figures are not comparable

Type  Section of  
The 
Companies

 Act

 

Brief  
Description  

Details of  
Penalty /  Punishment/

 Compounding

 fees imposed

 

Authority
[RD / 
NCLT
/ COURT]

Appeal
made,
if any
(give
Details)

A. COMPANY

 
Penalty

 
 

  

Nil

  Punishment

 
 

  

Nil

  
Compounding

 
 

  

Nil

  
B. DIRECTORS 

 

Penalty

 
 

  

Nil

  

Punishment

 
 

  

Nil

  

Compounding

 
 

  

Nil

  

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

 

Penalty

   

Nil

  

Punishment Nil

Compounding Nil

Name(s) of 
Whole time 
Directors  

Designation  Remuneration 
-18 months 

ended
31-03-2015  

(In Rs.)  

Remuneration 
in year 2012-13  

(In Rs.)  

% increase  

in 
remuneration  

*  

Ratio of 
remuneration 

to median 
remuneration 
of employees

Ratio of the 
remuneration                  
to Net Profit 
18 months 

ended 
31-03-2015

Shri L.K. Whole Time 45.91  6.30  729%  18.07:1.00 0.06:1.00

Shri Aditya Mg. Director  24.34  3.60  676%  9.58:1.00 0.03:1.00

Shri Sanjay Jt. Mg. 24.34  3.60  676%  9.58:1.00 0.03:1.00

Shri Exe. 22.20  1.95  1138%  8.74:1.00 0.03:1.00

Name(s) of 
Independent 
Directors

 

Remuneration 
–  

18 months 
ended 

 

31-03-2015
 

(In Rs.)

 

Remuneration 
in year  

2012-13
 

(In Rs.)
 

%  

increase  

in 
remuneration

 

Sh. H.P. 
SInghania

 
0.43

 

0.05

 

860%

 

Sh. R.S. 
Shukla

 

0.41

 

0.20

 

205%

 

Sh. S.K. Gupta

 

0.51

 

0.20

 

255%

 

Dr. Kirti Singh

 

0.10

 

-

 

-

 

Ms. Shruti 
Modi

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Mrs.Madhu 
Mathur

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Name of Non-
Executive Director 

Remuneration 
-18 months 

ended 31-03-
2015 

(In Rs.)*  

Remuneration in 
year 2012-13 

(In Rs.) 

% increase in 
remuneration 

Sh. P.N. Mathur 0.30 - - 

Sh. A.K. Mishra - - - 

Name of KMP Remuneration 
-18 months 

ended 31-03-
2015 

(In Rs.)* 

 

Remuneration 
in year  

2012-13 

(In Rs.) 

% increase in 
remuneration 

Ratio of the 
remuneration 
to Net Profit 
18 months 

ended  

31-03-2015 

Sh. Arvind Gupta

 

17.41

 

9.79

 

177%

 

0.02:1.00

 

Sh. Rajeev 
Kumar 

14.03 6.86 204% 0.02:1.00 
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A) Statement of particulars of remuneration as per 
Rule 5(1)
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Notes:
1. All other directors were paid only sitting fee for Based on our verification of the Company's books, 
attending the meetings of the Board and   p a pe rs, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
Committees thereof. other records maintained by the company and also the 
2. The company's operating profit has declined during information provided by the Company, its officers, 
the period under review is due to steep decline  in agents and authorized representatives during the 
sugar prices. The decline in operating profit in conduct of secretarial audit, 
entirety are attributable to natural and macro 
economic factors beyond the control of KMPs and We hereby report that in our opinion
other employees. Hence remuneration levels and  
periodic increases have no direct correlation to the i. The company has, during the audit period 
company performance but are determined in the covering the financial year (18 months) ended on 
normal course of business and in line with industry 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory 
norms. provisions listed hereunder and also 
3.  The company did not come out with Public Offer. ii. That the Company has proper Board-processes 
4.  Executive Directors' remuneration revised w.e.f. and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
from 1st August,2014. extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
5. The figures are not comparable  1. The company did made hereinafter:
not pay the remuneration to the directors during We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
2012-13 for the whole year as it was in loss in F.Y. forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
2011-12. 2- The company has changed its F.Y. to align by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st 
it as per the requirement of new Companies March, 2015 according to the provisions of:
Act,2013, accordingly the accounts are for 18 months i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 
ended as at 31-03-2015. made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
Annexure-9 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations 
FORM NO. MR.3 and Bye-laws framed there under;
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 rules and regulations made there under to the 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas 
2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment Direct Investment and External Commercial 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] Borrowings - Not applicable as the Company has 

not made any such transaction during the 
financial year under review;

To, v. The following Regulations and Guidelines 
The Members, prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
K M SUGAR MILLS LIMITED, Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-
11, Moti Bhawan, Collectorganj, Kanpur - 208 001 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s K M (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
SUGAR MILLS LIMITED (hereinafter called “the 1992; 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for ( I s s u e  o f  C a p i t a l  a n d  D i s c l o s u r e  
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory Requirements) Regulations, 2009- not 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. applicable as the Company has not made 
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any public offer of securities during the (f) Agricultural and Processed Food Products 
period under review; Export Act, 1986

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (g) The Boilers Act, 1923
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and (h) The Legal Metrology Act, 2009
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) (i) The Environment Protection Act, 1986
Guidelines, 1999/Securities And Exchange (j) The Water (Prevention and Control Pollution) 
Board of India (Share Based Employee Act, 1974
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (effective 28th (k) The Air (Prevention and Control Pollution) 
October 2014) - Not applicable as the Act, 1981
Company has not granted any options 
during the financial year under review We have also examined compliance with the applicable 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India clauses of the following:
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) (i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Regulations, 2008 - not applicable as the Company Secretaries of India (not applicable as 
securities issued by Company were not not notified during the period under review); and
listed during the period under review; (ii) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India with Stock Exchanges (not applicable as the 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer securities issued by Company were not listed 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the during the period under review)
Companies Act and dealing with client - 
Not Applicable as the Company is not We further report that:
registered as Registrar to Issue and Share ? The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
Transfer Agent during the financial year constituted with proper balance of Executive 
under review; Directors,  Non-Executive Directors and 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India Independent Directors. The changes in the 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, composition of the Board of Directors that took 
2009  Not applicable as the Company has place during the period under review were carried 
not delisted/propose to delist its equity out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
shares from any stock exchange during the 
financial year under review; ? Adequate notice is given to all directors to 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 - notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven 
Not applicable as the Company has not days in advance, however we have noted delay in 
bought back/propose to buyback any of sending agenda papers in few cases, and a system 
its securities during the financial year exists for seeking and obtaining further 
under review. information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful 
vi. The following other laws as may be applicable participation at the meeting.

specifically to the company:
(a) Sugar Cess Act, 1982 ? Majority decision is carried through while the 
(b) Levy Sugar Price Equalisation Fund Act, dissenting members' views, if any, are captured 

1976 and recorded as part of the minutes.
(c) Food Safety And Standards Act, 2006 
(d) Essential Commodities Act,1955 We further report that the systems and processes in the 
(e) Sugar Development Fund Act, 1982 company require further strengthening and 

improvements, considering the size and operations of 
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the company to enable effective monitoring and 2. We have followed the audit practices and process 
ensuring of compliance with applicable laws, rules, as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
regulations and guidelines. assurance about the correctness of the contents 

of the secretarial records. The verification was 
We further report that during the audit period the done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
company has: reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 
(i) Promoted a subsidiary Company for setting up of the processes and practices, we followed provide 

5 MW Grid Connected Solar PV Power Project. a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We have not verified the correctness and 

appropriateness of financial records and books of 
For Amit Gupta & Associates accounts of the Company.
Company Secretaries 4. Where ever required, we have obtained the 

management representation about the 
Amit Gupta compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
Proprietor happening of events etc.
Membership No. : F5478 5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate 
C.P. No. 4682 and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
Date: 11.08.2015 standards is the responsibility of management. 
Place: Lucknow Our examination was limited to the verification of 
Note: This report should be read with the letter of procedure on test basis.
even date by the Secretarial Auditors. 6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an 

assurance as to the future viability of the 
To, Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 
The Members, which the management has conducted the affairs 
K M SUGAR MILLS LIMITED, of the Company. 
11, Moti Bhawan, Collectorganj, Kanpur - 208 001

For Amit Gupta & Associates
Our Report of even date is to be read along with this Company Secretaries
letter.

Amit Gupta
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the Proprietor

responsibility of the management of the Membership No. : F5478
Company. Our responsibility is to express an C.P. No. 4682
opinion on these secretarial records based on Date: 11.08.2015
our audit. Place: Lucknow
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Independent Auditor's Report

To 
The Members Opinion
K.M. Sugar Mills Ltd. Kanpur 6. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us, the accompanying standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 1.  We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India:statements of K.M. Sugar Mills Ltd. (the “Company”), 
(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 

Company as at 31st March , 2015;2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow 
(b)  in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit Statement for the period then ended and a summary of 

for the period ended on that date; andsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, which we have signed under reference to this (c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for 
report. the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Emphasis of Matters
Statements 7. We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the 
2. The Company's Management is responsible for the standalone financial statements:

preparation of these standalone financial statements that (a) Note 2.29(10) to the financial statements which indicates 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial that the company has accounted for an amount of Rs.782.45 lacs 
performance and cash flows of the Company in due to the company from State Government as financial 
accordance with the accounting principles generally assistance as per announcement made in this regard. 
accepted in India including Accounting Standards referred Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, Other Matters
1956 (the “Act”) This responsibility includes the design, 8. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had on 1stApril, 2014, vide its 
implementation and maintenance of internal control General Circular No.07/2014, Dissemination of Information with 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the regards to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as notified 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are till date vis a vis corresponding provisions of the Companies Act, 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 1956, identified such sections of the Companies Act, 1956 that 
error. would cease / continue to have effect from 1st April 2014.

Auditors' Responsibility Accordingly, in terms of the aforesaid Circular, our reporting in 
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these respect of section 227(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 1956, and 

standalone financial statements based on our audit. We Clauses (iii), (v) (a) and (b), (vi), (viii), (xiv), (xviii) of the 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Companies (Auditor Report) Order, 2003 (dealing with sections 
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 49, 58A, 58AA, 209(1)(d) and 301 of the Companies Act, 1956) is 
of India. Those Standards require that we comply with only for the period beginning from 1st October 2013 to 31st March, 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 2014 since as per the aforesaid MCA Circular, these sections 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial have ceased to have effect from 01st April, 2014.
statements are free from material misstatement. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 9. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003, as 
evidence, about the amounts and disclosures in the amended by the Companies (Auditor's Report) (Amendment) 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on Order, 2004, issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the of Section 227(4A) of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk records of the Company as we considered appropriate and 
assessments, the auditors consider internal control according to the information and explanations given to us, we give 
relevant to the Company's preparation and fair in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 10.  As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that :
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an (a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of purpose of our audit;
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial examination of those books; 
statements. (c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit books of account;
opinion. 
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(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and material. 
Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report (iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in the Company has  granted  unsecured loan to a company 
Section 211(3C) of the Act; covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the 

 (e)  On the basis of written representations received from the Companies Act, 1956 and total amount of Rs.285 lacs was 
directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record by the outstanding as on 31.03.2015.  (Previous Year  Nil)
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as (b) In our opinion and according to the information and 
on 31 March, 2015, from being appointed as a director in explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the said 
terms of Section 274(1)(g) of the Act [corresponding loan given by the company were not prima facie prejudicial to 
Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013]. interest of the company.

(c) and (d) In our opinion and according to the information and 
              For Mehrotra & Mehrotra explanation given to us, the repayment of principal and 

interest was not due during the year and there was no Chartered Accountants
overdue amount of principal and interest at the year end. (FRN - 0226C)

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has taken unsecured loans from three parties CA. Rajesh Jhalani
covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Partner 
Companies Act, 1956 and a sum of Rs.154 lacs was (M.No. 074809) 
outstanding as on 31.03.2015. (Previous Year - Rs.154 lacs) Place : Lucknow

(f) to (g) In our opinion and according to the information and Date :  28th May, 2015
explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the said 
loan taken by the company are not prime facie prejudicial to ANNEXURE TO DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' 
interest of the Company. Further, the repayment of these REPORT REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH (9) OF OUR 
loans is not due hence no repayment was made during the REPORT OF EVEN DATE
year. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations Re: K.M. Sugar Mills Ltd. for the period ended 31st March, 2015
given to us, there is adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its (i) (a) The Company has generally maintained records to 
business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for show particulars, including quantitative details and 
sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our situation of fixed assets.    
examination of the books and records of the Company, and (b) The Fixed Assets of the Company have been 
according to the information and explanations given to us, we physically verified by the management during the 
have neither come across nor have been informed of any year in accordance with a regular programme of 
continuing failure to correct major weakness in the internal control verification, which, in our opinion, provides for 
system.physical verification of all the assets at reasonable 

(v) In respect of contracts or arrangements entered in the Register intervals. Accordingly to the information and 
maintained in pursuance of section 301 of the Companies Act explanation given to us, no material discrepancies 
1956, to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the were noticed on such verification.  
information and explanations given to us:(c) In our opinion and according to information given to 
a) The particulars in respect of certain contracts or us, the Company has not disposed off any 

arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Companies substantial part of fixed assets during the year and 
Act, 1956 that needed to be entered in the register hence, going concern status of the company is not 
maintained under that section, have been so entered.affected.

b) As far as we could ascertain on the basis of our selective (ii) (a) As explained to us, the inventory has been physically 
checking and according to the information and explanations verified by the management to the extent practicable 
given to us, the transaction made in pursuance to aforesaid at reasonable intervals during the year.
contracts or arrangements have been made at the prevailing (b) In our opinion and according to information and 
market prices at the relevant time.  explanations given to us, the procedures for physical 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the verification of the inventories followed by the 
Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the management are reasonable and adequate in 
year. Hence, provisions of section 58A & 58AA or any other relation to the size of the Company and the nature of 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and rules of its business.
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with regard to (c) On the basis of our examination of the records of 
the deposits are not applicable to the Company. inventory, we are of the opinion that the Company is 

(vii) In our opinion, the internal audit system of the company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The 
commensurate with the size and nature of the business of the discrepancies noticed on verification between the 
Company.physical stocks and the book records were not 
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cost records pursuant to the order made by Central (xi) Based on our audit procedures and as per information 
Government under Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies and explanation given to us by the management, the 
Act, 1956 regarding production have been maintained by continuing defaults in repayments of loans as on 
the Company and are of the opinion that prima-facie the 31.03.2015 are as under :
prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. Installments of Rs.1485 lacs against principal loan 
We have not, however, made a detailed examination of payable to Sugar Development Fund (SDF) and interest 
the records with a view to determine whether they are thereon of Rs.82.28 lacs are not paid in time and are 
accurate or complete. overdue. (Refer Note 2.3)

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanation given (xii) In our opinion and as per information and explanation given 
to us and the records examined by us, the undisputed to us, the Company has not granted any loans and advances 
statutory dues including provident fund, investor on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, 
education and protection fund, income tax, sales tax, debentures and other securities.
wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess (xiii) In our opinion, the company is not a chit fund, or a 
and other statutory dues applicable to the company nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore, clause 4(xiii) of 
have generally been regularly deposited with the the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2003 is not 
appropriate authority except small delays in certain applicable to the Company.
cases and no undisputed amounts payable in respect (xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st explanation given to us, the Company is not dealing or 
March, 2015 for a period of more than six months trading in shares, securities, debentures and other 
from the date of becoming payable. As informed, the investments, and hence, the requirement of Para 4(xiv) of 
provisions of the Employees State Insurance Act are the Companies (Auditors/ Report) Order, 2003 is not 
not applicable to the Company. applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanation given (xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
to us, the particulars of dues of excise duty, entry tax, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by 
central sales tax and income tax outstanding as at others from banks or financial institutions. 
31.03.2015, which have not been deposited on (xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
account of disputes, are as follows :- term loans were generally applied for the purpose for which 

the loans were obtained.
(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us 

and based on an overall examination of the balance sheet 
and other relevant records, we report that no funds raised on 
short term basis have been used for long term purposes.

(xviii) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the 
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not issued any debentures during the 
period covered by our audit.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not raised any money by way of public 
issue during the period covered by our audit.

(xxi) According to the information and explanation given to us by 
the management, we report that no fraud on or by the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit.All aforesaid dues are not accounted for in the books and 

For Mehrotra & Mehrotraare shown as contingent liabilities in Note No. 2.29 (1) of 
Chartered Accountantsthe Standalone Financial Statements except excise duty 

(FRN - 0226C)demand of Rs.1355.30 lacs raised vide order dated 
31.03.2015 has been duly provided for in the books. [Refer 

CA. Rajesh JhalaniNote 2.29 (9)]. 
Partner (x) The Company's accumulated losses as on 31.03.15 

(M.No. 074809) are of Rs.4079.23 lacs, which is not less than 50% of 
its net worth. The Company has not incurred cash Place: Lucknow
losses during the current financial year as well as in Date:  28th May, 2015

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount 
(Rs. In 
lacs)

 

 Forum, where the 
dispute is pending

 
Entry Tax Act Entry Tax

 
2007-08

 
 

 
   

0.04

 
 

Commercial Tax 
Tribunal, Faizabad

 
 

Central Excise Act Excise Duty 

 

F.Y 2005-2006

 
 

FY 2006-07

 
 

FY 2007-08

 
 

July, 2007 to June 
2012

 

including 
penalty

 
 

July, 2012 to March, 
2013 including 
penalty

 

11.46

      
  

   

467.30

 
 

22.40

 
 

2237.16

 
 
 
 
 

473.43

 

Joint Commissioner

  
 

CESTAT

 
 

CESTAT

 
 

Appeal is yet to be 
filed

 
 

 
 

Appeal is yet to be 
filed

Income Tax Act A.Y. 2010-2011
A.Y 2011-2012
A.Y 2012-2013

7198.21
7460.05
8087.76

CIT(A) 
CIT(A)
CIT (A)
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015 

 
       
     
       

As per our report of even date attached hereto
For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.0226C

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

       
       
              

    

L K Jhunjhunwala
Chairman

CA. Rajesh Jhalani
Partner
M.No.74809

Place: Lucknow
Date: 28.05.2015

S. C. Agarwal          
Executive Director       

A K Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Rajeev Kumar
Company  Secretary

      

(Amount in Rs.)

Previous  Year

  

 

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

Rs.              P.
    P A R T I C U L A R S                           

Notes 
No.

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds

(a)   Share Capital               
(b)   Reserves & Surplus                      

2. Non-current liabilities
(a)   Long term borrowings
(b)   Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(c)   Other Long term liabilities                 
(d)   Long term provisions

3. Current liabilities
(a)   Short term borrowings
(b)   Trade payables
(c)   Other current liabilities                 
(d)   Short term provisions

Total

II. ASSETS
Non-current assets

1. (a) Fixed Assets 
    (i)  Tangible Assets
   (ii)   Intangibile assets
   (iii)  Capital Work-in-Progress                

(b) Non current investments
(c) Long term loans and advances
(d) Other non current assets

2. Current Assets                           
(a) Inventories
(b) Trade receivables
(c) Cash and cash equivalents
(d) Short term loans and advances
(e) Other current assets

Total

Significant accounting policies
Notes on financial statements

2.1
2.2

2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6

2.7
2.8
2.9
2.10

2.11

2.12
2.13
2.14

2.15
2.16
2.17
2.18
2.19

1
2

184,000,340.00
(8,030,229.84)

342,130,932.65

     

37,762,292.00

       

2,246,321.85

         

141,529,079.00

     

 

905,220,267.54

     

1,248,579,693.96

  

408,348,873.01

     

2,755,873.00

         

648,380,852.69

     

605,349.94

            

4,857,358.00

         

1,094,300.00
         

10,405,079.59       
1,788,543.82         

1,918,644,389.93
  316,880,636.37
     40,548,189.82
       156,572,717.96

     164,766,025.05

     

175,970,110.16

523,668,625.50

     

2,564,904,707.51

  

3,264,543,443.17

  

653,843,560.63

     

13,287,923.41       

 

2,597,411,959.13

  3,264,543,443.17

  
-

184,000,340.00
(83,349,063.99)

338,326,890.70

     

32,835,473.00

       

2,246,321.85

         

25,335,542.00

       

 

588,242,088.73

     

139,244,305.83

     

301,515,942.61

     

1,847,688.00

         

508,026,045.31

     

43,452.50

              

44,394,553.75

       

1,021,300.00
         

25,379,879.64       
1,879,215.82         

766,366,880.96
     85,902,712.06
       28,082,749.29

       62,348,789.40

       6,799,950.00

         

100,651,276.01

398,744,227.55

       

1,030,850,025.17

     

1,530,245,528.73

     

552,464,051.56

       

28,280,395.46         

 

949,501,081.71

       1,530,245,528.73
-

Rs.              P.Rs.              P.Rs.              P.

Current Year
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Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ended on 31st March, 2015

                                    
         
 

Previous  YearCurrent Year

    P A R T I C U L A R S                           
18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Rs.         P.

Year ended
30th September, 2013

     

Notes 
No.

Rs.         P.

I. Revenue from operations (Gross) 2.20
Less: Excise duty and cess
Revenue from operations (net)

II. Other Income 2.21

III. Total Revenue (I + II)

IV. Expenes
  Cost of material consumed 2.22
  Purchase of Stock in trade 2.23
  Change in inventory of finished goods, work in progress and 
stock in trade 2.24

  Employee benefits expenses 2.25
  Finance costs 2.26
  Depreciation and amortization expense 2.27
  Other expenses 2.28

Total expenses

V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III-IV)
VI. Exceptional items

 VII. Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (V-VI)
VIII. Extraordinary item

 IX. Profit/(Loss) before tax (VII-VIII)
X. Tax expense

  (1) Current Tax
  (2) Deferred Tax

XI. Profit/(Loss) for the year (IX-X)
XII. Earning per equity share (Nominal value of Rs.2 each)

  (1) Basic (Rs. Per share)
  (2) Diluted (Rs. Per share)

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes on financial statements 2

5,690,558,151.39         
186,073,938.00            

5,504,484,213.39         
71,060,051.42              

5,575,544,264.81         

5,035,076,427.22         
447,690,277.00

            

(1,098,228,982.00)
145,409,327.37

            141,366,457.95
            142,648,682.91
            671,446,166.97
            

5,485,408,357.42
         

90,135,907.39
-

                              90,135,907.39
-

                              90,135,907.39

10,317,324.00

              4,926,819.00

                74,891,764.39

0.81
0.81

2,825,352,789.97         
99,473,654.08              

2,725,879,135.89             
25,442,152.33                  

2,751,321,288.22             

2,602,737,488.06             
-

                                  

(505,455,945.50)
83,433,912.29

                  128,903,774.03
                90,118,028.44
                  223,620,639.79
                

2,623,357,897.11
             

127,963,391.11
-

                                  127,963,391.11
-

                                  127,963,391.11

-

                                  1,947,121.00

                    126,016,270.11

1.37
1.37

Rs.         P.Rs.         P.

      
    
      

As per our report of even date attached hereto
For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.0226C

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

       
       
              

L K Jhunjhunwala
Chairman

CA. Rajesh Jhalani
Partner
M.No.74809

Place: Lucknow
Date: 28.05.2015

S. C. Agarwal          
Executive Director       

A K Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Rajeev Kumar
Company  Secretary
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Note: Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.

As per our report of even date attached hereto For & on bahalf of Board of Directors
For Mehrotra & Mehrotra
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.0226C

Rajesh Jhalani S. C. Agarwal          L K Jhunjhunwala
Partner Executive Director       Chairman
M.No.74809

Date : 28.05.2015 A K Gupta Rajeev Kumar
Place : Lucknow Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

       Cash Flow Statement for the 18 months ended 31st March, 2015

C
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18 months ended 31st March, 15 Year ended 30th September, 13

P A R T I C U L A R S
                            

Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
       

Rs.               P.
        
                                   

                               

          
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax and exceptional items

Adjustment for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Transfer to storage fund for molasses
Provision/reversal of doubtful debts
Balances written off

 

Interest income 
Profit on sale of fixed assets 
Unspent liabilities/balances written back  
Storage fund for molasses written back

 

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for :

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables & Others
Cash Generated from Operations
Direct Tax Paid
Net Cash From Operating Activities (A)

Cash Flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Purchase of shares of subsidiary
Interest income received

B. Net Cash From Investing Activities

Cash Flow From Financing activities

Proceeds/(repayments) of long term borrowings
Proceeds/(repayments) of short term borrowings
Finance cost paid

1426.49
1413.66

10.57
(271.46)

0.61
(135.33)
(22.47)
(0.25)

-

(4410.17)
(11522.77)
13422.14

(2675.31)
251.18

(0.73)
135.33

133.15
3169.78

(1597.96)

901.18
1289.04

6.57
57.79
13.40

(126.37)
(1.07)
(1.60)
(5.00)

(151.73)
(5411.17)

827.62

(592.68)
1.34
-

126.37

(1846.04)
4587.42
(956.85)

C. Net Cash From Financing Activities

Net increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

D. Opening cash and cash equivalents
E. Closing cash and cash equivalents

Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (D-E)

901.36

                

                  

2421.82

3323.18

(2510.80)
(103.17)
709.21

(2289.53)

1704.97

124.65

280.83
405.48

124.65

1279.63

2133.94

3413.57

(4735.28)
-

(1321.71)

                 

(464.97)

1784.53

(2.15)

282.98
280.83

(2.15)
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1. Significant Accounting Policies
Intangible assets: Computer software is amortized over a period of 

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements four years.  

These financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis b) Revenue Recognition and Expenses
of accounting, under the historical cost convention except for 
revaluation of certain Fixed Assets, in accordance with the i. Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when 
Companies Act, 1956 and the applicable Accounting the property in goods is transferred to the buyer for a 
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of consideration. Revenue from service transaction is 
India. There is no change in the system of accounting as being recognized as the service is performed. 
consistently followed from earlier years unless otherwise 
stated. ii. Insurance claims have been accounted for on cash basis 

as per past practice.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-
current as per company's normal operating cycle and other iii. Revenue from certified emission reductions (CERs) and 
criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. renewable emission certificate (REC) is recognized on 
Based on the nature of operations and time between cash basis in the absence of reasonable assurance that 
procurement of raw material and realization in cash and cash future economic benefits will flow from the same to the 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle company.
as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities. iv. All the expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

1.2 Use of Estimates c) Inventories are valued as under:

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with i. Raw Materials and Finished Goods (except molasses) 
GAPP requires management to make estimates and are carried at lower of cost or net realizable value.
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and ii. Stock of Molasses are carried at net realizable value.
liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at iii. Stores & Spares are carried at cost.
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of iv. Goods in Process / WIP is carried at lower of cost or net 
income and expenditure during the period. Management realizable Value. 
believes that the estimates made in the preparation of the v. Banked power with UPPCL is carried at lower of cost or 
financial statements are prudent and reliable. Actual results net realizable value.
might differ from the estimates. Difference between the actual  
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which Cost of inventory comprises of purchase price, cost of conversion 
results are known/materialized. and other cost that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to 

their respective present location and condition. Interest cost are not 
1.3 Significant Accounting Policies included in value of inventory. 

a) Fixed  Assets Cost for the purpose of valuations of raw material and components, 
stores & spares are considered on following basis:

i) Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of cenvat 
credit and/or at revalued price less accumulated Manufacturing Units Basis
depreciation. All costs including financing costs relating 
to borrowing till commencement of commercial Sugar
production attributable to the fixed assets are capitalized. - Raw Material First in First Out

- Stores & Spares and other components Weighted monthly average 
ii) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down - Trading Goods                                  First in First Out

value method at the rates and the manner prescribed in  
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. The additional Distillery
depreciation, on increase in cost on account of - Raw Material First in First Out  
revaluation, is transferred to statement of Profit & Loss - Stores & Spares Other components Weighted monthly average
from Revaluation Reserve and is thus not charged to  
statement of Profit & Loss of the year. Co-generation 

- Raw Material First in First Out
iii) Tangible Fixed Assets costing up to Rs.5,000/- are being         

depreciated fully in the year of their put to use.       
d) Investments

iv) Depreciation/amortization on assets added, sold or 
discarded during the year is provided on pro-rata basis. Long term Investments are carried at cost. However, provision for 

diminution is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in the 
v) Intangible assets expected to provide future enduring value of investment, if any. Current Investment is carried at cost or 

economic benefits are recorded at the consideration paid market value, whichever is lower.
for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost of 
acquisition less accumulated amortization and 
impairment, if any. 

Notes forming part of Financial Statement
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e) Employees Benefits twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified 
as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an 

(i)  Short term employee benefits obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the 
         employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The 
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial 
employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. valuation using the projected unit credit method.
These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. 
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the 
paid in exchange for employee services are recognized as an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year 
expense as the related service is rendered by employees. in which the related service is rendered.

(ii) Post employment benefits f) Borrowing Costs 
 
Defined contribution plans : Borrowing costs attributable to the qualifying assets are capitalized 
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under up to the period such assets are ready for the intended use and 
which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and commenced commercial production. All other borrowing cost is 
has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The company makes charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the period in which they 
specified monthly contributions towards provident fund. The are incurred.
Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the 
statement of profit and loss during the period in which employee g) Government Grants
renders the related service.

Government Grants in the nature of Government promoters' 
Defined benefit plan : contribution, i e. which have reference to the total investment in an 
The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. undertaking or by way of contribution towards total capital outlay, are 
The Company's net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is credited to capital reserve.
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that   
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and h) Financial Derivatives and Commodity Hedging 
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present Transactions
value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

Financial Derivatives and commodity hedging contracts are 
The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan accounted for on the date of their settlement and realized gain/loss 
is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit in respect of settled contracts are recognized in the Statement of 
Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving Profit & Loss, along with the underlying transactions.
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures 
each unit separately to build up the final obligation. i) Foreign Currency Transactions 

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated a) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are 
future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign 
on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance currency at the year end are translated at year end rates.
sheet date.

b) Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost 
When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the 
recognized asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognized exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 
actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of any 
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to c) In respect of monetary items which are covered by 
the plan. forward exchange contracts, the difference between the 

year end and the rate on the date of contract is recognized 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the as exchange difference and the premium on such forward 
statement of profit and loss. contracts is recognized over the life of the forward 

contract. 
(iii) Long term employment benefits
 d) The exchange differences arising on settlement / 
The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employment translation are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned Loss. 
in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The 
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is j) Taxes on Income 
discounted to its present value and the fair value of any related 
assets is deducted. The discount rates used for determining the i. Tax on income for the current period is determined on the 
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based basis of taxable income computed in accordance with the 
on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
sheet date.
 ii. Deferred Tax is recognized on timing differences between 
(iv) Compensated absences accounting income and taxable income for the period, 
 and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or 
The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.
compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or 
receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since iii. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only to the extent 
the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the income will be available against which such deferred tax 
related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within assets can be realized. Deferred Tax Assets in respect to 
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... brought forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation is 
recognized only to the extent that there is a virtual n) Segment Reporting
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be Primary Segment
realized.

Based on the guiding principles given in the Accounting Standard-
k) Impairment of Assets 17 “Segment Reporting” issued by ICAI, the Company's segments 

are Sugar, Power Generation and Distillery.
Impairment of individual assets/cash generating unit (a group of 
assets that generates identified independent cash flows) are Revenue and expenses have been accounted for on the basis of 
identified using external and internal sources of information and their relationship to the operating activities of the respective 
impairment loss if any, is determined and recognized in accordance segment.
with the Accounting Standard 28 issued in this regard by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Segment Identification

l) Leases Business segments have been identified on the basis of the nature 
of products/ services, the risk return profile of individual business, 

Assets acquired as leases where a significant portion of the risks the organizational structure and the internal reporting system of the 
and rewards of the ownership are retained by the lessor are company.
classified as operating leases. Lease rentals are charged to the 
Statement of Profit & Loss on accrual basis. o) Excise duty in respect of finished goods held in stock has 

been accounted for at the end of the year and is included in the 
m) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets value of closing stock. 

i. Provision is recognized in respect of obligations where, p) Earning Per Share
based on the evidence available, their existence at the 
Balance Sheet date is considered probable. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) 

after tax (including the post tax effect of extra ordinary items, if any) 
ii. Provision is recognized in the accounts in respect of by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

present probable obligations, the amount of which can be during the year.
reliably estimated. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) 
iii. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible after tax (including the post tax effect of extra ordinary items, if any) 

obligations that arise from past events but their existence by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
is confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average 
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the number of equity shares which could be issued on the conversion of 
control of the Company. all dilutive potential equity shares. 

iv. A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial q) Cash Flow Statement
statements. Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit 

before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 
v. Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 

balance sheet date. receipts or payment and item of income or expenses associated 
with investing or financing flows. The cash flows operating, investing 
and financing activities of the company are segregated. 
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As at 31-March-2015
Rs.                   P.

As at 30-September-2013
Rs.                   P.

a. General Reserve
Balance as per last account 122,019,139.87      

122,019,139.87

b. Capital Reserve
Balance as per last account 4,833,000.00

         4,833,000.00

c. Initial Depreciation Reserve
Balance as per last account 172,449.73

            

172,449.73

d. Molasses Storage Fund
Balance as per last account 4,058,541.10

         

3,901,638.15

         

Less: Withdrwal/reversal during the year -

                         

500,000.00

            

Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit & Loss 4,400,000.00

         

-

                        

Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 1,057,480.00

         

716,021.10

            

656,902.95

            

4,058,541.10

 

e. Fixed Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance as per last account 2,741,510.05

         

3,237,876.52

         

Less: Utilised for set off against depreciation 630,410.24

            

2,111,099.81

         

496,366.47

            

2,741,510.05

f. Sugar Price Equalisation Reserve
Balance as per last account 1,239,508.05

         

1,239,508.05

g. Securities Premium Account
Balance as per last account 268,801,428.00 268,801,428.00

h. Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as per last account (487,214,640.79) (613,230,910.90)
Add: Transfer from Molasses Storage Fund 4,400,000.00 -
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the current year 74,891,764.39 (407,922,876.40) 126,016,270.11 (487,214,640.79)

TOTAL (8,030,229.84) (83,349,063.99)

Note 2.1 - Share Capital

 
Current Year Previous  Year

Note 2.2 - Reserves and Surplus

Current Year Previous  Year

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.2 per share. Each holder of Equity 
Share is entitled to one vote per share. No dividend has been proposed.

             

Molasses Storage Fund has been created to meet the cost of construction of molasses storage tank as required under Uttar Pradesh
Sheera Niyantran (Sansodhan) Adesh, 1974 and the storage fund is represented by investment in the form of deposit in saving bank
account with a bank amounting to Rs.19.93 lacs (Previous year Rs.8.91 lacs)

AUTHORISED

100,000,000 Equity Shares  of  Rs. 2/- each 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP

92,000,170 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 

TOTAL

As at 30-September-2013
Rs.                   P.

200,000,000.00

184,000,340.00

184,000,340.00

a. Reconciliation of Number of Shares
Amount

Shares outstanding as at 1st October, 2013 184,000,340

 

Shares outstanding as at 31st March, 2015 184,000,340

As at 31-March-2015
Rs.                   P.

200,000,000.00

     184,000,340.00

     

 

184,000,340.00

     

No. of shares

                     

92,000,170

92,000,170

                      

b. List of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the
total number of shares issued by the company:

No. of shares % shareholding No. of shares % shareholding
Name of the shareholder
L K Jhunjhunwala 5602600 6.09 5602600 6.09
P C Jhunjhunwala 9946600 10.81 9944100 10.81
L K Jhunjhunwala (HUF) 10065900 10.94 10065900 10.94
Marvel Business Pvt. Ltd. 12450951 13.53 12450951 13.53

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013
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State Bank of India SEFASU loan 0.75 -  95,940,822  26,640,822  32,040,000  37,260,000  

Punjab National Bank SEFASU loan 0.00 2,053,000 71,847,000  24,636,000  24,636,000  22,575,000  

Punjab National Bank 11.00 7,376,000
 

42,000,805
 

14,760,000
 

17,560,000
 

9,680,805
 

Allahabad Bank 11.50 20,450,000
 

116,942,306
 

40,850,000
 

48,600,000
 
27,492,306

 

Punjab National Bank -FITL New 10.50 21,064,307

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-  

Allahabad Bank - FITL 11.00 10,765,168

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-
 

Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India 4.00 148,500,000

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Unsecured loan -

 

-

 

15,400,000

 

-

 

-

 

15,400,000

 
Total 210,208,475

 

342,130,933

 

106,886,822

 

122,836,000

 

112,408,111

 

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013
Rs.                   P. Rs.                   P.

Current Non current Current Non current

Term loans
From Banks
Secured

a. State Bank of India  - SEFASU Loan -

                         

95,940,822.00

       

- -
b. Punjab National Bank  - SEFASU Loan 2,053,000.00

         

71,847,000.00

       

- -
c. Punjab National Bank  - Cogen loan -

                         

-

                       

- 69,638,611.16
d. Punjab National Bank  7,376,000.00

         

42,000,805.00

       

625,000.00 49,879,941.00
e. Allahabad Bank 20,450,000.00

       

116,942,305.65

     

1,750,000.00 139,156,743.00
f. Punjab National Bank - FITL Old -

                         

-

                       

952,199.00 -
g. Punjab National Bank - FITL New 21,064,307.00

       

-

                       

21,067,732.00 31,601,598.00
h. Allahabad Bank - FITL 10,765,168.42

       

-

                       

13,459,002.00 16,149,997.54
Total A 61,708,475.42

       

326,730,932.65

     

37,853,933.00 306,426,890.70

From other entities
Secured

a. Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India 148,500,000.00

     

-

                       

132,000,000.00 16,500,000.00
b. Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India (Modernisation) - - 5,843,400.00 -
c. Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India (Cane Development) - - 12,500,000.00 -
d. Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India (Modernisation) - - 12,500,000.00 -

Total B 148,500,000.00 - 162,843,400.00 16,500,000.00

From related parties
Unsecured loan - 15,400,000.00 - 15,400,000.00
Total C - 15,400,000.00 - 15,400,000.00

TOTAL (A+B+C) 210,208,475.42 342,130,932.65 200,697,333.00 338,326,890.70

Note 2.3 - Long Term Borrowings

P A R T I C U L A R S

a. Nature of Securities
i. Rupee Term Loan of State Bank of India and Punjab National Bank (SEFASU) are secured by residual charge on entire fixed assets and current assets of the company, present and 

future, on pari passu basis with other term lenders under scheme for extending Financial Assistance to Sugar Undertakings 2014 (SEAFSU).
ii. Punjab National Bank cogen loan is secured by first charge on entire fixed assets of the company on pari passu basis with other term lenders, personal guarantee of two directors, 

pledge of shares and corporate guarantee of a company.
iii. Rupee Term Loan of Punjab National Bank and Allahabad Bank are secured by 4th charge on entire fixed assets of the company on pari passu basis with other term lenders, personal 

guarantee of two directors, pledge of shares and and corporate guarantee of a company.
iv. FITL of Punjab National Bank and Allahabad Bank are secured by first charge on entire fixed assets of the company on pari passu basis with other term lenders, personal guarantee of 

two directors, pledge of shares and corporate guarantee of a company.
v. Rupee Term Loan from SDF are secured by second charge on Company's immovable and movable properties both present and future.
vi. Unsecured loan from related parties represent promoters contribution as per CDR approval.

b. Terms of repayment

 
Current Year Previous  Year

                                                 

1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years and above
Interest

Name of the banks / entities Rate % Current Non Current
Rs. Rs.

                                                                                         

                                                            

                                                                                         

Amount Outstanding 
as on 31 March, 2015

a.Rate of interest has been disclosed for loans which are outstanding on balance sheet date and in case of default, penal interest are charged as per sanction.
b.Interest sub-vention to the extent of 12% on SEFASU loan from State Bank of India and Punjab National Bank is to be funded by Central Government. 
State Bank of India SEFASU Loan is at 12.75%.
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Note 2.4 - Deferred tax liabilities

Note 2.5 - Other long term liabilities

        
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            

                            

         
         

       
As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

P A R T I C U L A R S
                            

Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
       

Rs.               P.
        
                                   

Refer note no. 2.29 (8)

*Refer note no. 2.29 (7)

Note 2.6 - Long term provisions

                        
   

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                                 

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013
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Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation 78,485,177.00       98,250,928.00          

Deferred Tax Assets
Carried forward losses 19,249,201.00       24,734,277.00       
Expenses allowable for tax purpose when paid 21,473,684.00

       
40,722,885.00

       
40,681,178.00

       
65,415,455.00

          

TOTAL 37,762,292.00

       

32,835,473.00

          

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

Rs.                   P. Rs.                   P.

Loan from UP Government * 1,450,000.00         1,450,000.00            

Others 796,321.85            796,321.85               

Total 2,246,321.85         2,246,321.85            

Provisions for employees benefit
     Unavailed leave         
     Gratuity                            

Other Provision including Excise duty               

TOTAL     

        
5,999,320.00         

135,529,759.00 

141,529,079.00          

5,223,535.00 

20,112,007.00 

25,335,542.00 

2,457,664.00 
3,541,656.00 

2,419,768.00 
2,803,767.00 
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Note 2.7 - Short term borrowings
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...

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

             

Summary of short term borrowings

Secured borrowings

Nature of Securities

i. Working capital loans from State Bank of India is secured by way of hypothecation and first pari passu charge on stocks 
of sugar, molasses, consumable stores / spares, industrial alcohal, book debts and other current assets of the company, 
third pari passu charge with other working  capital lenders on entire fixed assets and all other movable and immovable 
assets of the company (existing & future), personal guarantee of three Directors, pledge of shares and corporate 
guarantee of a company.

ii. Working capital loan from Punjab National Bank is secured by pledge of stock of Crystal sugar, third pari passu charge 
with other working capital capital lenders on entire fixed assets and all other movable and immovable assets of the 
company (existing & future), personal guarantee of two Directors, pledge of shares and corporate guarantee of a 
company.         

iii. Working capital loans from The Federal Bank Ltd. is secured by way of hypothecation and first pari passu charge on 
stocks of sugar, molasses, consumable stores / spares, industrial alcohal, book debts and other current assets of the 
company, third pari passu charge with other working capital lenders on entire fixed assets and all other movable and 
immovable assets of the company (existing & future), personal guarantee of two  Directors, pledge of shares and 
corporate guarantee of a company.

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

Loan repayable on demand
Working capital loans
From banks
Secured

a. State Bank of India
b. Punjab National Bank
c. The Federal Bank Ltd.

       
904,179,427.54

     
587,201,248.73

        
Other Loans and advances
Unsecured
From Others 1,040,840.00

         

1,040,840.00

            
TOTAL 905,220,267.54     588,242,088.73        

452,485,753.14
     373,310,328.30
     78,383,346.10

349,465,814.63
     233,772,463.00
     3,962,971.10
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Note 2.8 - Trade Payables
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Note 2.9 - Other current liabilities

       Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
 

P A R T I C U L A R S
                                     

         

* Refer note no.2.3 (a), (b) & (c) for nature of securities and terms of repayment respectively.
** Include Excise Duty and Cess on closing stock.

Note 2.10 - Short term provisions

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

       Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
 

P A R T I C U L A R S
                            

                            

         
         

        

           
                     

* Includes Rs.12.59 lacs due to micro and small enterprises. [Refer note no.2.29 (14)]

Trade payable (Other than acceptance)* 1,248,579,693.96       

Total 1,248,579,693.96       

           

              

139,244,305.83           

139,244,305.83

          

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

           

           

i. Current maturities of long term debt* 210,208,475.42     200,697,333.00        
ii. Payable to capital goods supplier 7,231,982.04         5,330,539.65            
iii. Staturory liabilities ** 102,871,293.28     29,477,816.85          
iv. Advances from Customers 20,207,225.72       2,863,382.57            
v. Interest accrued but not due on borrowings -                        2,167,496.42            
vi. Interest accrued and due on borrowings 8,289,148.00         24,551,972.93          
vii. Security Deposits 30,789,828.32       15,602,729.52          
viii. Outstanding liability of related party 9,504,471.61         1,550,554.94            
ix. Salary and other payables to employees 9,972,711.52         9,593,725.06            
x. Others 9,273,737.10         9,680,391.67            

TOTAL 408,348,873.01
     

301,515,942.61
       
 

Provision for employee benefit - 
     Unavailed leave 177,317.00            200,631.00            
     Gratuity 2,578,556.00

         
2,755,873.00

         
1,647,057.00

         
1,847,688.00

For Income Tax -
                        

-

TOTAL 2,755,873.00 1,847,688.00
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a.

K M Energy P Ltd.

                Chamoli Hydro Power (P) Ltd.
Other Investments

b.
Reliance  Industries  Ltd.
Reliance Communication Ltd.
Reliance Infrastructure Ltd.
Reliance Capital Ltd.
Reliance Power Ltd.

10

10
10

10
5

10
10
10

25,000

7,300

1,000

84
42
3
2

10

                    

73,000.00

                    

10,000.00

                  

1,000,000.00

                         

5,876.00

                         

4,373.00

                           

825.00

                           

147.00
79.00

1,094,300.00

                 
                 
                    
                    

              

-

              

1,000

         

25,000

84
42
3
2

10

 

-

 

10,000.00

 

1,000,000.00

5,876.00
4,373.00

825.00
147.00
79.00

1,021,300.00

Unquoted (valued at cost)

Chamoli Hydro Power (P) Ltd.

Aggregate market value of listed and quoted investments 

Subsidiary company:

Others:

In equity shares of companies fully paid up

K M Shakar Karkhana Pvt Ltd

In equity shares of companies fully paid up

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments Rs.10,83,000/-

 

Total 

Rs.74,478/- (Previous year Rs.76,461/-)

Non Trade Investments

Quoted (valued at cost)

Aggregate amount of quoted investments Rs.11,300/-

Note 2.12 - Non-current Investments

                    
                  

                         
                         
                           
                           
                         

Rs.No. of sharesRs.No. of shares

                                    
         
 

    P A R T I C U L A R S                           
     

Face
Value

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

      Note 2.13 Long-term loans and advances 
(unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

As at 31st March, 2015 As at 30th September, 2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013
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Capital advances                        
Security deposits                     Other loans and advances
    Advance to suppliers and others
            Considered Good                   
            Considered doubtful
            Less: Allowance for doubtful advance

 
            Income Tax payments 
           (Net of provision Rs.103.17 lacs previous year Rs.Nil)

            Duties and taxes paid under protest

158,000.00
3,867,594.46

 
 
 

 
 6,379,485.13

10,405,079.59

9,795,931.20
4,129,994.46

         
       
       
         
         

11,453,953.98

25,379,879.64Total

-

                        31,357,798.21

      
31,357,449.72

      
348.49

                  
5,637,906.64

        741,230.00

5,216,800.00
26,140,713.06
26,140,649.72
5,216,863.34
5,526,599.64

710,491.00



55

      Note 2.14 Other non-current assets 
(unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

       Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
                                      
         

Refer note no. 2.29 (7)

 
P A R T I C U L A R S

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.
        
                                   

      Note 2.15 Inventories (valued at lower of cost 
and net realisable value, unless stated otherwise)

            Refer note no. 1.3 significant accounting policies

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.
        
                                   

      Note 2.16 Trade receivables (unsecured, considered good)

       

 

             

       

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

N
o
te

s
 fo

rm
in

g
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rt o

f fin
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1,450,000.00
         

1,450,000.00
            -

                        
90,672.00

                Others 338,543.82
            

338,543.82
               

1,788,543.82

         

1,879,215.82

            

 
Fixed deposits with banks (Non current portion with original maturity
period of more than 12 months)
       For a loan held by District Magistrate, Faizabad*

Total

 Interest accrued but not due

       Molasses in Distillery Division 23,170,500.00
       

19,944,983.00
       Rectified Spirit 13,859,139.00

       
-

Work-in-progress
        Biocompost 211,456.00

            

211,456.00

            

-
 Finished goods
       Sugar 1,654,485,719.00

  

667,971,292.00
       Molasses 119,911,050.00

     

24,019,329.00
        Industrial Alcohal 43,787,150.00

       

6,920,115.00
       Country liquor 1,031,722.00

         

-
       Bagasse 15,414,528.00 2,989,490.00
       Banked power 3,701,552.00 805,448.00
       Carbon credit - 728,797.00
       Pressmud 64,616.00 1,838,396,337.00 - 703,434,471.00
Stores and spares 43,006,957.93 42,987,426.96

1,918,644,389.93 766,366,880.96Total

Raw materials

   a. Considered good
   b. Considered doubtful

   Less: Provision for doubtful debts 42,482,214.88       

274,398,421.49
     

316,880,636.37
               

7,615,045.52
            

78,287,666.54
          

85,902,712.06
          

Trade receivables outstanding for a period 
exceeding 6 months from due date

Other trade receivables- considered good

Total

42,482,126.59       
3,626,938.07         

46,109,064.66       
3,626,849.78         

7,615,045.52         
35,990,054.00       
43,605,099.52       
35,990,054.00
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Note 2.17  Cash and cash equivalents
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P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

Note 2.18 Short-term loans and advances 
(unsecured, considered good)

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

Note 2.19  Other current assets (unsecured, considered good)

       Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
 

P A R T I C U L A R S
                                     

         

          

                 

 

 

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 30-September-2013As at 31-March-2015

Balances with banks
      In current accounts
      In EEFC account
Cheques on hand
Cash on hand

        
             

Molasses storage fund in S/B account (Earmarked)

 
 

20,860,008.96
1,711,775.00
2,202,853.28

 
 

13,780,973.00
1,992,579.58

40,548,189.82

       

       
            

21,274,788.06
1,852,250.00

844,269.65

 

         
         

3,219,973.00
891,468.58

28,082,749.29

Fixed deposit for Bank guarantee deposited with bank as 
margin money -Earmarked

      Original maturity period more than 12 months

      Original maturity period upto 12 months

Total

20,856,753.96       
3,255.00

               

3,219,973.00
10,561,000.00

21,123,998.06

       
150,790.00

         
         

1,500,000.00
1,719,973.00

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

Loan and advances to related parties
       Considered good                  
Security deposits                    
Other loans and advances
      Advance to suppliers and others
      Advance to employees
      Cenvat, Vat and other taxes/duties
       Prepaid expenses
       Others              

    

28,500,000.00 
5,889,756.85 

122,182,961.11 

156,572,717.96           

 
 

 

5,430,879.80 
5,912,856.85 

51,005,052.75 

62,348,789.40 
 
Total

101,103,473.75
1,517,754.89 

14,271,812.50 
5,003,988.00 

285,931.97 

39,755,189.30       
1,911,206.10         
8,094,360.85         
1,073,692.50         

170,604.00            

Refer note no. 2.29 (10)

1,225,036.89         342,965.00               
138,293,001.16     -                            
25,247,987.00       6,456,985.00            

164,766,025.05     6,799,950.00            

Interest accrued / receivable
Cane Price and Commission receivable*
Others

Total
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Note 2.20 Revenue from operations
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Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.P A R T I C U L A R S

Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.21 Other income

P A R T I C U L A R S

Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.22  Cost of materials consumed

P A R T I C U L A R S

* Refer note no.2.29 (10) 

Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.23  Purchases of stock-in-trade

P A R T I C U L A R S        

    

Sugar

Total

 

  
     

         

  
      

- 

- 

 

 

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

Sale of goods (Gross)
       Sugar (Including trading Rs.4893.95 lacs Previous year Rs. Nil)
       Molasses
       Power 
       Industrial alcohol 

       Bagasse sale
       Bio compost manure

      Country liquor

Revenue from operations (Gross)
 Less : Excise duty, cess and administrative charges on sale of goods

Revenue from operations (Net)

4,474,097,303.00
-

416,771,040.00
554,178,678.00
83,349,749.14

160,406,329.25
1,755,052.00

5,690,558,151.39
186,073,938.00

5,504,484,213.39

  
2,324,898,925.55

                       
1,200,661.33

     
239,506,757.09

     

258,719,911.00
-
-

1,026,535.00      
     
        

2,825,352,789.97
99,473,654.08

2,725,879,135.89

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

Interest income
       Fixed deposits with banks
       Others  
 Other non-operating income
     Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations

                 Insurance claims  

        
     Profit on sale of fixed assets 

        
     Unspent liabilities/balances written back  

             
     Carbon credit/REC receipt

      

     Miscellaneous income

      

     Prior period income
     Provision for doubtful debts reversal

1,734,567.89        
11,798,554.00      

581,648.50
1,318,219.00
2,247,045.00

25,000.00
15,416,220.00
10,067,543.03

-
27,871,254.00
71,060,051.42          

 850,342.07
11,786,589.09

5,803,076.00
144,437.00
106,608.21

 

160,002.43
-

4,026,998.68
2,564,098.85

25,442,152.33Total

Sugar cane* 5,003,084,065.82  2,596,437,115.06     
Molasses 27,851,630.40       6,300,373.00            
Spirit 4,140,731.00         -                            

5,035,076,427.22   2,602,737,488.06     Total

    

447,690,277.00 

447,690,277.00 
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Note 2.24  Changes in inventories of 
finished goods, by-products and work-in-progress
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Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.25  Employee benefits expense

P A R T I C U L A R S

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

     

Note 2.26 Finance costs

                 

18 months ended 31st March, 2015 Year ended 30th September, 2013

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

     

18 months ended 31st March, 2015 Year ended 30th September, 2013

Finished goods
Opening stock
      Sugar 667,971,292.00

     
177,171,452.00

      Molasses 32,414,403.00

       

5,958,261.50
      Bagasse 2,989,490.00

         

2,335,200.00
      Industrial alcohol 6,920,115.00

         

1,103,740.00
     Country liquor -

                         

-
      Banked Power 805,448.00

            

917,803.00
      Carbon credit 728,797.00

            

-
      Biocompost manure -

                         

711,829,545.00

     

- 187,486,456.50
Less : Closing stock
      Sugar 1,654,485,719.00

  

667,971,292.00
      Molasses 143,081,550.00

     

32,414,403.00
      Bagasse 15,414,528.00

       

2,989,490.00
      Industrial alcohol 43,787,150.00

       

6,920,115.00
     Country liquor 1,031,722.00

         

      Banked Power 3,701,552.00

         

805,448.00
      Carbon credit -

                         

728,797.00
      Pressmud 64,616.00 1,861,566,837.00 - 711,829,545.00

Total (A) (1,149,737,292.00) (524,343,088.50)
Work-in-progress
Opening stock - -
Less : Closing stock 211,456.00 -

Total (B) (211,456.00) -
Total (A+B) (1,149,948,748.00) (524,343,088.50)

Less: Difference of Excise Duty on opening and closing stock 51,719,766.00 18,887,143.00

(1,098,228,982.00) (505,455,945.50)Total

Salary, wages and bonus 128,239,103.37      75,082,963.69          
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 10,604,186.00        5,097,287.00            
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 2,347,388.00

         
1,259,306.60

            Gratuity 4,218,650.00
         

1,994,355.00
            

145,409,327.37

     

83,433,912.29

          
 

Total

Interest expense
    Cash Credit  
    Term loan  
    Others

              
123,651,503.75

       
Documentation and other bank charges 5,252,270.28

           

137,275,936.39
     

4,090,521.56
         

141,366,457.95

     

128,903,774.03Total

68,112,130.00       
68,131,648.39       1,032,158.00

         

49,758,108.00      
73,802,845.32      

90,550.43
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P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

          

Note 2.27 Depreciation and amortisation expense

     

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

          

Note 2.28 Other expenses

       

 

18 months ended 31st March, 2015 Year ended 30th September, 2013

18 months ended 31st March, 2015 Year ended 30th September, 2013
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Depreciation and amortisation on tangible assets         
Less: Transferred from revaluation reserve             90,059,261.44
Amortisation on intangible assets

              
58,767.00

 142,561,080.35
87,602.56

142,648,682.91

     
90,118,028.44Total

143,191,490.59    
630,410.24           

90,555,627.91

     496,366.47

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Packing materials
Power and fuel
Rent
Repairs
      Buildings
      Machinery
      Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes (excluding taxes on income)
Selling Expenses :
     Commission to Selling Agents
     Other Selling Expenses
     Selling Expenses on Sugar Trading
Payments to auditor
      Statutory audit fee
      Tax audit fee
      Reimbursement of expenses

                            
Charity and donation   
Printing and stationary
Communication expenses
Travelling Expenses
Consultancy and legal expenses
Director sitting fee
Director remuneration
Miscellaneous expenses 
Provision of Excise Duty demand
Transfer to storage fund for molasses 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 
Balances written off
Prior period expenses 

57,375,232.55       
102,081,946.52     
36,836,886.51       
11,997,538.00       

177,027,318.09
     4,450,189.00
         5,177,655.12
         

66,843,211.00

       

559,145.00

            
159,553.00

            
1,714,243.53

         
2,301,208.74

         

27,698,657.02

       

13,367,817.62

       

185,000.00

            

10,750,000.00

       

33,975,521.74

       

115,417,752.00

     

1,057,480.00

         

724,849.78

            

60,636.75

              

1,684,325.00

671,446,166.97

 
 

26,417,986.30          
28,675,849.25          
20,466,520.29          
3,249,535.00           

74,958,265.17
          2,140,371.00
           1,946,354.62
           

 

13,957,018.60

          

337,982.00

              
17,753.00

                
861,401.00

              
1,337,037.74

           
11,476,205.33

          

6,415,899.00

           

40,000.00

                

2,850,000.00

           

20,696,361.62

          

-

                           

656,902.95

              

5,778,864.00

           

1,340,332.92

           

-

                           

223,620,639.79TOTAL

32,657,962.55
       129,141,157.18
     15,228,198.36
       

8,696,010.00

         20,211,732.00

       37,935,469.00

       300,000.00

            
200,000.00

            
59,145.00

7,167,278.20
         61,822,964.34
       5,968,022.63
         

4,235,439.00

         9,721,579.60

         -

                        200,000.00

            
100,000.00

            
37,982.00



60

Note 2.29  Notes to the accounts

2.29  Other Disclosures: a. Defined contribution plans 
Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund are considered as 

1. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not defined contribution plan. The contribution to defined contribution 
provided for and as certified by the management) plan, recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit & 

Loss:
   (a) Contingent liabilities Current period Previous year

Employers' contribution           Rs.1,06,04,186/- Rs. 50,97,287/-
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in to provident fund

respect of pending cases of employees   under labour laws - 
Rs.150.14 lacs (Previous Year - Rs.128.72 lacs). b. Defined benefits plans

(ii) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts in Long term employee benefits in the form of gratuity and leave 
respect of criminal and Civil Cases   Rs.35.43 lacs (Previous encashment are considered as defined benefit plan. The present 
Year -Rs.31.17 lacs). value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using 

projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The 
(iii) Bank guarantees given to the Central Government, Excise amount of defined benefits recognized in the balance sheet 

Department and Indian Oil Corporation Ltd., aggregating to represent the present value of obligation as adjusted for 
Rs.373.76 lacs (Previous Year  Rs.132.96 lacs). unrecognized past service cost as reduced by the fair value of plan 

assets.
(iv) Company has given guarantee to the banks, which provided 

vehicle loans to the employees of the company, outstanding In accordance with the Accounting Standard 15, actuarial valuation 
loan as on 31.03.2015  NIL (Previous Year  Rs. 0.42 lacs). was done in respect of gratuity and leave encashment defined 

benefits plans and details of the same are given below:
(v) Interest recompense payable to lenders under CDR scheme 

estimated amounting to Rs.676.43 lacs (Previous Year  
Rs.409.81 lacs). It is stipulated that minimum 75% of the 
recompense amount should be recovered by the lenders in 
terms of CDR circular.

(vi) Disputed sales tax, income tax and excise duty cases under 
appeal - Rs.24603.80 lacs (Previous Year Rs.8935.20 lacs)

Description Current Period Previous year
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

Central Excise Act 1856.46   515.40
Sales Tax/Trade Tax/Entry Tax 0.04 39.63
Income Tax                              22746.02 8378.89 
Others 1.28      1.28

--------------         -------------
Total  24603.80  8935.20 

--------------         -------------

The amount shown above represent the best possible estimates 
arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties 
and timing of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of 
different legal processes which have been invoked by the company 
or the claimants as the case may be and therefore cannot be 
ascertained accurately. The company does not expect any 
reimbursements in respect of above contingent liabilities.

In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered 
necessary for the disputes mentioned above on the grounds that 
there are fair chances of successful outcome of appeals filed by the 
company. 

(b) Commitments :

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for-Nil (Previous Year - 
Rs.211.33 lacs).

(ii) Advances paid against above- Nil (Previous Year -Rs.96.38 
lacs).

2. Employee Benefits

As per Accounting Standard -15 'Employees Benefits' the disclosure 
of Employee Benefits as defined in the Accounting Standard are as 
follow : 
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Gratuity 
 

Current 
period 

Gratuity 
 

Previous 

Year 

Leave 
Encashment 
Current 

period 

Leave 
Encashment 
Previous  

Year 

Discount rate (per annum) 

Future salary increase
Expected rate of return on plan assets 

Mortality

8.00% 

5.00% 

8.50% 

IALM 2006-08 
Ultimate 

8.50% 

5.00% 

8.50% 

IALM 2006-
08 Ultimate 

8.00% 

5.00% 

0% 

IALM 2006-08 

Ultimate 

9.00% 

5.00% 

0% 

IALM 2006-
08 Ultimate 

I. Expenses recognized in profit and loss account 

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets

 

Net actuarial loss/ (gain) recognized in the
 

period
 

 
 

17,97,812
 

22,93,678
 

(12,49,926)
 

22,01,344
 

 
 

13,05,309
 

15,42,339
 

(11,41,944)
 

(3,21,638)
 

 
 

4,96,520
 

3,14,161
 

-
 

32,89,940
 

 
 

3,59,713
 

2,51,017
 

-
 

10,32,101
 

Net expenses recognized
 

50,42,908
 

20,27,342
 

41,00,621
 

16,42,831
 

II. Net l iability/(assets) recognized in the balance 
sheet as at 31st March, 2015

 

Present value of obligation at the end of period
 

Fair value of the plan asset at the end of period
 

Funded status [(surplus/(deficit)]
 

 
 
 

2,33,50,108
 

1,55,42,518
 

(78,07,590)
 

 
 
 

1,91,31,458
 

1,38,67,514
 

(52,63,944)
 

 
 
 

26,34,981
 

-
 

(26,34,981)
 

 
 
 

26,20,399
 

-
 

(26,20,399)
 

Net (asset)/liability as at 31st
 

March, 2015
 

2,33,50,108
 

1,91,31,458
 

26,34,981
 

26,20,399
 

III. Change in present value of obligation during the 
year

Present value of obligation at the beginning of year

 

Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligations

 

 
 
 
 
 

1,91,31,458

 

17,97,812

 
 

22,93,678

 
 

(27,43,754)

 

28,70,914

 

 
 
 
 
 

1,71,37,103

 

13,05,309

 
 

15,42,339

 
 

(11,01,806)

 

2,48,513

 

 
 
 
 
 

26,20,399

 

4,96,520

 

3,14,161

 

(40,86,039)

 

32,89,940

 

 
 
 
 
 

27,89,079

 

3,59,713

 

2,51,017

 

(18,11,511)

 

10,32,101

 

Present value of obligation at the year end 

 

2,33,50,108

 

1,91,31,458

 

26,34,981

 

26,20,399

 

IV. Change in present value of fair value of plan 
assets

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of period
Return on plan assets
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss/ (gain) 

 
 
 

1,38,67,514
19,19,496

 
 
 

1,30,01,768
10,68,819

 
 
 

-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 

-
-

-
-

Fair value of plan assets at the year end 1,55,42,518 1,38,67,514 - -
Details of plan asset Gratuity

Trust
Gratuity

Trust 
N/A N/A
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Note: The Company funded the gratuity liability through a separate On the basis of future projections taken on record by the 
Gratuity Fund. The fair value of the plan assets is based on the management after considering improved performance of 
information certified by the management. However, the gratuity Cogen and Distillery Divisions, the management is confident 
liability of Rs.23,60,274/- of Co-Gen  Division is not funded. that there is a virtual certainty that sufficient taxable income will 

be available in the forthcoming financials years against which, 
3. Short term loans and advances shown under Notes 2.18 the deferred tax assets can be realized in the normal course of 

includes certain advances given to suppliers of raw material business of the company. 
and revenue purchases, which are adjustable against the 
supply of goods/services but are running due in the books since 9. The Commissioner, Central Excise and Service Tax, Lucknow 
long. The management is of the opinion that these balances has passed the orders on 31.03.2015 in consequence to show 
are recoverable/adjustable in future and accordingly, provision cause notices issued earlier and raised a demand of 
against the same has not been considered at this stage. Rs.13,55,29,759 on account of exemption of excise duty 

claimed on molasses consumed in house for distillery 
4. Certain bank accounts shown in Notes 2.17 of Cash and Bank operations and also cenvat credit availed during the period 

balances under sub-head 'Balance with Banks' are non- from July, 2007 to March, 2013. Accordingly a provision of 
operating for last some period and are also subject to Rs.1154.18 lacs after adjusting brought forward provision has 
reconciliation and receipt of confirmation. As such, the balance been made in the Statement of Profit & Loss.  
of Rs.1.99 lacs shown in respect of those bank accounts in the  
financial statements is as per books of account only. 10. Cost of material consumed for the 18 months period ended 

31st March, 2015 is net of financial assistance of Rs.6/- per qtl. 
5.   In view of the decision of Hon'ble Supreme Court, extra  price of cane purchased during sugar season 2013-14 amounting to 

and  excise  duty  realized  on  levy  sugar  in  earlier  years Rs.555.19 lacs extended by the State Government. Further for 
amounting to Rs.67.11 lacs for funding under the Sugar  Price the sugar season 2014-15, the Government of Uttar Pradesh 
Equalization  Fund Act, 1976 was transferred to Sugar Price has announced certain financial assistance including Rs.8.60 
Equalization Reserve Account. Later on as per the order dated per qtl of cane linked to average selling price of sugar and its by 
22.09.1993 of Hon'ble Supreme  Court, a sum of Rs.17.90 lacs products during the period 01.10.14 to 31.05.15 which is to be 
was  paid   to  the   Government   out  of  bank  guarantee  recommended by the Committee constituted by the 
furnished  by  the  Company and further, during the year 1998- Government of Uttar Pradesh as the average selling price of 
99 a sum of Rs.1.00 lac was paid towards Excise Duty on the sugar is significantly lower than the thresh hold specified in the 
above. The company has further made a payment of Rs.35.81 above announcement. Accordingly, the company has 
lacs during the year 2005-06 to the Government of India accounted for the above financial assistance of Rs.782.45 lacs 
against the bank guarantee furnished by it along with interest of for sugar season 2014-15 lacs and adjusted the same against 
Rs.118.25 lacs thereon. Still a sum of Rs.12.40 lacs is lying in the cost of material.
the Sugar Price Equalization Reserve as on 31.03.15 shown  
under Note 2.2 of “Reserve & Surplus”. 11. Since, the sugar industry is a seasonal industry; the cost of 

production of sugar is worked out on annualized basis.
6.  Certain balances in account of debtors, advances, deposit 

account, and creditors are subject to reconciliation and 12. Related Party Disclosures:-
confirmation by the respective parties. In some of the cases, 
the amount is overdue for last some years and consequential Pursuant to compliance of Accounting Standard (AS 18) on 
revenue impact, if any, is not ascertainable. However, related party disclosure, the relevant information is provided here 
management has reviewed these advances from its realization below:-
point of view and based on the management's working, the I. Subsidiaries (Control exist) - K M Energy Pvt. Ltd.
required provisions in respect thereof has been considered in 
these financial statements, wherever necessary. As far as II. Related Parties 
other balances are concerned, the management is of the a) Related party where control exist
opinion that these balances are recoverable/adjustable and 
accordingly, provision against the same has not been ? Shri L. K. Jhunjhunwala -Chairman
considered at this stage and these balances are disclosed in ? Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala -Managing Director
the financial statements as per books of account only. The ? Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala -Joint Managing Director
management is of the view that the realization from these 
assets in the ordinary course of business would not be less b) Details of the related parties:
than the amount at which they are stated in the books of 
account. Further, there is no system of charging interest as per i. Key Management Persons (Group A)
market tradition on amount due from sundry debtors and the ? Shri L. K. Jhunjhunwala -Chairman
parties to whom advances extended in the ordinary course of ? Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala -Managing Director
business and which remains due for a substantial period.  ? Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala -Joint Managing Director

? Shri S. C. Agarwal -Executive Director7. Long term liabilities (Note No.2.5) includes a loan from U.P. 
Government amounting to Rs.14.50 lacs. The issue relating to 
interest payable thereon is under dispute and the matter is sub-

ii. Key Management Persons' relatives (Group B)judice before the Hon'ble Allahabad High Court. However, as 
per the interim order of the Court, a fixed deposit of Rs.14.50 

? Shri P. C. Jhunjhunwalalacs has been kept with the District Magistrate, Faizabad. In 
? L. K. Jhunjhunwala (HUF)opinion of the management, the interest due on fixed deposit is 
? A. K. Jhunjhunwala (HUF)sufficient to meet out the interest liability of the Company on the 

said loan and as such, no interest is being provided for in these ? S. K. Jhunjhunwala (HUF)
financial statements. ? Smt. Naina Jhunjhunwala (Wife of Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala)

? Smt. Priti Jhunjhunwala (Wife of Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala)
8. For the purpose of computing deferred tax liability, amount of ? Smt. Priti Jhunjhunwala (Wife of Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala)

brought forward losses as claimed in the income tax returns ? Shri Vatsal Jhunjhunwala (Son of Shri A. K. Jhunjhunwala)
filed has been considered for recognizing deferred tax assets. ? Smt. Reena Agarwal (Wife of Shri S. C. Agarwal)
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? Shri Ayush Agarwal (Son of Shri S. C. Agarwal) i. The transactions with related parties have been entered at an 
amount, which are not materially different from those on normal ? Shri Payoush Agarwal (Son of Shri S. C. Agarwal)
commercial terms.

ii. No amount has been written back/written off during the year in iii. Associates (Group C)
respect to due to/due from related parties.

iii. The amount due from related parties are good and hence no ? K. M. Vyapar (P) Ltd.
provision for doubtful debts in respect of dues from such related ? K.M. Plantations (P) Ltd. 
parties is required.? Marvel Business (P) Limited

? Francoise Commerce (P) Limited 13. Segment Reporting: Information on the Segment Reporting of 
? Nidhi Financial Services (P) Limited the company for the period ended 31.03.2015:
? Shree Shakti Credits Limited
? Prakash Properties Limited The company has identified three primary business segments viz. 
? Promissing Logistics (P) Ltd. Sugar, Distillery and Co-generation. Segments have been identified 
? Shailja Propertied (P) Ltd. and reported taking into account the nature of products, the differing 

risks and returns, the organizational structure and internal business ? Zar International (P) Ltd.
reposting system.                    

( Rs. in  Lacs)iv. Companies/ Parties in which Key management person or his 
relatives have substantial interest/ significant influence (Group D)
? Shivam Trust
? Vatsal Trust
? Palak Jhunjhunwala Trust
? Laxmi Public Charitable Trust
? Jhunjhunwala P G College

c) Details of the related parties with whom transactions have taken 
place during the year:

I. Subsidiaries - K M Energy Pvt. Ltd.
    
II. Related Parties 

Key Management Persons (Group A)

? Shri L. K. Jhunjhunwala -Chairman
? Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala -Managing Director
? Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala -Joint Managing Director
? Shri S. C. Agarwal -Executive Director

Associates (Group C)
? K. M. Vyapar (P) Ltd.
? Shree Shakti Credits Limited
? Zar International (P) Ltd.

Associates (Group D)

? Laxmi Public Charitable Trust
? Jhunjhunwala P G College

d) Details of transactions with the related parties during the year
(Rs. In Lacs)

*Capital expenditure includes fixed assets capitalized during the 
year and net increase/decrease in capital work-in-progress.

The transactions between segments are primarily for materials 
which are transferred at market determined prices. Common costs 
are apportioned on a reasonable basis.

Information about Secondary Geographical Segment: There is no 
secondary segment.

14. Following are the relevant disclosures as required under the 
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

a. Sundry creditors include a sum aggregating Rs.12.59 lacs 
(Rs.36.84 lacs) due to micro & small enterprises is on account 
of principal only.

b. The Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of 
Section 16, along with the amount of payment made to the 
micro & small enterprises beyond the appointed date during the 
year Rs. Nil.
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S.No  Nature of Transaction  Subsidiary  Related parties group Total
Current
period 
(Previous 
year) 

   C.P. (P.Y.)

 

A
 C.P. (P.Y.)

 

B
 C.P. (P.Y.)

 

C
C.P. (P.Y.)

D
C.P. 
(P.Y.)

1

 

Remuneration 
including contribution 
to Provident Fund

 

 
 

-

 

(-)

 

 
 

116.79

 

(15.49)

 

 
 
 

-

 

(-)

 

- (-) - (-)
116.79
(15.49) 

2

 

Sugar Sale

 

-

 

(-)

 

-

    

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

98.50 (-) - (-) 98.50 (-) 

3

 

Rent Paid

 

-

 

(-)

 

-

   

( -)

 

-

 

(-)

 

96.85 
(27.03)

- (-) 96.85 
(27.03)

4

 

Advance Received

 

-

 

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

65.00 
(26.80)

- (-) 65.00 
(26.80)

5

 

Advance given

 

-

 

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

80.16 
(25.79)

- (-) 80.16 
(25.79)

6

 

Advance received
back

 

-

 

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

54.31
(136.39)

- (-) 54.31 
(136.39)

7

 

Other balances repaid

 

-

 

(-)

   

3.13 
(-)

3.13 
(-)

8 Inter corporate loan 
given

285.00 (-) 285.00 (-)

9 Investment 0.73 (-) 0.73 (-)
10 Interest on loan

receipt
3.28 (-) 3.28 (-)

11 Outstanding Balances 
as on 3 1.03.2015 on 
account of: 
a) Receivables 287.95 (-) - (-) - (-) - (54.31) - (-) 287.95

(54.31) 
b) Payables - (-) 199.91

(154.61)
- (-)    (-) 49.13

(12.21)
-
(3.30)

249.04
(170.12) 

Particulars Sugar Distillery

2015 2013 2015
Revenue

Gross sales 56605.50 26070.39 6392.83
 Less: Inter segment 

sales
10260.46 2809.39 -

 
External sales 46345.04 23261.00 6392.83

 Less: Excise duty 
and cess

1263.90 710.12 596.84

 Net sales 45081.14 22550.88 5795.99

 
Add: Other income

518.49 324.01 22.45

 Total Revenue
45599.63 22874.89 5818.44

 Segment Results       
1403.14 1115.82 (416.14)
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c. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment which have been paid but beyond the c) Break up of Raw Materials and components consumed.

Current period Previous year appointed day during the year but without adding the interest 
Percentage    Amount Percentage Amount specified under this Act. Rs. Nil.

` (in lacs)      (in lacs)      d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Rs. Nil.
i. Raw materiale. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
Indigenous                    100% 50350.76 100% 26027.37in succeeding year Rs. Nil. Imported                                           -   - - -
ii. Stores and packing material                                            

The above mentioned outstanding are in normal course of business 
and the information regarding micro & small enterprises have been Indigenous                    100% 1594.57 100%    550.94 

Imported                                           -   - - -determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information available with the company.

18. Payments to Auditors:

15. Earning Per Share
      - Audit Fee         Rs.3,00,000/- (Previous Year: Rs.2,00,000/-)

In compliance of Accounting Standard (AS-20) on Earning per       - Tax Audit Fee    Rs.2,00,000/- (Previous Year: Rs.1,00,000/-)
Share, the relevant information is provided here below:-

Current period     Previous year 19. The borrowings from banks were restructured under Corporate 
                                       (Amount Rs. In lacs) Debt Restructuring Mechanism (CDR) vide letter of approval 

Net Profit/Loss after tax as per 748.92        1260.16 dated 27.03.2012 issued by CDR EG. This CDR package has 
statement of Profit & Loss since been implemented and necessary effect to the extent 
No. of Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 92000170      92000170 allowed by the banks has been considered in the financial 
Earning Per Equity Share in Rs. 0.81              1.37 statements. Accordingly, interest refunded by the lenders has 
(Basic & diluted) been adjusted against the finance cost of the period. 

16. Directors' Remuneration:- 20. The company would be able to realize a sum of Rs.365.79 lacs 
against a debtor for which provision has been made in past on 
account of doubtful nature of the same. As the amount is 
realizable, the excess provision has been reversed. 

21. There is no liability for the period ended on 31st March, 2015 
towards Corporate Social Responsibility based on the 
performance of last 3 years as there is net loss computed for 
last 3 years. 

22. Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the 
company is required to close its financial year only on 31st 
March and accordingly to align its financial year as per 
amended provisions, the current financial year of the company 
has been extended till 31.03.2015 covering the period from 
01.10.2013 to 31.03.2015 i.e. for 18 months and necessary 
compliance has been made in this regard. As such, the figures 
of current period are not comparable with previous year's 
figures.

 
23. The previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified, 

Note: The value of perquisites shown above is as per the income tax reworked and rearranged wherever necessary to correspond 
provisions. with the current period classification/disclosures. Amounts and 

other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an 
17. Statement of additional information:- integral part of the current period financial statements and are 

to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures 
a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency: relating to current period.   
 Traveling Expenses Rs.44.33 lacs (P.Y.-Rs.10.16 lacs)
 Others Rs.  5.42 lacs  (P.Y.- Rs.2.97 lacs)
 
b) Receipt of interest in Foreign Currency of old dues:  Rs. 113.94 
lacs (P.Y.- Nil)
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S.
No.

Chairman Managing 
Director and 

Joint Managing 
Director

 
Executive 
Director 

a)

 

Salary

 

(Previous Year)

 

41,50,000

           

(5,25,000)

 

44,00,000

 

(6,00,000)

 

22,00,000
(1,95,000)

b)

 

Contribution to Provident 
Fund (Previous Year)

4,41,000

               

(1,05,000)
4,68,000

    

(1,20,000)
19,620
(3,900)

c)

 

Perquisites:

   
   

 

(i) Residence

   

     

-Furnished

 
    

(Previous Year)

 
-

   

(-)

 
-

 

(-)

 

-
 

(ii) Residence

   
      

-Unfurnished

 
    

(Previous Year)

 
-

 

(-)

 
-

 

(-)

 
1,65,000

(-) 

(iii)Medical 
Reimbursement

 

(Previous Year)
 

16,023

   

(-)

 71,395

 
 

(26,940)

 
 

28,835
(8,059)

 
(iv) Other benefits

 
-

 
(-)

 
-

   
(-)

 
- (-)

 Total  
(Previous Year)  

46,07,023            
(6,30,000)  

49,39,395                 
(7,46,940 )  

24,13,455
(2,06,959 )

   
   

   

   

   

      
    
      

As per our report of even date attached hereto
For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.0226C

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

       
       
              

L K Jhunjhunwala
Chairman

CA. Rajesh Jhalani
Partner
M.No.74809

Place: Lucknow
Date: 28.05.2015

S. C. Agarwal          
Executive Director       

A K Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Rajeev Kumar
Company  Secretary
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Independent Auditor's Report

To We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.The Members 

K.M. Sugar Mills Ltd.
As stated in Other Matters paragraph below, our opinion, in so far as it Kanpur
relates to the amounts and disclosure included in respect of subsidiary 
not audited by us, is based on the report of such other auditor. Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
Opinionstatements of K.M Sugar Mills Ltd.  (the "Company") and its 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the subsidiary KM Energy (P) Ltd. (the Company and its subsidiary 
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the constitute "the Group"), which comprise the Consolidated 
separate audit report on the financial statement/financial information of Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2015, Consolidated Statement 
the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give a of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally for the period then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accepted in India:accounting policies and other explanatory information.

a. in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated 
affairs of the Group as at 31 March, 2015;Financial Statements

b. in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation 
the profit of the Group for the period ended on that date; andof these consolidated financial statements that give a true and 

fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated c. in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the 
financial performance and consolidate cash flows of the Group cash flows of the Group for the period ended on that date.
in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design, Emphasis of Matters
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the 
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial consolidated financial statements:
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Note 2.29(10) to the consolidated financial statements which indicates 

that the company has accounted for an amount of Rs.782.45 lacs due 
Auditors' Responsibility from State Government as financial assistance as per announcement 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these issued in this regard.
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Other Matters
India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary, whose 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain financial statements reflect total assets (net) of Rs.(5.78) lacs as at 31 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated March, 2015, total revenues of Rs.3.83 lacs and net cash inflows 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. amounting to Rs.380.52 lacs for the period ended on that date, as 

considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss of 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Rs.6.78 lacs for the period ended 31 March, 2015. This financial 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected statement has been audited by other auditor whose report has been 
depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment furnished to us by the Management and our opinion, in so far as it 
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making subsidiary is based solely on report.
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Company's preparation and presentation of the For Mehrotra & Mehrotra
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view Chartered Accountants
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the (FRN - 0226C)
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit CA. Rajesh Jhalani
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting Partner 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting (M.No. 074809) 
estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the Place : Lucknow
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Date :  28th May, 2015
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015 

       
       
     
       

    

(Amount in Rs.)

Previous  Year

As per our report of even date attached hereto
For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.0226C

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

       
       
              

  

 

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

Rs.              P.
    P A R T I C U L A R S                           

Notes 
No.

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds

(a)   Share Capital               
(b)   Reserves & Surplus                      

2. Non-current liabilities
(a)   Long term borrowings
(b)   Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(c)   Other Long term liabilities                 
(d)   Long term provisions

3. Current liabilities
(a)   Short term borrowings
(b)   Trade payables
(c)   Other current liabilities                 
(d)   Short term provisions

Total

II. ASSETS
Non-current assets

1. (a) Fixed Assets 
    (i)  Tangible Assets
   (ii)   Intangibile assets
   (iii)  Capital Work-in-Progress                

(b) Non current investments
(c) Long term loans and advances
(d) Other non current assets

2. Current Assets                           
(a) Inventories
(b) Trade receivables
(c) Cash and cash equivalents
(d) Short term loans and advances
(e) Other current assets

Total

Significant accounting policies
Notes on financial statements

2.1
2.2

2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6

2.7
2.8
2.9
2.10

2.11

2.12
2.13
2.14

2.15
2.16
2.17
2.18
2.19

1
2

184,000,340.00
(8,680,709.20)

342,130,932.65

     

37,762,292.00

       

2,246,321.85

         

141,529,079.00

     

 

905,624,589.90

     

1,248,579,693.96

  

418,161,668.01

     

2,755,873.00

         

648,380,852.69

     

605,349.94

            

4,857,358.00

         

1,021,300.00
         

10,405,079.59       
1,788,543.82         

1,918,644,389.93
  316,880,636.37
     78,599,989.82
       128,111,016.96

     164,815,564.05

     

175,319,630.80

523,668,625.50

     

2,575,121,824.87

  

3,274,110,081.17

  

653,843,560.63

     

13,214,923.41       

 

2,607,051,597.13

  3,274,110,081.17

  
-

184,000,340.00
(83,349,063.99)

338,326,890.70

     

32,835,473.00

       

2,246,321.85

         

25,335,542.00

       

 

588,242,088.73

     

139,244,305.83

     

301,515,942.61

     

1,847,688.00

         

508,026,045.31

     

43,452.50

              

44,394,553.75

       

1,021,300.00
         

25,379,879.64       
1,879,215.82         

766,366,880.96
     85,902,712.06
       28,082,749.29

       62,348,789.40

       6,799,950.00

         

100,651,276.01

398,744,227.55

       

1,030,850,025.17

     

1,530,245,528.73

     

552,464,051.56

       

28,280,395.46         

 

949,501,081.71

       1,530,245,528.73
-

Rs.              P.Rs.              P.Rs.              P.

L K Jhunjhunwala
Chairman

CA. Rajesh Jhalani
Partner
M.No.74809

Place: Lucknow
Date: 28.05.2015

S. C. Agarwal          
Executive Director       

A K Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Rajeev Kumar
Company  Secretary

Current Year
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Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ended on 31st March, 2015

      
    
      

As per our report of even date attached hereto
For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.0226C

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

       
       
              

L K Jhunjhunwala
Chairman

CA. Rajesh Jhalani
Partner
M.No.74809

Place: Lucknow
Date: 28.05.2015

S. C. Agarwal          
Executive Director       

A K Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Rajeev Kumar
Company  Secretary

                                    
         
 

Previous  YearCurrent Year

    P A R T I C U L A R S                           
18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Rs.         P.

Year ended
30th September, 2013

     

Notes 
No.

Rs.         P.

I. Revenue from operations (Gross) 2.20
Less: Excise duty and cess
Revenue from operations (net)

II. Other Income 2.21

III. Total Revenue (I + II)

IV. Expenes
  Cost of material consumed 2.22
  Purchase of Stock in trade 2.23
  Change in inventory of finished goods, work in progress and 
stock in trade 2.24

  Employee benefits expenses 2.25
  Finance costs 2.26
  Depreciation and amortization expense 2.27
  Other expenses 2.28

Total expenses

V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III-IV)
VI. Exceptional items

 VII. Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (V-VI)
VIII. Extraordinary item

 IX. Profit/(Loss) before tax (VII-VIII)
X. Tax expense

  (1) Current Tax
  (2) Deferred Tax

XI. Profit/(Loss) for the year before adjustment of Minority Interest (IX-X)

XIV.

XII.

XIII.

Earning per equity share (Nominal value of Rs.2 each)

Share of (Profit) Transfer to minority interest

Profit/Loss for the Year after adjustment of Minority Interest

  (1) Basic (Rs. Per share)
  (2) Diluted (Rs. Per share)

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes on financial statements 2

5,690,558,151.39         
186,073,938.00            

5,504,484,213.39         
71,115,094.42              

5,575,599,307.81         

5,035,076,427.22         
447,690,277.00

            

(1,098,228,982.00)
145,409,327.37

            142,046,130.31
            142,648,682.91
            671,499,016.97
            

5,486,140,879.78
         

89,458,428.03
-

                              89,458,428.03
-

                              89,458,428.03

10,317,324.00

              4,926,819.00

               

74,214,285.03

0.81
0.81

2,825,352,789.97         
99,473,654.08              

2,725,879,135.89             
25,442,152.33                  

2,751,321,288.22             

2,602,737,488.06             
-

                                  

(505,455,945.50)
83,433,912.29

                  128,903,774.03
                90,118,028.44
                  223,620,639.79
                

2,623,357,897.11
             

127,963,391.11
-

                                  127,963,391.11
-

                                  127,963,391.11

-

                                  1,947,121.00
126,016,270.11

1.37
1.37

Rs.         P.Rs.         P.

(182,919.33) -

74,397,204.36 -
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Note: Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.

As per our report of even date attached hereto For & on bahalf of Board of Directors
For Mehrotra & Mehrotra
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.0226C

Rajesh Jhalani S. C. Agarwal          L K Jhunjhunwala
Partner Executive Director       Chairman
M.No.74809

Date : 28.05.2015 A K Gupta Rajeev Kumar
Place : Lucknow Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

       Cash Flow Statement for the 18 months ended 31st March, 2015
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18 months ended 31st March, 15 Year ended 30th September, 13

P A R T I C U L A R S
                            

Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
       

Rs.               P.
        
                                   

                               

          
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax and exceptional items

Adjustment for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Transfer to storage fund for molasses
Provision/reversal of doubtful debts
Balances written off

 

Interest income 
Profit on sale of fixed assets 
Unspent liabilities/balances written back  
Storage fund for molasses written back

 

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for :

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables & Others
Cash Generated from Operations
Direct Tax Paid
Net Cash From Operating Activities (A)

Cash Flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Interest income received

B. Net Cash From Investing Activities

Cash Flow From Financing activities

Proceeds/(repayments) of long term borrowings
Proceeds/(repayments) of short term borrowings
Finance cost paid

1426.49
1420.46

10.57
(271.46)

0.61
(135.33)
(22.47)
(0.25)

-

(4410.17)
(11522.77)
13520.54

(2675.31)
251.18
135.33

133.15
3173.83

(1604.76)

901.18
1289.04

6.57
57.79
13.40

(126.37)
(1.07)
(1.60)
(5.00)

(151.73)
(5411.17)

827.62

(592.68)
1.34

126.37

(1846.04)
4587.42
(956.85)

C. Net Cash From Financing Activities

Net increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

D. Opening cash and cash equivalents
E. Closing cash and cash equivalents

Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (D-E)

894.58

                

                  

2428.07

3322.65

(2128.28)
(103.17)
1091.20

(2288.25)

1702.22

505.17

280.83
786.00

505.17

1279.63

2133.94

3413.57

(4735.28)
-

(1321.71)

                 

(464.97)

1784.53

(2.15)

282.98
280.83

(2.15)



68

Note 1-A. Basis of consolidation : iv. Company considered in Consolidated Financial Statements:

The consolidated financial statements relate to K M Sugar Mills 
Limited (“The Company”) and its Subsidiary namely K M Energy Pvt. 
Ltd. The Company and its Subsidiary constitute the Group. 

1.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements 

i.  The financial statements of the Subsidiary used in the Note 1-B Significant Accounting Policies
consolidation are drawn upto the same balance sheet date as 
of the Company i.e. 31st March, 2015. 1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

ii. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the These financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of 
Group in conformity with GAPP requires management to make accounting, under the historical cost convention except for 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revaluation of certain Fixed Assets, in accordance with the 
assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent Companies Act, 1956 and the applicable Accounting Standards 
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. There is no 
amounts of income and expenditure during the period. change in the system of accounting as being consistently followed 
Management believes that the estimates made in the from earlier years unless otherwise stated.
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and 
reliable. Actual results might differ from the estimates. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-
Difference between the actual results and estimates are current as per company's normal operating cycle and other criteria 
recognized in the period in which results are known / set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. Based on the 
materialized. nature of operations and time between procurement of raw material 

and realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
These consolidated financial statements are based, in so far as they ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
relate to amounts included in respect of the Subsidiary, on the current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
audited financial statements prepared for consolidation in 
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard - 21 and 1.2 Use of Estimates
Accounting Standard - 23 for each of the included entities. 

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a GAPP requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and 
an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the 
accounting policy hitherto in use. financial statements and reported amounts of income and 

expenditure during the period. Actual results might differ from the 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are 
current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other recognized in the period in which results are known/materialized. 
criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. The 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 1.3 Significant Accounting Policies 
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. a) Fixed  Assets

1.2 Principles of consolidation i) Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of cenvat credit 
and/or at revalued price less accumulated depreciation. All 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the costs including financing costs relating to borrowing till 
following basis: commencement of commercial production attributable to the 

fixed assets are capitalized.
i. The financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries ii) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down value 

have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together method at the rates and the manner prescribed in Schedule 
like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The intra- XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. The additional depreciation, 
group balances and intra-group transactions and unrealised on increase in cost on account of revaluation, is transferred to 
profits or losses there on have been fully eliminated. statement of Profit & Loss from Revaluation Reserve and is 

thus not charged to statement of Profit & Loss of the year.
ii. The excess of cost to the Company of its Investments in the iii) Tangible Fixed Assets costing up to Rs.5,000/- are being 

Subsidiary over its Share of Equity of the Subsidiary, at the date depreciated fully in the year of their put to use. 
on which the investments are made, is recognised as iv) Depreciation/amortization on assets added, sold or discarded 
“Goodwill” being an asset in the consolidated financial during the year is provided on pro-rata basis.
statements. The Goodwill so arising on consolidation of v) Intangible assets expected to provide future enduring 
subsidiary is amortised in 5 years. economic benefits are recorded at the consideration paid for 

acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost of acquisition 
iii. The Minority Interest in the net assets of the Subsidiary on the less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. 

date of Balance Sheet is Nil as the net worth of the Subsidiary Intangible assets: Computer software is amortized over a period of 
has been fully eroded. Accordingly, the Minority Share in the four years.  
loss up to the date of Investment in the Subsidiary has been 
adjusted with the Share of Majority and shown as Goodwill. b) Revenue Recognition and Expenses
Minority Share of losses subsequent to the date of Investment i. Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when the 
has also been adjusted with the Share of the Majority. property in goods is transferred to the buyer for a consideration. 

Notes forming part of Financial Statement
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Name of the Company  Country of 
incorporation  

Percentage of ownership 
interest as at  

Financial 
year ends 
on31.03.2015

 
30.09.2013

K M Energy Pvt. Ltd. India 73.00% Nil 31st March
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Revenue from service transaction is recognized as the service The Company's net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is 
is performed. calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that 

ii. Insurance claims have been accounted for on cash basis as employees have earned in return for their service in the current and 
per past practice. prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present 

iii. Revenue from certified emission reductions (CERs) and value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.
renewable emission certificate (REC) is recognized on cash 
basis in the absence of reasonable assurance that future The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan 
economic benefits will flow from the same to the company. is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit 

 iv. All the expenses are accounted for on accrual basis. Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving 
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures 

c) Inventories are valued as under: each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

i. Raw Materials and Finished Goods (except molasses) are The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated 
carried at lower of cost or net realizable value. future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the 

ii. Stock of Molasses are carried at net realizable value. present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based 
iii. Stores & Spares are carried at cost. on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance 
iv. Goods in Process / WIP is carried at lower of cost or net sheet date.

realizable Value. 
v. Banked power with UPPCL is carried at lower of cost or net When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the 

realizable value. recognized asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognized 
 actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of any 
Cost of inventory comprises of purchase price, cost of conversion future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to 
and other cost that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to the plan.
their respective present location and condition. Interest cost are not 
included in value of inventory. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the 

statement of profit and loss.
Cost for the purpose of valuations of raw material and components, 
stores & spares are considered on following basis: (iii) Long term employment benefits

 
Manufacturing Units Basis The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employment 

benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned 
Sugar in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The 

obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is - Raw Material First in First Out
discounted to its present value and the fair value of any related - Stores & Spares and other components Weighted monthly average 
assets is deducted. The discount rates used for determining the - Trading Goods                                  First in First Out
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based  
on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance Distillery
sheet date.- Raw Material First in First Out  
 - Stores & Spares Other components Weighted monthly average
(iv) Compensated absences 
 Co-generation 
The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued - Raw Material First in First Out              
compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or 
receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since d) Investments
the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the Long term Investments are carried at cost. However, provision for 
related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within diminution is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in the 
twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified value of investment, if any. Current Investment is carried at cost or 
as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an market value, whichever is lower.
obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the 
employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The e) Employees Benefits
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit method.(i) Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving 
Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. 
undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. 
in which the related service is rendered.The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be 

paid in exchange for employee services are recognized as an 
f) Borrowing Costsexpense as the related service is rendered by employees.

 
Borrowing costs attributable to the qualifying assets are capitalized (ii) Post employment benefits
up to the period such assets are ready for the intended use and  
commenced commercial production. All other borrowing cost is Defined contribution plans :
charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the period in which they A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under 
are incurred.which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and 

has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The company makes 
g) Government Grantsspecified monthly contributions towards provident fund. The 

Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the 
Government Grants in the nature of Government promoters' statement of profit and loss during the period in which employee 
contribution, i e. which have reference to the total investment in an renders the related service.
undertaking or by way of contribution towards total capital outlay, are Defined benefit plan :
credited to capital reserve.The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. 
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... on the evidence available, their existence at the Balance Sheet 
h) Financial Derivatives and Commodity Hedging date is considered probable.
Transactions

ii. Provision is recognized in the accounts in respect of present 
Financial Derivatives and commodity hedging contracts are probable obligations, the amount of which can be reliably 
accounted for on the date of their settlement and realized gain/loss estimated. 
in respect of settled contracts are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit & Loss, along with the underlying transactions. iii. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible 

obligations that arise from past events but their existence is 
i) Foreign Currency Transactions confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
a) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded Company.

at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. 
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the year iv. A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial 
end are translated at year end rates. statements.

b) Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost v. Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the balance sheet date. 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

n) Segment Reporting
c) In respect of monetary items which are covered by forward 

exchange contracts, the difference between the year end and Primary Segment
the rate on the date of contract is recognized as exchange 
difference and the premium on such forward contracts is Based on the guiding principles given in the Accounting Standard-
recognized over the life of the forward contract. 17 “Segment Reporting” issued by ICAI, the Company's segments 

are Sugar, Power Generation and Distillery.
d) The exchange differences arising on settlement/translation are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Revenue and expenses have been accounted for on the basis of 
their rela-tionship to the operating activities of the respective 

j) Taxes on Income segment.

i. Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis Segment Identification
of taxable income computed in accordance with the provisions 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Business segments have been identified on the basis of the nature 

of products/ services, the risk return profile of individual business, 
ii. Deferred Tax is recognized on timing differences between the organizational structure and the internal reporting system of the 

accounting income and taxable income for the period, and company.
quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively 
enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. o) Excise duty in respect of finished goods held in stock has been 

accounted for at the end of the year and is included in the value of 
iii. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only to the extent there is closing stock. 

reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will 
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be p) Earning Per Share
realized. Deferred Tax Assets in respect to brought forward 
losses/unabsorbed depreciation is recognized only to the Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) 
extent that there is a virtual certainty that sufficient future after tax (including the post tax effect of extra ordinary items, if any) 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
tax assets can be realized. during the year.

k) Impairment of Assets Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) 
after tax (including the post tax effect of extra ordinary items, if any) 

Impairment of individual assets/cash generating unit (a group of by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
assets that generates identified independent cash flows) are deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average 
identified using external and internal sources of information and number of equity shares which could be issued on the conversion of 
impairment loss if any, is determined and recognized in accordance all dilutive potential equity shares. 
with the Accounting Standard 28 issued in this regard by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. q) Cash Flow Statement

l) Leases Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit 
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 

Assets acquired as leases where a significant portion of the risks nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 
and rewards of the ownership are retained by the lessor are receipts or payment and item of income or expenses associated 
classified as operating leases. Lease rentals are charged to the with investing or financing flows. The cash flows operating, investing 
Statement of Profit & Loss on accrual basis. and financing activities of the company are segregated.

m) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

i. Provision is recognized in respect of obligations where, based 
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As at 31-March-2015
Rs.                   P.

As at 30-September-2013
Rs.                   P.

a. General Reserve
Balance as per last account 122,019,139.87      

122,019,139.87

b. Capital Reserve
Balance as per last account 4,833,000.00

         4,833,000.00

c. Initial Depreciation Reserve
Balance as per last account 172,449.73

            

172,449.73

d. Molasses Storage Fund
Balance as per last account 4,058,541.10

         

3,901,638.15

         

Less: Withdrwal/reversal during the year -

                         

500,000.00

            

Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit & Loss 4,400,000.00

         

-

                        

Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 1,057,480.00

         

716,021.10

            

656,902.95

            

4,058,541.10

 

e. Fixed Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance as per last account 2,741,510.05

         

3,237,876.52

         

Less: Utilised for set off against depreciation 630,410.24

            

2,111,099.81

         

496,366.47

            

2,741,510.05

f. Sugar Price Equalisation Reserve
Balance as per last account 1,239,508.05

         

1,239,508.05

g. Securities Premium Account
Balance as per last account 268,801,428.00 268,801,428.00

h. Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as per last account (487,214,640.79) (613,230,910.90)
Add: Transfer from Molasses Storage Fund
Less : Minority share of interest in capital 
          (Net of Share Capital of Rs. 27000/-)

4,400,000.00 -

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the current year 74,397,204.36 (408,573,355.76) 126,016,270.11 (487,214,640.79)

TOTAL (8,680,709.20) (83,349,063.99)

Note 2.1 - Share Capital

 
Current Year Previous  Year

Note 2.2 - Reserves and Surplus

Current Year Previous  Year

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.2 per share. Each holder of Equity 
Share is entitled to one vote per share. No dividend has been proposed.

             

*Net Minority interest is negative
Molasses Storage Fund has been created to meet the cost of construction of molasses storage tank as required under Uttar Pradesh Sheera Niyantran (Sansodhan) Adesh, 1974 
and the storage fund is represented by investment in the form of deposit in saving bank account with a bank amounting to Rs.19.93 lacs (Previous year Rs.8.91 lacs)
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AUTHORISED

100,000,000 Equity Shares  of  Rs. 2/- each 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP

92,000,170 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 

TOTAL

As at 30-September-2013
Rs.                   P.

200,000,000.00

184,000,340.00

184,000,340.00

a. Reconciliation of Number of Shares
Amount

Shares outstanding as at 1st October, 2013 184,000,340

 

Shares outstanding as at 31st March, 2015 184,000,340

As at 31-March-2015
Rs.                   P.

200,000,000.00

     184,000,340.00

     

 

184,000,340.00

     

No. of shares

                     

92,000,170

92,000,170

                      

b. List of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the
total number of shares issued by the company:

No. of shares % shareholding No. of shares % shareholding
Name of the shareholder
L K Jhunjhunwala 5602600 6.09 5602600 6.09
P C Jhunjhunwala 9946600 10.81 9944100 10.81
L K Jhunjhunwala (HUF) 10065900 10.94 10065900 10.94
Marvel Business Pvt. Ltd. 12450951 13.53 12450951 13.53

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

(155,919.33)
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State Bank of India SEFASU loan 0.75 -  95,940,822  26,640,822  32,040,000  37,260,000  

Punjab National Bank SEFASU loan 0.00 2,053,000 71,847,000  24,636,000  24,636,000  22,575,000  

Punjab National Bank 11.00 7,376,000
 

42,000,805
 

14,760,000
 

17,560,000
 

9,680,805
 

Allahabad Bank 11.50 20,450,000
 

116,942,306
 

40,850,000
 

48,600,000
 
27,492,306

 

Punjab National Bank -FITL New 10.50 21,064,307

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-  

Allahabad Bank - FITL 11.00 10,765,168

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-
 

Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India 4.00 148,500,000

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Unsecured loan -

 

-

 

15,400,000

 

-

 

-

 

15,400,000

 
Total 210,208,475

 

342,130,933

 

106,886,822

 

122,836,000

 

112,408,111

 

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013
Rs.                   P. Rs.                   P.

Current Non current Current Non current

Term loans
From Banks
Secured

a. State Bank of India  - SEFASU Loan -

                         

95,940,822.00

       

- -
b. Punjab National Bank  - SEFASU Loan 2,053,000.00

         

71,847,000.00

       

- -
c. Punjab National Bank  - Cogen loan -

                         

-

                       

- 69,638,611.16
d. Punjab National Bank  7,376,000.00

         

42,000,805.00

       

625,000.00 49,879,941.00
e. Allahabad Bank 20,450,000.00

       

116,942,305.65

     

1,750,000.00 139,156,743.00
f. Punjab National Bank - FITL Old -

                         

-

                       

952,199.00 -
g. Punjab National Bank - FITL New 21,064,307.00

       

-

                       

21,067,732.00 31,601,598.00
h. Allahabad Bank - FITL 10,765,168.42

       

-

                       

13,459,002.00 16,149,997.54
Total A 61,708,475.42

       

326,730,932.65

     

37,853,933.00 306,426,890.70

From other entities
Secured

a. Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India 148,500,000.00

     

-

                       

132,000,000.00 16,500,000.00
b. Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India (Modernisation) - - 5,843,400.00 -
c. Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India (Cane Development) - - 12,500,000.00 -
d. Sugar Development Fund (SDF) from Govt. of India (Modernisation) - - 12,500,000.00 -

Total B 148,500,000.00 - 162,843,400.00 16,500,000.00

From related parties
Unsecured loan - 15,400,000.00 - 15,400,000.00
Total C - 15,400,000.00 - 15,400,000.00

TOTAL (A+B+C) 210,208,475.42 342,130,932.65 200,697,333.00 338,326,890.70

Note 2.3 - Long Term Borrowings

P A R T I C U L A R S

a. Nature of Securities
i. Rupee Term Loan of State Bank of India and Punjab National Bank (SEFASU) are secured by residual charge on entire fixed assets and current assets of the company, present and 

future, on pari passu basis with other term lenders under scheme for extending Financial Assistance to Sugar Undertakings 2014 (SEAFSU).
ii. Punjab National Bank cogen loan is secured by first charge on entire fixed assets of the company on pari passu basis with other term lenders, personal guarantee of two directors, 

pledge of shares and corporate guarantee of a company.
iii. Rupee Term Loan of Punjab National Bank and Allahabad Bank are secured by 4th charge on entire fixed assets of the company on pari passu basis with other term lenders, personal 

guarantee of two directors, pledge of shares and and corporate guarantee of a company.
iv. FITL of Punjab National Bank and Allahabad Bank are secured by first charge on entire fixed assets of the company on pari passu basis with other term lenders, personal guarantee of 

two directors, pledge of shares and corporate guarantee of a company.
v. Rupee Term Loan from SDF are secured by second charge on Company's immovable and movable properties both present and future.
vi. Unsecured loan from related parties represent promoters contribution as per CDR approval.

b. Terms of repayment

 
Current Year Previous  Year

                                                 

1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years and above
Interest

Name of the banks / entities Rate % Current Non Current
Rs. Rs.

                                                                                         

                                                            

                                                                                         

Amount Outstanding 
as on 31 March, 2015

a.Rate of interest has been disclosed for loans which are outstanding on balance sheet date and in case of default, penal interest are charged as per sanction.
b.Interest sub-vention to the extent of 12% on SEFASU loan from State Bank of India and Punjab National Bank is to be funded by Central Government. 
State Bank of India SEFASU Loan is at 12.75%.
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Note 2.4 - Deferred tax liabilities

Note 2.5 - Other long term liabilities

        
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            

                            

         
         

       
As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

P A R T I C U L A R S
                            

Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
       

Rs.               P.
        
                                   

Refer note no. 2.29 (8)

*Refer note no. 2.29 (7)

Note 2.6 - Long term provisions

                        
   

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                                 

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013
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Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation 78,485,177.00       98,250,928.00          

Deferred Tax Assets
Carried forward losses 19,249,201.00       24,734,277.00       
Expenses allowable for tax purpose when paid 21,473,684.00

       
40,722,885.00

       
40,681,178.00

       
65,415,455.00

          

TOTAL 37,762,292.00

       

32,835,473.00

          

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

Rs.                   P. Rs.                   P.

Loan from UP Government * 1,450,000.00         1,450,000.00            

Others 796,321.85            796,321.85               

Total 2,246,321.85         2,246,321.85            

Provisions for employees benefit
     Unavailed leave         
     Gratuity                            

Other Provision including Excise duty               

TOTAL     

        
5,999,320.00         

135,529,759.00 

141,529,079.00          

5,223,535.00 

20,112,007.00 

25,335,542.00 

2,457,664.00 
3,541,656.00 

2,419,768.00 
2,803,767.00 
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Note 2.7 - Short term borrowings

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

             

Summary of short term borrowings

Secured borrowings

Nature of Securities

i. Working capital loans from State Bank of India is secured by way of hypothecation and first pari passu charge on stocks 
of sugar, molasses, consumable stores / spares, industrial alcohal, book debts and other current assets of the company, 
third pari passu charge with other working  capital lenders on entire fixed assets and all other movable and immovable 
assets of the company (existing & future), personal guarantee of three Directors, pledge of shares and corporate 
guarantee of a company.

ii. Working capital loan from Punjab National Bank is secured by pledge of stock of Crystal sugar, third pari passu charge 
with other working capital capital lenders on entire fixed assets and all other movable and immovable assets of the 
company (existing & future), personal guarantee of two Directors, pledge of shares and corporate guarantee of a 
company.         

iii. Working capital loans from The Federal Bank Ltd. is secured by way of hypothecation and first pari passu charge on 
stocks of sugar, molasses, consumable stores / spares, industrial alcohal, book debts and other current assets of the 
company, third pari passu charge with other working capital lenders on entire fixed assets and all other movable and 
immovable assets of the company (existing & future), personal guarantee of two  Directors, pledge of shares and 
corporate guarantee of a company.

iv. Loan from Union Bank of India is secured against a fixed deposit of Rs. 5 Lacs pledged with the bank.

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

N
o
te

s
 fo

rm
in

g
 p

a
rt o

f fin
a
n
c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

...

Loan repayable on demand
Working capital loans
From banks
Secured

a. State Bank of India
b. Punjab National Bank
c.
d.

The Federal Bank Ltd.
Union Bank of India

       
904,583,749.90

     
587,201,248.73

        
Other Loans and advances
Unsecured
From Others 1,040,840.00

         

1,040,840.00

            
TOTAL 905,624,589.90     588,242,088.73        

452,485,753.14
     373,310,328.30
    
    

 
 

78,383,346.10
404,322.36

349,465,814.63
     233,772,463.00
    
    

 
 

3,962,971.10
-
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Note 2.9 - Other current liabilities

       Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
 

P A R T I C U L A R S
                                     

         

* Refer note no.2.3 (a), (b) & (c) for nature of securities and terms of repayment respectively.
** Include Excise Duty and Cess on closing stock.

Note 2.10 - Short term provisions

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

Note 2.8 - Trade Payables

       Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
 

P A R T I C U L A R S
                            

                            

         
         

        

           
                     

* Includes Rs.12.59 lacs due to micro and small enterprises. [Refer note no.2.29 (14)]

Trade payable (Other than acceptance)* 1,248,579,693.96       

Total 1,248,579,693.96       

           

              

139,244,305.83           

139,244,305.83

          

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

           

           

N
o
te

s
 f

o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

...

i. Current maturities of long term debt* 210,208,475.42     200,697,333.00        
ii. Payable to capital goods supplier 7,231,982.04         5,330,539.65            
iii. Staturory liabilities ** 102,904,088.28     29,477,816.85          
iv. Advances from Customers 29,982,225.72       2,863,382.57            
v. Interest accrued but not due on borrowings -                        2,167,496.42            
vi. Interest accrued and due on borrowings 8,289,148.00         24,551,972.93          
vii. Security Deposits 30,789,828.32       15,602,729.52          
viii. Outstanding liability of related party 9,504,471.61         1,550,554.94            
ix. Salary and other payables to employees 9,972,711.52         9,593,725.06            
x. Others 9,273,737.10         9,680,391.67            

TOTAL 418,161,668.01
     

301,515,942.61
       
 

Provision for employee benefit - 
     Unavailed leave 177,317.00           200,631.00            
     Gratuity 2,578,556.00 2,755,873.00

         
1,647,057.00

         
1,847,688.00

For Income Tax -
                        

-

TOTAL 2,755,873.00 1,847,688.00
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a.

Other Investments

b.
Reliance  Industries  Ltd.
Reliance Communication Ltd.
Reliance Infrastructure Ltd.
Reliance Capital Ltd.
Reliance Power Ltd.

10
10

10
5

10
10
10

25,000
1,000

84
42
3
2

10

                    

                    

10,000.00

                  

1,000,000.00

                         

5,876.00

                         

4,373.00

                           

825.00

                           

147.00
79.00

1,021,300.00

                 
                 
                    

                    

              

              

1,000

         

25,000

84
42
3
2

10

 

 

10,000.00

 

1,000,000.00

5,876.00
4,373.00

825.00
147.00
79.00

1,021,300.00

Unquoted (valued at cost)

Chamoli Hydro Power (P) Ltd.

Aggregate market value of listed and quoted investments 

In equity shares of companies fully paid up

K M Shakar Karkhana Pvt Ltd

In equity shares of companies fully paid up

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments Rs.10,83,000/-

 

Total 

Rs.74,478/- (Previous year Rs.76,461/-)

Non Trade Investments

Quoted (valued at cost)

Aggregate amount of quoted investments Rs.11,300/-

Note 2.12 - Non-current Investments

                    
                  

                         
                         
                           

                           

                         

Rs.No. of sharesRs.No. of shares

                                    
         
 

    P A R T I C U L A R S                           
     

Face
Value

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

      Note 2.13 Long-term loans and advances 
(unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

As at 31st March, 2015 As at 30th September, 2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

N
o
te

s
 f

o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

...

Capital advances             
           

Security deposits          
           

Other loans and advances
    Advance to suppliers and others
            Considered Good                   
            Considered doubtful
            Less: Allowance for doubtful advance

 
            Income Tax payments 
           (Net of provision Rs.103.17 lacs previous year Rs.Nil)

            Duties and taxes paid under protest

158,000.00
3,867,594.46

 
 
 

 
 6,379,485.13

10,405,079.59

9,795,931.20
4,129,994.46

         
       
       
         
         

11,453,953.98

25,379,879.64Total

-

                        31,357,798.21

      
31,357,449.72

      
348.49

                  
5,637,906.64

        741,230.00

5,216,800.00
26,140,713.06
26,140,649.72
5,216,863.34
5,526,599.64

710,491.00
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      Note 2.14 Other non-current assets 
(unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

       Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
                                      
         

Refer note no. 2.29 (7)

 
P A R T I C U L A R S

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.
        
                                   

      Note 2.15 Inventories (valued at lower of cost 
and net realisable value, unless stated otherwise)

            Refer note no. 1.3 significant accounting policies

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.
        
                                   

      Note 2.16 Trade receivables (unsecured, considered good)

       

 

             

       

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

N
o
te

s
 fo

rm
in

g
 p

a
rt o

f fin
a
n
c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

...

1,450,000.00
         

1,450,000.00
           

 -
                        

90,672.00
                Others 338,543.82

            
338,543.82

              
 1,788,543.82

         

1,879,215.82

            

 
Fixed deposits with banks (Non current portion with original maturity
period of more than 12 months)
       For a loan held by District Magistrate, Faizabad*

Total

 Interest accrued but not due

       Molasses in Distillery Division 23,170,500.00
       

19,944,983.00
       Rectified Spirit 13,859,139.00

       
-

Work-in-progress
        Biocompost 211,456.00

            

211,456.00

            

-
 Finished goods
       Sugar 1,654,485,719.00

  

667,971,292.00
       Molasses 119,911,050.00

     

24,019,329.00
        Industrial Alcohal 43,787,150.00

       

6,920,115.00
       Country liquor 1,031,722.00

         

-
       Bagasse 15,414,528.00 2,989,490.00
       Banked power 3,701,552.00 805,448.00
       Carbon credit - 728,797.00
       Pressmud 64,616.00 1,838,396,337.00 - 703,434,471.00
Stores and spares 43,006,957.93 42,987,426.96

1,918,644,389.93 766,366,880.96Total

Raw materials

   a. Considered good
   b. Considered doubtful

   Less: Provision for doubtful debts 42,482,214.88       

274,398,421.49
     

316,880,636.37
               

7,615,045.52
            

78,287,666.54
          

85,902,712.06
          

Trade receivables outstanding for a period 
exceeding 6 months from due date

Other trade receivables- considered good

Total

42,482,126.59       
3,626,938.07         

46,109,064.66       
3,626,849.78         

7,615,045.52         
35,990,054.00       
43,605,099.52       
35,990,054.00
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Note 2.17  Cash and cash equivalents

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

Note 2.18 Short-term loans and advances 
(unsecured, considered good)

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

Note 2.19  Other current assets (unsecured, considered good)

       Rs.               P. Rs.               P.
 

P A R T I C U L A R S
                                     

         

          

                 

 

 

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

As at 30-September-2013As at 31-March-2015
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Balances with banks
      In current accounts
      In EEFC account
Cheques on hand
Cash on hand

        
             

Molasses storage fund in S/B account (Earmarked)

 
 

20,911,808.96
1,711,775.00
2,202,853.28

 
 

51,780,973.00
1,992,579.58

78,599,989.82

       

       
            

21,274,788.06
1,852,250.00

844,269.65

 

         
         

3,219,973.00
891,468.58

28,082,749.29

Fixed deposit for Bank guarantee deposited with bank as 
margin money -Earmarked

      Original maturity period more than 12 months

      Original maturity period upto 12 months

Total

20,908,553.96       
3,255.00

               

3,219,973.00
48,561,000.00

21,123,998.06

       
150,790.00

         
         

1,500,000.00
1,719,973.00

As at 31-March-2015 As at 30-September-2013

Loan and advances to related parties
       Considered good                  
Security deposits                    
Other loans and advances
      Advance to suppliers and others
      Advance to employees
      Cenvat, Vat and other taxes/duties
       Prepaid expenses
       Others              

    

- 
5,889,756.85 

122,221,260.11 

128,111,016.96           

 
 

 

5,430,879.80 
5,912,856.85 

51,005,052.75 

62,348,789.40 
 
Total

101,103,473.75
1,517,754.89 

14,310,111.50 
5,003,988.00 

285,931.97 

39,755,189.30       
1,911,206.10         
8,094,360.85         
1,073,692.50         

170,604.00            

Refer note no. 2.29 (10)

1,569,725.89         342,965.00               
138,293,001.16     -                            
24,952,837.00       6,456,985.00            

164,815,564.05     6,799,950.00            

Interest accrued / receivable
Cane Price and Commission receivable*
Others

Total



81

Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.20 Revenue from operations

P A R T I C U L A R S

Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.21 Other income

P A R T I C U L A R S

Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.22  Cost of materials consumed

P A R T I C U L A R S

* Refer note no.2.29 (10) 

Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.23  Purchases of stock-in-trade

P A R T I C U L A R S        

    

Sugar

Total

 

 

 

  
     

         

  
      

- 

- 

 

 

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

N
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...

Year ended
30th September, 2013

Sale of goods (Gross)
       Sugar (Including trading Rs.4893.95 lacs Previous year Rs. Nil)
       Molasses
       Power 
       Industrial alcohol 

       Bagasse sale
       Bio compost manure

      Country liquor

Revenue from operations (Gross)
 Less : Excise duty, cess and administrative charges on sale of goods

Revenue from operations (Net)

4,474,097,303.00
-

416,771,040.00
554,178,678.00
83,349,749.14

160,406,329.25
1,755,052.00

5,690,558,151.39
186,073,938.00

5,504,484,213.39

  
2,324,898,925.55

                       
1,200,661.33

     
239,506,757.09

     

258,719,911.00
-
-

1,026,535.00      
     
        

2,825,352,789.97
99,473,654.08

2,725,879,135.89

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

Interest income
       Fixed deposits with banks
       Others  
 Other non-operating income
     Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations

                 Insurance claims  

        
     Profit on sale of fixed assets 

        
     Unspent liabilities/balances written back  

             
     Carbon credit/REC receipt

      

     Miscellaneous income

      

     Prior period income
     Provision for doubtful debts reversal

2,117,555.89        
10,470,609.00      

581,648.50
1,318,219.00
2,247,045.00

25,000.00
15,416,220.00
10,067,543.03

-
27,871,254.00
71,115,094.42          

 850,342.07
11,786,589.09

5,803,076.00
144,437.00
106,608.21

 

160,002.43
-

4,026,998.68
2,564,098.85

25,442,152.33Total

Sugar cane* 5,003,084,065.82  2,596,437,115.06     
Molasses 27,851,630.40       6,300,373.00            
Spirit 4,140,731.00         -                            

5,035,076,427.22   2,602,737,488.06     Total

    

    

447,690,277.00 

447,690,277.00 
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Note 2.24  Changes in inventories of 
finished goods, by-products and work-in-progress

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

     

Rs.               P. Rs.                 P.

Note 2.25  Employee benefits expense

P A R T I C U L A R S

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

     

Note 2.26 Finance costs

                 

18 months ended 31st March, 2015 Year ended 30th September, 2013

18 months ended 31st March, 2015 Year ended 30th September, 2013
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18 months ended
31st March, 2015

Year ended
30th September, 2013

Finished goods
Opening stock
      Sugar 667,971,292.00

     
177,171,452.00

      Molasses 32,414,403.00

       

5,958,261.50
      Bagasse 2,989,490.00

         

2,335,200.00
      Industrial alcohol 6,920,115.00

         

1,103,740.00
     Country liquor -

                         

-
      Banked Power 805,448.00

            

917,803.00
      Carbon credit 728,797.00

            

-
      Biocompost manure -

                         

711,829,545.00

     

- 187,486,456.50
Less : Closing stock
      Sugar 1,654,485,719.00

  

667,971,292.00
      Molasses 143,081,550.00

     

32,414,403.00
      Bagasse 15,414,528.00

       

2,989,490.00
      Industrial alcohol 43,787,150.00

       

6,920,115.00
     Country liquor 1,031,722.00

         

      Banked Power 3,701,552.00

         

805,448.00
      Carbon credit -

                         

728,797.00
      Pressmud 64,616.00 1,861,566,837.00 - 711,829,545.00

Total (A) (1,149,737,292.00) (524,343,088.50)
Work-in-progress
Opening stock - -
Less : Closing stock 211,456.00 -

Total (B) (211,456.00) -
Total (A+B) (1,149,948,748.00) (524,343,088.50)

Less: Difference of Excise Duty on opening and closing stock 51,719,766.00 18,887,143.00

(1,098,228,982.00) (505,455,945.50)Total

Salary, wages and bonus 128,239,103.37      75,082,963.69          
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 10,604,186.00        5,097,287.00            
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 2,347,388.00

         
1,259,306.60

            Gratuity 4,218,650.00
         

1,994,355.00
            

145,409,327.37

     

83,433,912.29

          
 

Total

Interest expense
    Cash Credit  
    Term loan  
    Others

              
123,651,503.75

       

 Documentation and other bank charges 5,252,270.28
           

 

137,283,303.39
     

4,762,826.92
         

142,046,130.31

     

128,903,774.03Total

68,112,130.00       
68,131,648.39       1,039,525.00

         

49,758,108.00      
73,802,845.32      

90,550.43
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P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

          

Note 2.27 Depreciation and amortisation expense

     

       
P A R T I C U L A R S

                            
Rs.               P. Rs.               P. Rs.               P.

       
Rs.               P.

        
                                   

                               

          

Note 2.28 Other expenses

       

 

18 months ended 31st March, 2015 Year ended 30th September, 2013

18 months ended 31st March, 2015 Year ended 30th September, 2013

N
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...

Depreciation and amortisation on tangible assets         
Less: Transferred from revaluation reserve             90,059,261.44
Amortisation on intangible assets

              
58,767.00

 142,561,080.35
87,602.56

142,648,682.91

     
90,118,028.44Total

143,191,490.59    
630,410.24           

90,555,627.91

     496,366.47

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Packing materials
Power and fuel
Rent
Repairs
      Buildings
      Machinery
      Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes (excluding taxes on income)
Selling Expenses :
     Commission to Selling Agents
     Other Selling Expenses
     Selling Expenses on Sugar Trading
Payments to auditor
      Statutory audit fee
      Tax audit fee
      Reimbursement of expenses

                            
Charity and donation   
Printing and stationary
Communication expenses
Travelling Expenses
Consultancy and legal expenses
Director sitting fee
Director remuneration
Miscellaneous expenses 
Provision of Excise Duty demand
Transfer to storage fund for molasses 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 
Balances written off
Prior period expenses 

57,375,232.55       
102,081,946.52     
36,836,886.51       
11,997,538.00       

177,027,318.09
     4,450,189.00
         5,177,655.12
         

66,843,211.00

       

564,145.00

            
159,553.00

            
1,714,243.53

         
2,301,208.74

         

27,698,657.02

       

13,367,817.62

       

185,000.00

            

10,750,000.00

       

33,993,371.74

       

115,417,752.00

     

1,057,480.00

         

724,849.78

            

60,636.75

              

1,684,325.00

671,499,016.97

 
 

26,417,986.30          
28,675,849.25          
20,466,520.29          
3,249,535.00           

74,958,265.17
          2,140,371.00
           1,946,354.62
           

 

13,957,018.60

          

337,982.00

              
17,753.00

                
861,401.00

              
1,337,037.74

           
11,476,205.33

          

6,415,899.00

           

40,000.00

                

2,850,000.00

           

20,696,361.62

          

-

                           

656,902.95

              

5,778,864.00

           

1,340,332.92

           

-

                           

223,620,639.79TOTAL

32,657,962.55
       129,141,157.18
     15,228,198.36
       

8,696,010.00

         20,211,732.00

       37,935,469.00

       305,000.00

            
200,000.00

            
59,145.00

7,167,278.20
         61,822,964.34
       5,968,022.63
         

4,235,439.00

         9,721,579.60

         -

                        200,000.00

            
100,000.00

            
37,982.00
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Note 2.29  Notes to the accounts

2.29  Other Disclosures: a. Defined contribution plans 
Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund are considered as 

1. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not defined contribution plan. The contribution to defined contribution 
provided for and as certified by the management) plan, recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit & 

Loss:
   (a) Contingent liabilities Current period Previous year

Employers' contribution           Rs.1,06,04,186/- Rs. 50,97,287/-
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in to provident fund

respect of pending cases of employees   under labour laws - 
Rs.150.14 lacs (Previous Year - Rs.128.72 lacs). b. Defined benefits plans

(ii) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts in Long term employee benefits in the form of gratuity and leave 
respect of criminal and Civil Cases   Rs.35.43 lacs (Previous encashment are considered as defined benefit plan. The present 
Year -Rs.31.17 lacs). value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using 

projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The 
(iii) Bank guarantees given to the Central Government, Excise amount of defined benefits recognized in the balance sheet 

Department and Indian Oil Corporation Ltd., aggregating to represent the present value of obligation as adjusted for 
Rs.373.76 lacs (Previous Year  Rs.132.96 lacs). unrecognized past service cost as reduced by the fair value of plan 

assets.
(iv) Company has given guarantee to the banks, which provided 

vehicle loans to the employees of the company, outstanding In accordance with the Accounting Standard 15, actuarial valuation 
loan as on 31.03.2015  NIL (Previous Year  Rs. 0.42 lacs). was done in respect of gratuity and leave encashment defined 

benefits plans and details of the same are given below:
(v) Interest recompense payable to lenders under CDR scheme 

estimated amounting to Rs.676.43 lacs (Previous Year  
Rs.409.81 lacs). It is stipulated that minimum 75% of the 
recompense amount should be recovered by the lenders in 
terms of CDR circular.

(vi) Disputed sales tax, income tax and excise duty cases under 
appeal - Rs.24603.80 lacs (Previous Year Rs.8935.20 lacs)

Description Current Period Previous year
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

Central Excise Act 1856.46   515.40
Sales Tax/Trade Tax/Entry Tax 0.04 39.63
Income Tax                              22746.02 8378.89 
Others 1.28      1.28

--------------         -------------
Total  24603.80  8935.20 

--------------         -------------

The amount shown above represent the best possible estimates 
arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties 
and timing of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of 
different legal processes which have been invoked by the company 
or the claimants as the case may be and therefore cannot be 
ascertained accurately. The company does not expect any 
reimbursements in respect of above contingent liabilities.

In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered 
necessary for the disputes mentioned above on the grounds that 
there are fair chances of successful outcome of appeals filed by the 
company. 

(b) Commitments :

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for-Nil (Previous Year - 
Rs.211.33 lacs).

(ii) Advances paid against above- Nil (Previous Year -Rs.96.38 
lacs).

2. Employee Benefits

As per Accounting Standard -15 'Employees Benefits' the disclosure 
of Employee Benefits as defined in the Accounting Standard are as 
follow : 
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Gratuity 
 

Current 
period 

Gratuity 
 

Previous 

Year 

Leave 
Encashment 
Current 

period 

Leave 
Encashment 
Previous  

Year 

Discount rate (per annum) 

Future salary increase
Expected rate of return on plan assets 

Mortality

8.00% 

5.00% 

8.50% 

IALM 2006-08 
Ultimate 

8.50% 

5.00% 

8.50% 

IALM 2006-
08 Ultimate 

8.00% 

5.00% 

0% 

IALM 2006-08 

Ultimate 

9.00% 

5.00% 

0% 

IALM 2006-
08 Ultimate 

I. Expenses recognized in profit and loss account 

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets

 

Net actuarial loss/ (gain) recognized in the
 

period
 

 
 

17,97,812
 

22,93,678
 

(12,49,926)
 

22,01,344
 

 
 

13,05,309
 

15,42,339
 

(11,41,944)
 

(3,21,638)
 

 
 

4,96,520
 

3,14,161
 

-
 

32,89,940
 

 
 

3,59,713
 

2,51,017
 

-
 

10,32,101
 

Net expenses recognized
 

50,42,908
 

20,27,342
 

41,00,621
 

16,42,831
 

II. Net l iability/(assets) recognized in the balance 
sheet as at 31st March, 2015

 

Present value of obligation at the end of period
 

Fair value of the plan asset at the end of period
 

Funded status [(surplus/(deficit)]
 

 
 
 

2,33,50,108
 

1,55,42,518
 

(78,07,590)
 

 
 
 

1,91,31,458
 

1,38,67,514
 

(52,63,944)
 

 
 
 

26,34,981
 

-
 

(26,34,981)
 

 
 
 

26,20,399
 

-
 

(26,20,399)
 

Net (asset)/liability as at 31st
 

March, 2015
 

2,33,50,108
 

1,91,31,458
 

26,34,981
 

26,20,399
 

III. Change in present value of obligation during the 
year

Present value of obligation at the beginning of year

 

Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligations

 

 
 
 
 
 

1,91,31,458

 

17,97,812

 
 

22,93,678

 
 

(27,43,754)

 

28,70,914

 

 
 
 
 
 

1,71,37,103

 

13,05,309

 
 

15,42,339

 
 

(11,01,806)

 

2,48,513

 

 
 
 
 
 

26,20,399

 

4,96,520

 

3,14,161

 

(40,86,039)

 

32,89,940

 

 
 
 
 
 

27,89,079

 

3,59,713

 

2,51,017

 

(18,11,511)

 

10,32,101

 

Present value of obligation at the year end 

 

2,33,50,108

 

1,91,31,458

 

26,34,981

 

26,20,399

 

IV. Change in present value of fair value of plan 
assets

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of period
Return on plan assets
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss/ (gain) 

 
 
 

1,38,67,514
19,19,496

 
 
 

1,30,01,768
10,68,819

 
 
 

-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 

-
-

-
-

Fair value of plan assets at the year end 1,55,42,518 1,38,67,514 - -
Details of plan asset Gratuity

Trust
Gratuity

Trust 
N/A N/A
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Note: The Company funded the gratuity liability through a separate On the basis of future projections taken on record by the 
Gratuity Fund. The fair value of the plan assets is based on the management after considering improved performance of 
information certified by the management. However, the gratuity Cogen and Distillery Divisions, the management is confident 
liability of Rs.23,60,274/- of Co-Gen  Division is not funded. that there is a virtual certainty that sufficient taxable income will 

be available in the forthcoming financials years against which, 
3. Short term loans and advances shown under Notes 2.18 the deferred tax assets can be realized in the normal course of 

includes certain advances given to suppliers of raw material business of the company. 
and revenue purchases, which are adjustable against the 
supply of goods/services but are running due in the books since 9. The Commissioner, Central Excise and Service Tax, Lucknow 
long. The management is of the opinion that these balances has passed the orders on 31.03.2015 in consequence to show 
are recoverable/adjustable in future and accordingly, provision cause notices issued earlier and raised a demand of 
against the same has not been considered at this stage. Rs.13,55,29,759 on account of exemption of excise duty 

claimed on molasses consumed in house for distillery 
4. Certain bank accounts shown in Notes 2.17 of Cash and Bank operations and also cenvat credit availed during the period 

balances under sub-head 'Balance with Banks' are non- from July, 2007 to March, 2013. Accordingly a provision of 
operating for last some period and are also subject to Rs.1154.18 lacs after adjusting brought forward provision has 
reconciliation and receipt of confirmation. As such, the balance been made in the Statement of Profit & Loss.  
of Rs.1.99 lacs shown in respect of those bank accounts in the  
financial statements is as per books of account only. 10. Cost of material consumed for the 18 months period ended 

31st March, 2015 is net of financial assistance of Rs.6/- per qtl. 
5.   In view of the decision of Hon'ble Supreme Court, extra  price of cane purchased during sugar season 2013-14 amounting to 

and  excise  duty  realized  on  levy  sugar  in  earlier  years Rs.555.19 lacs extended by the State Government. Further for 
amounting to Rs.67.11 lacs for funding under the Sugar  Price the sugar season 2014-15, the Government of Uttar Pradesh 
Equalization  Fund Act, 1976 was transferred to Sugar Price has announced certain financial assistance including Rs.8.60 
Equalization Reserve Account. Later on as per the order dated per qtl of cane linked to average selling price of sugar and its by 
22.09.1993 of Hon'ble Supreme  Court, a sum of Rs.17.90 lacs products during the period 01.10.14 to 31.05.15 which is to be 
was  paid   to  the   Government   out  of  bank  guarantee  recommended by the Committee constituted by the 
furnished  by  the  Company and further, during the year 1998- Government of Uttar Pradesh as the average selling price of 
99 a sum of Rs.1.00 lac was paid towards Excise Duty on the sugar is significantly lower than the thresh hold specified in the 
above. The company has further made a payment of Rs.35.81 above announcement. Accordingly, the company has 
lacs during the year 2005-06 to the Government of India accounted for the above financial assistance of Rs.782.45 lacs 
against the bank guarantee furnished by it along with interest of for sugar season 2014-15 lacs and adjusted the same against 
Rs.118.25 lacs thereon. Still a sum of Rs.12.40 lacs is lying in the cost of material.
the Sugar Price Equalization Reserve as on 31.03.15 shown  
under Note 2.2 of “Reserve & Surplus”. 11. Since, the sugar industry is a seasonal industry; the cost of 

production of sugar is worked out on annualized basis.
6.  Certain balances in account of debtors, advances, deposit 

account, and creditors are subject to reconciliation and 12. Related Party Disclosures:-
confirmation by the respective parties. In some of the cases, 
the amount is overdue for last some years and consequential Pursuant to compliance of Accounting Standard (AS 18) on 
revenue impact, if any, is not ascertainable. However, related party disclosure, the relevant information is provided here 
management has reviewed these advances from its realization below:-
point of view and based on the management's working, the 
required provisions in respect thereof has been considered in a) Related party where control exist
these financial statements, wherever necessary. As far as 
other balances are concerned, the management is of the ? Shri L. K. Jhunjhunwala -Chairman
opinion that these balances are recoverable/adjustable and ? Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala -Managing Director
accordingly, provision against the same has not been ? Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala -Joint Managing Director
considered at this stage and these balances are disclosed in 
the financial statements as per books of account only. The b) Details of the related parties:
management is of the view that the realization from these 
assets in the ordinary course of business would not be less i. Key Management Persons (Group A)
than the amount at which they are stated in the books of ? Shri L. K. Jhunjhunwala -Chairman
account. Further, there is no system of charging interest as per ? Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala -Managing Director
market tradition on amount due from sundry debtors and the ? Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala -Joint Managing Directorparties to whom advances extended in the ordinary course of 

? Shri S. C. Agarwal -Executive Directorbusiness and which remains due for a substantial period.  

ii. Key Management Persons' relatives (Group B)7. Long term liabilities (Note No.2.5) includes a loan from U.P. 
Government amounting to Rs.14.50 lacs. The issue relating to 

? Shri P. C. Jhunjhunwalainterest payable thereon is under dispute and the matter is sub-
? L. K. Jhunjhunwala (HUF)judice before the Hon'ble Allahabad High Court. However, as 
? A. K. Jhunjhunwala (HUF)per the interim order of the Court, a fixed deposit of Rs.14.50 

lacs has been kept with the District Magistrate, Faizabad. In ? S. K. Jhunjhunwala (HUF)
opinion of the management, the interest due on fixed deposit is ? Smt. Naina Jhunjhunwala (Wife of Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala)
sufficient to meet out the interest liability of the Company on the ? Smt. Priti Jhunjhunwala (Wife of Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala)
said loan and as such, no interest is being provided for in these ? Smt. Priti Jhunjhunwala (Wife of Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala)
financial statements. ? Shri Vatsal Jhunjhunwala (Son of Shri A. K. Jhunjhunwala)

? Smt. Reena Agarwal (Wife of Shri S. C. Agarwal)
8. For the purpose of computing deferred tax liability, amount of 

? Shri Ayush Agarwal (Son of Shri S. C. Agarwal)brought forward losses as claimed in the income tax returns 
? Shri Payoush Agarwal (Son of Shri S. C. Agarwal)filed has been considered for recognizing deferred tax assets. 

N
o
te

s
 fo

rm
in

g
 p

a
rt o

f fin
a
n
c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

...



86

i. The transactions with related parties have been entered at an 
iii. Associates (Group C) amount, which are not materially different from those on normal 

commercial terms.
? K. M. Vyapar (P) Ltd. ii. No amount has been written back/written off during the year in 

respect to due to/due from related parties.? K.M. Plantations (P) Ltd. 
iii. The amount due from related parties are good and hence no ? Marvel Business (P) Limited

provision for doubtful debts in respect of dues from such related ? Francoise Commerce (P) Limited
parties is required.? Nidhi Financial Services (P) Limited

? Shree Shakti Credits Limited 13. Segment Reporting: Information on the Segment Reporting of 
? Prakash Properties Limited the company for the period ended 31.03.2015:
? Promissing Logistics (P) Ltd.
? Shailja Propertied (P) Ltd. The company has identified three primary business segments viz. 
? Zar International (P) Ltd. Sugar, Distillery and Co-generation. Segments have been identified 

and reported taking into account the nature of products, the differing 
iv. Companies/ Parties in which Key management person or his risks and returns, the organizational structure and internal business 
relatives have substantial interest/ significant influence (Group D) reposting system.                    

(Rs. in  Lacs)? Shivam Trust
? Vatsal Trust
? Palak Jhunjhunwala Trust
? Laxmi Public Charitable Trust
? Jhunjhunwala P G College

c) Details of the related parties with whom transactions have taken 
place during the year:

I. Subsidiaries - K M Energy Pvt. Ltd.
    
II. Related Parties 

Key Management Persons (Group A)

? Shri L. K. Jhunjhunwala -Chairman
? Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala -Managing Director
? Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala -Joint Managing Director
? Shri S. C. Agarwal -Executive Director

Associates (Group C)
? K. M. Vyapar (P) Ltd.
? Shree Shakti Credits Limited
? Zar International (P) Ltd.

Associates (Group D)

? Laxmi Public Charitable Trust
? Jhunjhunwala P G College

d) Details of transactions with the related parties during the year
(Rs. In Lacs)

*Capital expenditure includes fixed assets capitalized during the 
year and net increase/decrease in capital work-in-progress.

The transactions between segments are primarily for materials 
which are transferred at market determined prices. Common costs 
are apportioned on a reasonable basis.

Information about Secondary Geographical Segment: There is no 
secondary segment.

14. Following are the relevant disclosures as required under the 
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

a. Sundry creditors include a sum aggregating Rs.12.59 lacs 
(Rs.36.84 lacs) due to micro & small enterprises is on account 
of principal only.

b. The Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of 
Section 16, along with the amount of payment made to the 
micro & small enterprises beyond the appointed date during the 
year Rs. Nil.
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S.No  Nature of Transaction  Related parties group Total
Current
period 
(Previous 
year) 

   
 

A  
C.P. (P.Y.)

 

B  
C.P. (P.Y.)

 

C
C.P. (P.Y.)

D
C.P. 
(P.Y.)

1

 
Remuneration 
including contribution 
to Provident Fund

 
 

   
 116.79  

(15.49)  

 
 
 

-  (-)  - (-) - (-)
116.79
(15.49) 

2

 

Sugar Sale

   

-

    

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

98.50 (-) - (-) 98.50 (-) 

3

 

Rent Paid

   

-

   

( -)

 

-

 

(-)

 

96.85 
(27.03)

- (-) 96.85 
(27.03)

4

 

Advance Received

  

-

 

(-)

 

-

 

(-)

 

65.00 
(26.80)

- (-) 65.00 
(26.80)

5 Advance given - (-) - (-) 80.16 
(25.79)

- (-) 80.16 
(25.79)

6 Advance received
back

- (-) - (-) 54.31
(136.39)

- (-) 54.31 
(136.39)

7 Other balances repaid 3.13 
(-)

3.13 
(-)

 
 

      

     
8 Outstanding Balances 

as on 3 1.03.2015 on 
account of: 
a) Receivables - (-) - (-) - (54.31) - (-) (54.31) 

b) Payables 199.91
(154.61)

- (-)    (-) 49.13
(12.21)

-
(3.30)

249.04
(170.12) 

Particulars Sugar Distillery

2015 2013 2015
Revenue

Gross sales 56605.50 26070.39 6392.83
 Less: Inter segment 

sales
10260.46 2809.39 -

 
External sales 46345.04 23261.00 6392.83

 Less: Excise duty 
and cess

1263.90 710.12 596.84

 Net sales 45081.14 22550.88 5795.99

 
Add: Other income

518.49 324.01 22.45

 Total Revenue
45599.63 22874.89 5818.44

 Segment Results       
1403.14 1115.82 (416.14)
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c. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment which have been paid but beyond the c) Break up of Raw Materials and components consumed.

Current period Previous year appointed day during the year but without adding the interest 
Percentage    Amount Percentage Amount specified under this Act. Rs. Nil.

` (in lacs)      (in lacs)      d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Rs. Nil.
i. Raw materiale. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
Indigenous                    100% 50350.76 100% 26027.37in succeeding year Rs. Nil. Imported                                           -   - - -
ii. Stores and packing material                                            

The above mentioned outstanding are in normal course of business 
and the information regarding micro & small enterprises have been Indigenous                    100% 1594.57 100%    550.94 

Imported                                           -   - - -determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information available with the company.

18. Payments to Auditors:

15. Earning Per Share
      - Audit Fee         Rs.3,00,000/- (Previous Year: Rs.2,00,000/-)

In compliance of Accounting Standard (AS-20) on Earning per       - Tax Audit Fee    Rs.2,00,000/- (Previous Year: Rs.1,00,000/-)
Share, the relevant information is provided here below:-

Current period     Previous year 19. The borrowings from banks were restructured under Corporate 
                                       (Amount Rs. In lacs) Debt Restructuring Mechanism (CDR) vide letter of approval 

Net Profit/Loss after tax as per 748.92        1260.16 dated 27.03.2012 issued by CDR EG. This CDR package has 
statement of Profit & Loss since been implemented and necessary effect to the extent 
No. of Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 92000170      92000170 allowed by the banks has been considered in the financial 
Earning Per Equity Share in Rs. 0.81              1.37 statements. Accordingly, interest refunded by the lenders has 
(Basic & diluted) been adjusted against the finance cost of the period. 

16. Directors' Remuneration:- 20. The company would be able to realize a sum of Rs.365.79 lacs 
against a debtor for which provision has been made in past on 
account of doubtful nature of the same. As the amount is 
realizable, the excess provision has been reversed. 

21. There is no liability for the period ended on 31st March, 2015 
towards Corporate Social Responsibility based on the 
performance of last 3 years as there is net loss computed for 
last 3 years. 

22. Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the 
company is required to close its financial year only on 31st 
March and accordingly to align its financial year as per 
amended provisions, the current financial year of the company 
has been extended till 31.03.2015 covering the period from 
01.10.2013 to 31.03.2015 i.e. for 18 months and necessary 
compliance has been made in this regard. As such, the figures 
of current period are not comparable with previous year's 
figures.

 
23. The previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified, 

Note: The value of perquisites shown above is as per the income tax reworked and rearranged wherever necessary to correspond 
provisions. with the current period classification/disclosures. Amounts and 

other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an 
17. Statement of additional information:- integral part of the current period financial statements and are 

to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures 
a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency: relating to current period.   
 Traveling Expenses Rs.44.33 lacs (P.Y.-Rs.10.16 lacs)
 Others Rs.  5.42 lacs  (P.Y.- Rs.2.97 lacs)
 
b) Receipt of interest in Foreign Currency of old dues:  Rs. 113.94 
lacs (P.Y.- Nil)
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S.
No.

Chairman Managing 
Director and 

Joint Managing 
Director

 
Executive 
Director 

a)

 

Salary

 

(Previous Year)

 

41,50,000

           

(5,25,000)

 

44,00,000

 

(6,00,000)

 

22,00,000
(1,95,000)

b)

 

Contribution to Provident 
Fund (Previous Year)

4,41,000

               

(1,05,000)
4,68,000

    

(1,20,000)
19,620
(3,900)

c)

 

Perquisites:

   
   

 

(i) Residence

   

     

-Furnished

 
    

(Previous Year)

 
-

   

(-)

 
-

 

(-)

 

-
 

(ii) Residence

   
      

-Unfurnished

 
    

(Previous Year)

 
-

 

(-)

 
-

 

(-)

 
1,65,000

(-) 

(iii)Medical 
Reimbursement

 

(Previous Year)
 

16,023

   

(-)

 71,395

 
 

(26,940)

 
 

28,835
(8,059)

 
(iv) Other benefits

 
-

 
(-)

 
-

   
(-)

 
- (-)

 Total  
(Previous Year)  

46,07,023            
(6,30,000)  

49,39,395                 
(7,46,940 )  

24,13,455
(2,06,959 )

   
   

   

   

   

      
    
      

As per our report of even date attached hereto
For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.0226C

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

       
       
              

L K Jhunjhunwala
Chairman

CA. Rajesh Jhalani
Partner
M.No.74809

Place: Lucknow
Date: 28.05.2015

S. C. Agarwal          
Executive Director       

A K Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Rajeev Kumar
Company  Secretary



Notice To Shareholders
Notice is hereby given that the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
the K. M. Sugar Mills Ltd. will be held at its Registered Office of Personnel) Rules 2014, the  consent of the Company be and is 
the Company at 11- Moti Bhawan, Collector Ganj, Kanpur- hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Shri L K 
208001, on Saturday  the 19th day of September,2015 at 11:00 Jhunjhunwala, ( DIN -01854647 )  as Whole time Director, 
AM to transact the following business: designated as Chairman of the Company, who has attained the 

age of 70 years,  w.e.f. 01.03.2015 for a further period of 5 (five) 
years at payment of existing remuneration with a liberty to the ORDINARY BUSINESSES:
Board of Directors( “The Board ”) to alter and vary the terms and 1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone 
conditions of the appointment and remuneration in such a financial statements of the Company including the 
manner as may be permitted by in accordance with the balance sheet as at March 31, 2015, profit and loss 
provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and Schedule V or any account, the cash flow statement for the year ended on 
modification thereto and as may be agreed to by an between the that date, report of Board of Directors and auditors 
Board and Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala.”thereon and the audited consolidated financial 
“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the statements of the Company including auditor's report.
Company be and hereby authorized to do, perform and execute 2. To appoint a director in place of Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala, 
all such acts, deeds and things and to settle all question arising who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself 
out of incidental thereto, and to give such directions as may be for re-appointment.
necessary or arise in regard to or in connection with any such 3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Shri Aditya 
matter as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem fit to give effect Jhunjhunwala, who retires by rotation and being eligible 
to this resolution.” offers himself for re-appointment.

6. To approve appointment  of Shri Aditya  Jhunjhunwala ( DIN : 4. To appoint M/s. Mehrotra & Mehrotra, Chartered 
01686189) as a Whole Time- Director designated as Chairman Accountants, New Delhi, retiring Auditors at this Annual 
of the Company and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, General Meeting and are eligible for re- appointment for 
to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:-the year 2015-16 and fix their remuneration. 
“ RESOLVED THAT  the pursuant to the provisions of the    “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 196, 197,198, 203, read with the Schedule V of the Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
Companies Act 2013 and other applicable provisions ,if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
for the time being in force) and  the Companies (Appointment statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the  time being in force), M/s. Mehrotra & Mehrotra, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No 00226C), 
appointment of Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala, ( DIN -01686189 )  as who have confirmed their eligibility to be appointed as 
Managing Director of the Company, w.e.f. 01.03.2015 for a Auditors in terms of the provisions of Section 141 of the 
further period of 5 (five) years at payment of existing Act and the relevant Rules and have offered themselves 
remuneration with a liberty to the Board of Directors( “The Board for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as 
”) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the appointment statutory Auditors of the Company till the conclusion of 
and remuneration in such a manner as may be permitted by in 44th Annual general meeting of the Company, on such 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and remuneration plus service tax, out-of-pocket, travelling 
Schedule V or any modification thereto and as may be agreed to and living expenses, etc., as may be mutually agreed 
by an between the Board and Shri Aditya  Jhunjhunwala.”between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 
“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the said Auditors.”
Company be and hereby authorized to do, perform and execute “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
all such acts, deeds and things and to settle all question arising the Company (including its Committee thereof), be and 
out of incidental thereto, and to give such directions as may be is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
necessary or arise in regard to or in connection with any such and things as may be considered necessary, desirable 
matter as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem fit to give effect or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”
to this resolution.” SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

7. To  approve appointment  of Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala ( DIN : 5. To approve appointment  of Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala 
01777954) as Joint Managing Director of the Company and in (DIN : 01854647) as a Whole Time - Director designated 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following as Chairman of the Company and in this regard, to 
resolution as a Special Resolution:-consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
“ RESOLVED THAT  the pursuant to the provisions of the resolution as a Special Resolution:-
Section 196, 197,198, 203, read with the Schedule V of the “ RESOLVED THAT  the pursuant to the provisions of 
Companies Act 2013 and other applicable provisions ,if any, the Section 196, 197,198, 203, read with the Schedule V 
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, of the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable 
for the time being in force) and  the Companies (Appointment provisions ,if any, (including any statutory modification 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the  or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and  

K M SUGAR MILLS LIMITED 
Regd. Office: 11 MOTI BHAWAN, COLLECTOR GANJ,   KANPUR, Uttar Pradesh - 208001

CIN: L15421UP1971PLC003492; Website: www.kmsugar.com
E-mail:  kmsugar@gmail.com Phone: 0512-2310762;  0522-4079561



consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to Mr. H.P. SInghania (DIN: 00141096), who was appointed as an 
the re-appointment of Shri Sanjay  Jhunjhunwala, ( DIN - Independent Director, subject to approval of shareholders in the 
01777954)  as Joint Managing Director of the Company, general meeting and is not liable to retire by rotation and in 
w.e.f. 01.03.2015 for a further period of 5 (five) years at respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing 
payment of existing remuneration with a liberty to the under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member 
Board of Directors( “The Board ”) to alter and vary the proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is 
terms and conditions of the appointment and hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to 
remuneration in such a manner as may be permitted by hold office for five years from date of his appointment.”
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 
Act,2013 and Schedule V or any modification thereto Company (including its Committee thereof), be and is hereby 
and as may be agreed to by an between the Board and authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 
Shri Sanjay  Jhunjhunwala.” be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to 
“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of this Resolution.”
the Company be and hereby authorized to do, perform 10. APPOINTMENT OF MR. S.K. GUPTA ( DIN  01995658) AS AN 
and execute all such acts, deeds and things and to settle INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
all question arising out of incidental thereto, and to give To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
such directions as may be necessary or arise in regard modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
to or in connection with any such matter as it may, in its resolution:- 
absolute discretion, deem fit to give effect to this “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 
resolution.” 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of 

8. To approve appointment  of Shri Subhash Chandra the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Agarwal , ( DIN -02461954 )  as Executive Director of the Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
Company and in this regard, to consider and if thought modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special force) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Mr. S.K. Gupta 
Resolution:- (DIN: 01995658), who was appointed as an Independent 
“RESOLVED THAT  the pursuant to the provisions of the Director, subject to approval of shareholders in the general 
Section 196, 197,198, 203, read with the Schedule V of meeting and is not liable to retire by rotation and in respect of 
the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable provisions whom the Company has received a notice in writing under 
,if any, (including any statutory modification or re- Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member 
enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and  the proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to 
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the  consent of the hold office for five years from date of his appointment.”
Company be and is hereby accorded to the re- RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 
appointment of Shri Subhash Chandra Agarwal , ( DIN - Company (including its Committee thereof), be and is hereby 
02461954 ) as Executive  Director of the Company, authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 
w.e.f. 01.03.2015 for a further period of 5 (five) years at be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to 
payment of existing remuneration with a liberty to the this Resolution.”
Board of Directors( “The Board ”) to alter and vary the 11. APPOINTMENT OF Dr. KIRTI SINGH  ( DIN  02482624) AS AN 
terms and conditions of the appointment and INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
remuneration in such a manner as may be permitted by To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Act,2013 and Schedule V or any modification thereto resolution:- 
and as may be agreed to by an between the Board and “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 
Shri Subhash Chandra Agarwal.” 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of 
“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
the Company be and hereby authorized to do, perform Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
and execute all such acts, deeds and things and to settle modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
all question arising out of incidental thereto, and to give force) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Dr. Kirti SIngh 
such directions as may be necessary or arise in regard (DIN: 02482624), who was appointed as an Independent 
to or in connection with any such matter as it may, in its Director, subject to approval of shareholders in the general 
absolute discretion, deem fit to give effect to this meeting and is not liable to retire by rotation and in respect of 
resolution.” whom the Company has received a notice in writing under 

9. APPOINTMENT OF MR. H.P.  SIGHANIA ( DIN  Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member 
00141096) AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary hold office for five years from date of his appointment.”
resolution:- “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Company (including its Committee thereof), be and is hereby 
Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to 
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of this Resolution.”
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 12. APPOINTMENT OF MR. R.S. SHUKLA  ( DIN  0260428) AS AN 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
being in force) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 



modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Companies Act,2013 and rule made thereunder (including any 
resolution:- statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time 

being in force), the remuneration as approved by the Board on “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee be paid to M/s. Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other 
Aman Malviya & Associates, Cost Accountants, Lucknow for applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
conducting cost audit of the Company for the financial year the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
2015-16 be and is hereby approved.”Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time 16. To adopt new Articles of Association of the company containing 
being in force) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, regulations in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 and in 
Mr. R.S. Shukla  (DIN: 0260428), who was appointed as this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
an Independent Director, subject to approval of modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
shareholders in the general meeting and is not liable to “RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 14 and all other 
retire by rotation and in respect of whom the Company applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing his modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in 
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby force), the draft regulations contained in the Articles of 
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company Association submitted to this meeting be and are hereby 
to hold office for five years from date of his appointment.” approved and adopted in substitution and to the total exclusion 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of of the regulations contained in the existing Articles of 
the Company (including its Committee thereof), be and Association of the Company; 
is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters “RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the 
and things as may be considered necessary, desirable company (which term shall include any Committee constituted 
or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board to 

13. To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without exercise the powers conferred on the Board by this resolution) 
modification/(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary be and are hereby authorized to take all such actions or steps as 
Resolution :- may be necessary, desirable or expedient and do all such 

necessary acts, deeds and things that may be incidental or “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
relevant to give effect to this resolution.”Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 17.  To approve Borrowing limits of the Company and to consider 
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the 
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time “RESOLVED that in supersession of the resolution passed 
being in force) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, under Section 293(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 at the 
Mrs. Madhu Mathur (DIN no. 07196895), who was Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 8th 
appointed as a Women Independent Director, subject to March,2010 and pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and other 
approval of shareholders in the general meeting and is applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, as 
not liable to retire by rotation and in respect of whom the amended from time to time, the consent of the Company be and 
Company has received a notice in writing under Section is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall include 
proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be any committee thereof for the time being exercising the powers 
and is hereby appointed as an women Independent conferred on the Board by this Resolution) for borrowing from 
Director of the Company to hold office for five years from time to time, any sum or sums of monies, which together with the 
date of her appointment.” monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from the Company's 
the Company (including its Committee thereof), be and bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed the 
is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company and its free 
and things as may be considered necessary, desirable reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific 
or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” purpose, provided that the total outstanding amount so 

borrowed shall not at any time exceed the limit of Rs. 700.00 14. To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without 
crores.” modification/(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution :- “RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby 
authorized and empowered to arrange or settle the terms and “ RESOLOVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
conditions on which all such monies are to be borrowed from section 149, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
time to time as to interest, repayment, security or otherwise of the Companies Act, 2013 and also terms and 
howsoever as it may think fit and to do all such acts, deeds and conditions of  Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) 
things, to execute all such documents, instruments and writings Agreement with the Banks,  Mr. Anil Kumar Misra (DIN :- 
as may be required.” 07213630) who was appointed as Nominee Director by 

the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby 18.  To creation of Charges on the assets of the Company and to 
regularized as Nominee Director.  consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, 

the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 15.  To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without 
modification/(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary “RESOLVED that in supersession of the resolution passed 
Resolution :- under Section 293(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956, at the 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on June “ RESOLVED THAT  pursuant to the Provisions of 
20, 2011 and pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable section 148 and other applicable provisions if any of the 



provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, as functional expertise of the directors proposed for reappointment 
amended from time to time, the consent of the Company is annexed.The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to 
be and is hereby accorded to the creation by the Board Section 102 of the companies Act, 2013, in respect of Special 
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as Business is annexed.
the “Board” which term shall include any committee 4. The register of Members and share transfer books of the 
thereof for the time being exercising the powers Company will remain closed from 14th Sept.,2015  to 19th 
conferred on the Board by this Resolution) of such September,2015 (both days inclusive).
mortgages, charges and hypothecations as may be 5. Shareholders are requested to intimate to the Company or to the 
necessary on such of the assets of the Company, both Share Transfer Agent of the Company, M/s. Link Intime (India) 
present and future, in such manner as the Board / Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as In Time Spectrum Registry Ltd), 
Committee of the Board may direct, together with power change if any, in their registered addresses.
to take over the management of the Company in certain 6. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Report and 
events, to or in favour of financial institutions, Accounts to the meeting.
investment institutions and their subsidiaries, banks, 7. Members who require any information about the accounts to be 
mutual funds, trusts, other bodies corporate (hereinafter explained in the meeting are requested to inform the Company 
referred to as the "Lending Agencies") and Trustees for about the intended query at least seven days in advance of the 
the holders of debentures/ bonds and/or other meeting.
instruments which may be issued on private placement 8. The copy of annual report, notice of general meeting, notice of e-
basis or otherwise, to secure rupee term loans/foreign voting, etc. are being sent to the members through e-mail who 
currency loans, debentures, bonds and other have registered their email ids with their depository participant 
instruments of an outstanding aggregate value not (DPs) / Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA). 
exceeding Rs. 700.00 crores together with interest 9. Members are requested to update their preferred e-mail ids with 
thereon at the agreed rates, further interest, liquidated the Company / DPs / RTA, which will be used for the purpose of 
damages, premium on pre-payment or on redemption, future communications.
costs, charges, expenses and all other moneys payable 10. Members whose e-mail id is not registered with the Company 
by the Company to the Trustees under the Trust Deed will be sent physical copies of Annual Report, notice of e-voting 
and to the Lending Agencies under their respective etc. at their registered address through permitted mode. 
Agreements / Loan Agreements / Debenture Trust 11. Annual Reports will also be available in the Financials section 
Deeds entered / to be entered into by the Company in on the website of the Company at www.kmsugar.com.
respect of the said borrowings.” 12. Members are requested to opt for electronic mode of 
“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby communication and support the Green initiatives of the 
authorized to finalize with the Lending Agencies / Government. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 
Trustees, the documents for creating the aforesaid 2013, the Company provides e-voting facility to the members to 
mortgages, charges and/or hypothecations and to exercise their voting right. The process and manner of voting 
accept any modifications to, or to modify, alter or vary, containing detailed instructions is given below in point no.12.
the terms and conditions of the aforesaid documents 13.    Voting through electronic means 
and to do all such acts and things and to execute all such I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies 
documents as may be necessary for giving effect to this Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Resolution.” Administration) Rules, 2014 and as amended from time to time 

and Clause 35B of the Equity Listing Agreement, the Company 
By order of the Board is pleased to provide to the members the facility to exercise their 

For K. M. Sugar Mills Ltd. right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 
42nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and 

Rajeev Kumar the business may be transacted through e-voting services. The 
Company Secretary facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic 

Place: Lucknow voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM 
Dated: 11.08.2015 (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by Central Depository 

Services Limited (CDSL). 
Notes: The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting 

meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend and who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to 
vote instead of him. The proxy need not be member of exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. 
the company. Proxy to be valid shall be deposited with The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior 
company not later than 48 hours before the time for to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to 
holding the meeting. cast their vote again. 

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not The remote e-voting period commences on 15th 
exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not more than September,2015 (9:00 am) and ends on 18th September,2015 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company (5:00 pm). During this period members' of the Company, holding 
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 
percent of the total share capital of the Company the cut-off date of 12th September, 2015, may cast their vote by 
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled 
proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is 
other person or shareholder.As per the Listing cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change 
Agreement with stock Exchanges, the brief resume, it subsequently.



else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly 
The instructions for Voting through electronic means are as modify your vote.

under: xiv. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not 
i. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website be allowed to modify your vote.

www.evotingindia.com. xv. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking 
ii. Click on Shareholders. on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
iii. Now Enter your User ID xvi. If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password 
a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click 
b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 

ID, system.
c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter xvii. Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Folio Number registered with the Company. ❏ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, 
iv. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to 

on Login. www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as 
v. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged Corporates.

on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier ❏ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp 
voting of any company, then your existing password is to and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
be used. helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

vi. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: ❏ After receiving the login details a compliance user should 
For Members holding shares in Demat Form and be created using the admin login and password. The 
Physical Form Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for 

which they wish to vote on.PAN: Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by 
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat ❏ The l i s t  o f  accoun ts  shou ld  be  ma i led  to  
shareholders as well as physical shareholders) helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote. Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the ❏ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 
sequence number which is provided through separate letter Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
attached with Annual report . Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the 

system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.Dividend Bank Details OR Date of Birth (DOB) Enter the 
Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

xviii. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become recorded in your demat account or in the company records in 
Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding order to login.
shares as on the cut-off date i.e. may follow the same If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
instructions as mentioned above for e-Voting.company please enter the member id / folio number in the 

xix. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-vii. After entering these details appropriately, click on 
voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help “SUBMIT” tab.
section or write an email to viii. Members holding shares in physical form will then 

xx. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to members holding shares in demat form will now reach 
vote again at the AGM. 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to 

xxi.  A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or mandatorily enter their login password in the new 
in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the password field. Kindly note that this password is to be 
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions 
the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
through ballot paper.provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 

xxii. Mr. Amit Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary, Lucknow, platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
(Membership No. FCS 5478 CP No. 4682) has been appointed password with any other person and take utmost care to 
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting keep your password confidential.
process in a fair and transparent manner. ix. For Members holding shares in physical form, the 

xxiii. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the contained in this Notice.
assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “remote e-voting” or “Ballot x. Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name ie. K 
Paper” or “Poling Paper” for all those members who are present M Sugar Mills Limited on which you choose to vote.
at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote xi. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
e-voting facility.DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

xxiv. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 
meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Resolution.
Company and shall make, not later than three days of the xii. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the view the entire Resolution details.
total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a xiii. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote 
person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com



The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala- Managing Director,  Shri Sanjay 
shall be placed on the website of the Company Jhunjhunwala- Joint Managing Director,  and Shri S.C. Agarwal  
www.kmsugar.com  and on the website of CDSL Executive Director cum C.E.O.   were appointed  in the Board Meeting  
www.evotingindia.com immediately after the declaration of of the Company held on 14-02-2015. 
result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. In view of their  rich and vast experience in the Sugar Industry and their  
The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the Stock involvement in the overall operation of the Company, it would be in the 
Exchanges viz. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of interest of the Company to continue them as Whole Time  Directors  in 
India Limited. employment.  Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala has attained the age of 70 years. 
         The   continuation of their  employment as WholeTime-Director require 

By the Order of the Board the approval of the members by passing a Special Resolution u/s 196 (3) 
of the Act and part I of Schedule V.For K. M. Sugar Mills Ltd.
Brief resume of Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala,  Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala,  Shri 

Rajeev Kumar Sanjay Jhunjhunwala,  and Shri S.C. Agarwal,  nature of expertise in 
Company Secretary functional area, name of the companies in which he holds directorships, 

Place: Lucknow                                m   e  m   b  e  r s  h  i p  ,   c  h  a  ir  m   a  n  s h  i p  s    o  f  Board of Committees, shareholding and 
relationship between directorship inter-se as stipulated  under Clause Dated: 11-08-2015
49 of Listing Agreement with Stock Exchnage(s) are provided in the ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 
On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND CLAUSE 49 OF THE 
Committee, the Board, at its meeting held on 14.02.2015 approved the LISTING AGREEMENT
remuneration and perquisites payable to them, subject to the approval Item no. 5,6,7,8
of the shareholders.Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala- Chairman  cum- Whole Time Director,  

Name

 

Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala

 

Shri Aditya  Jhunjhunwala

 

Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala

 

Shri S.C. Agrawal

 

Basic Salary

 

Rs. 3,00,000/-

 

Rs. 1,50,000/-

 

Rs. 1,50,000/-

 

Rs. 1,50,000/-

 

House

 

Free Furnished House

 

Free Furnished House

 

Free Furnished House

 

Free Furnished House, 
but the cost of furniture 
shall not exceed
Rs.50,000/-.

 

Medical Reiumb.

 

Actual-

 

India/ Abroad

 

Actual -

 

India/ Abroad

 

Actual-

 

India/ Abroad

 

One month salary in a 
year or three months 
salary in a bloc k of 3 years

 

Leave Travel Concession

 

Travelling, lodging,
Boarding, convy., others -

 

self & family -

 

in India or 
Abroad

 

Travelling, lodging,
Boarding, convy., others -

 

self & family -in India or 
Abroad

 

Travelling, lodging,
Boarding, convy., others -

 

self & fa mily-

 

in India or 
Abroad

 

Once in two years for self 
& family as per
Company’s rules

 

Conveyance

 

Two Chauffeur driven cars 
for self and family 

 

Two Chauffeur driven cars 
for self and family 

 

Two Chauffeur driven cars 
for self and family 

 

Cars with driver for self 
and family 

 

Club Fees

 

Membership of club in 
India, Abroad -

 

admission 
and lifetime

 

Membership of club in 
India, Abroad -

 

admission 
and lifetime

 

Membership of club in 
India, Abroad-

 

admission 
and lifetime

 

 

 

Co.’s cont. to PF

 

As per company’s rules 
subject to 12% of salary

 

As per company’s rules 
subject to 12% of salary

 

As per company’s rules 
subject to 12% of salary

 

As per company’s rules 
subject to 12% of salary

 

Co.’s cont. Pension

 

As per company’s rules 
together with PF and to 
such amount not taxab le 
under I.Tax

 

As per company’s rules 
together with PF and to 
such amount not taxable 
under I.Tax

 

As per company’s rules 
together with PF and to 
such amount not taxable 
under I.Tax

 

As per company’s rules 
together with PF and to 
such amount not taxable 
under I.Tax

 

Gratuity

 

As per company’s rules 
but not exceed ½ month 
salary on each completed 
years

 

As per company’s rules 
but not exceed ½ month 
salary on each completed 
years

 

As per company’s rules 
but not exceed ½ month 
salary on each completed 
years

 

As per company’s rules 
but not exceed ½ month 
salary on each completed 
years

 

Encashment of leave

 

At the end of tenure will 
not be included in 
computation of the ceiling 
of perquisites

 

At the end of tenure will 
not be included in 
computation of the ceiling 
of perquisites

 

At the end of tenure will 
not be included in 
computation of the ceiling 
of perquisites

 

At the end of tenure will 
not be included in 
computation of the ceiling 
of perquisites

 

Leave

 

Encashment of one full 
month pay for every 
11months of salary

 

Enca shment of one full 
month pay for every 
11months of salary

 

Encashment of one full 
month pay for every 
11months of salary

 

Encashment of one full 
month pay for every 
11months of salary

 

Travelling

 

Co.’s car / reimbursement 
of travelling  / other exp.

 

Co.’s ca r / reimbursement 
of travelling  / other exp.

 

Co.’s car / reimbursement 
of travelling  / other exp.

 

Co.’s car / reimbursement 
of travelling  / other exp.

 

Telephone

 

Payment of telephone 
(with STD) at residence / 
mobile cell phone bills 
shall not reckoned a s 
perquisites  

Payment of telephone 
(with STD) at residence / 
mobile cell phone bills 
shall not reckoned as 
perquisites  

Payment of telephone 
(with STD) at residence / 
mobile cell phone bills 
shall not reckoned as 
perquisites  

Payment of telephone 
(with

 

STD) at residence / 
mobile cell phone bills 
shall not reckoned as 
perquisites  

Other perks As applicable to other 
senior management. In 
case , the company does 
not have profit or profit are 
inadequate, he will be 
entitled such perks as per 
limit specified above as 
well as Schedule -V

As applicable to other 
senior management. In 
case , the company does 
not have profit or profit are 
inadequate, he will be 
entitled such perks as per 
limit specified above as 
well as Schedule -V

As applicable to other 
senior management. In 
case , the company does 
not have profit or profit are 
inadequate, he will be 
entitled such perks as per 
limit specified above as 
well as Schedule-V

As applicable to other 
senior management. In 
case , the company does 
not have profit or profit are 
inadequate, he will be 
entitled such perks as per 
limit specified above as 
well as Schedule -V

1. REMUNERATION APPROVED  BY THE BOARD  :-

The particulars relating to the remuneration and perquisites of Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala,  Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala,  
Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala,  and Shri S.C. Agarwal are as follows: 



Except they themselves, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company  or their relatives are concerned or interested 
financially or otherwise in this resolution. 
The Board  recommends resolution set out in item no. 5,6,7 and 8, of the notice for approval and ratification  to the members as a special 
Resolution.
Information required under Section II, Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (in respect of business proposed at item no. 5, 6, 
7 & 8):



Register pursuant to section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013 is Sugar Mills Association, East U.P. Sugar Mills Association and U.P. 
open for inspection to any member without payment of any fee at the ASSOCHEM.
office hours at the registered office of the Company.
Mr. L.K. Jhunjhunwala, Mr. Aditya Jhunjhunwala, Mr. Sanjay Profile: Shri  Aditya Jhunjhunwala   
Jhunjhunwala and Mr. S.C. Agarwal are interested and concerned in Shri Aditya Jhunjhunwala, aged 45 years is the eldest son of Mr. L.K. 
the said resolution. No other directors or Key Managerial Personnel Jhunjhunwala and elder brother of Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala. He is 
or their respective relatives are in any way concerned or interested Commerce graduate  and has about 22 years  of business experience 
in said resolution. mainly in Sugar and Distillery Industries. He is looking after the over all 
In compliance with the requirement of section 196 and 197 and other operations of the Company. He is also actively associated with various 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with industry organizations i.e. IMSA, UPSMA, FICCCI. He was the 
Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of president of East U.P. Sugar Mills Association, chairman of Eastern 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the approval of the members is Zone ( Nothern Region) of CII and also ex-president of Indian Small 
sought for terms of appointment and remuneration of Mr. L.K. Hydro Power Association. 
Jhunjhunwala, Mr. Aditya Jhunjhunwala, Mr. Sanjay Jhunjhunwala 
and Mr. S.C. Agarwal as set out above. Profile: Shri  Sanjay Jhunjhunwala   
Where in any financial year, the company has no profits or its profits Shri Sanjay Jhunjhunwala, aged 40 years is the younger son of Mr. L.K. 
are inadequate, the remuneration shall be paid as per Section II of Jhunjhunwala and younger brother of Shri Aditya  Jhunjhunwala. He is 
Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.  Commerce graduate , MBA from University of Wales, U.K.  and has 

about 18 years  of business experience mainly in Sugar Industry and 
The Resolution regarding the terms of appointment and successfully and implemented modern management techniques in the 
remuneration of Mr. L.K. Jhunjhunwala, Mr. Aditya Jhunjhunwala, Company, which have proved immensely beneficial to the Company. He 
Mr. Sanjay Jhunjhunwala and Mr. S.C. Agarwal at Item No. 5, 6, 7 is looking after the over all operations of the Company specifically 
and 8 is recommended for approval by the Members as special taxation, corporate and other laws. He is also actively associated with 
resolution. industry organizations i.e. U.P. Chapter of E.O..

Profile: Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala Profile: Shri  S.C. Agarwal 
Shri L.K. Jhunjhunwala, aged 73 years is an Arts Graduate and has Shri S.C. Agarwal, aged 55 years and  is Executive Director ( Non-
about 54 years of experience in Sugar Industry. He has been related) of the Company. He is Science  graduate from NSI and has 
Associated with the Company since inception  as promoter and has about 38 years  of business experience mainly in Sugar Technology. He 
been actively managing the affairs of the Company. He is also is looking after the over all day to day operations of the Company and 
associated with various Industry Associations i.e. FICCI, actively involved in the  production of the Sugar, Power and RS.
ASSOCEHM, ISMA, UPSMA etc. He was the president of U.P. 

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 IV (G) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT REGARDING 
APPOINTMENT OF A NEW DIRECTOR OR RE-APPOINTMENT OF A DIRECTOR.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item no. 9,10,11,12, 13 (0.00%) equity shares in the Company.
Mrs. Madhu Mathur, was  appointed as an Independent 
Directors  of the Company by the Board in their meetings held on Profile:  Dr. Kirti Singh
28-05-2015  and Mr. H.P. Singhania, Mr. S.K. Gupta, Dr. Kirti Dr. Kirti Singh is M.Sc. and Doctorate in Horticulture from University of 
Singh and Mr. R.S. Shukla were  appointed as an Independent Florida, USA. He has vast experience in Agriculture Sector and was 
Directors  of the Company by the Board in their meetings held on Vice-Chancellor of Narendra Dev University of Agriculture and 
11-08-2015 respectively, subject to approval of the shareholders Technology, Faizabad and Director of PUSA Institute New Delhi. 
of the Company. Presently, he is on the Board of the Company and provides critical 
In terms of Section 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and suggestions on technical matters. He holds nil (0.00%) equity shares in 
any other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, the Company.
2013 and rules made thereunder and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, it is proposed that the above Directors be appointed Profile:  Mr. R.S. Shukla 
as Independent Directors for a term of five consecutive years Mr. R.S. Shukla is B.Sc. in Engg.  and  also a Fellow Chartered Engineer 
from the original date of appointment. Further the appointment from the Institute of Engineering. He is also Fellow of Sugar 
of Independent director is also required to be approved by Technologies of India. Being a Technocrat, he has been involved in 
shareholders in general meeting. Sugar Indsutry since 1980 and acting as Technical Advisor of many 
In terms of the aforesaid provisions, the Independent Directors sugar industries / projects at Trinidad, Tobago, West Indies.   Presently, 
shall not be liable to retire by rotation. The Company has he is on the Board of the Company and provides critical suggestions on 
received notices under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 technical matters, which are beneficial to the Company. He holds nil 
from members proposing, appointment of the above referred (0.00%) equity shares in the Company.
directors along with the prescribed deposit of Rs. 100,000/- for 
each director. Profile: Mrs. Madhu Mathur
Aforementioned Independent Directors have confirmed that Mrs. Madhu Mathur has a vast experience of working with UNO and 
they are not disqualified in terms of Section 164 of the expert in Social Service. Presently, she is on the Board of the Company 
Companies Act, 2013 and each such directors has given his / her and provides critical suggestions on Corporate Social Responsibility 
consent to act as Director of the Company. matters, which are beneficial to the Company. She holds nil (0.00%) 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors proposed equity shares in the Company. Her guidance and suggestions shall be in 
to be appointed, fulfill all the conditions specified in the the interest of the Company to carry out the CSR.  
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and are 
independent of the management. Item no. 14
Copies of the draft letters for appointment of the Independent 
Directors setting out the terms and conditions are available for Profile : Mr. A. K. Mishra
inspection by members at the Registered Office of the Mr. A. K. Mishra was appointed as the Nominee Director of the Company 
Company. in the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on 28- 05-
The Board considers that their continued association would be 2015, pursuant to Clause 41 of Annexure 1 of CDR  letter of approval 
of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to dated 27-03-2012 in place of Mr. P.N. Mathur. Mr. A. K. . Mishra is Circle 
continue to avail their services. Head, Punjab  National Bank, Lucknow Circle and has a vast 
Except the Directors themselves, none of the other Directors or experience in Banking services. His guidance and suggestions shall be 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in the interest of the Company.  If his appointment as Director is 
concerned or interested financially or otherwise in this confirmed by the Shareholders in the General Meeting, it would be 
resolution. The Board  recommends resolution set out in item beneficial to the Company. The Company has received notices under 
no. 9,10,11,12 and 13 of the notice for approval and ratification  Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from members proposing, 
to the members as an Ordinary Resolution. appointment of the above referred directors along with the prescribed 
In compliance of Clause 49 of the listing Agreement, brief deposit of Rs. 100,000/- for each director.
profiles of the said Independent Directors are set out hereunder Except Mr. A.K. Mishra, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial 
and detailed profile are available on company's website Personnel of the Company  or their relatives are concerned or interested 
www.kmsugar.com. financially or otherwise in this resolution. 

The Board  recommends resolution set out in item no. 14 of the notice for 
Profile: Mr. H.P. SInghania approval and ratification  to the members as an Ordinary Resolution.
Mr. H.P. SInghania was a Board Member of Bank of India, Ex-
Vice President of Board of Cricket Control of India (BCCI), Item no. 15
Marylbone Cricket Club (MCC) Lords, London and in various The Board of Directors approved the appointment of M/s.  Aman Malviya 
companies of J.K. Group. Presently, he is on the Board of the 

& Associates, Cost Accountants, Lucknow, as a Cost Auditor of the 
Company and provides suggestions on commercial matters. He 

Company for conducting cost audit for the financial year 2015-16 in the is also on the Board of Sir Shadi Lal Distillery Limited. He holds 
meeting  held on 28- 05-2015 at the remuneration be decided the by the nil (0.00%) equity shares in the Company.
Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. Pursuant the 
provision of section 148 other applicable provisions if any of the Profile:  Mr. S.K. Gupta  
Companies Act, 2013 and rule made thereunder ( including any Mr. S.K. Gupta  is M.Sc. in Sugar Technology from ANSI  and 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in DIM from IGNOU. He served as Directr  at National Sugar 
force), the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified Institute, Kanpur, Ministry of Food & Public Admistriation, New 
by the members of the Company.Delhi, and U.P. State Sugar Corporation. He also acted  as an 
The Board recommends resolution set out in item no. 15 of the notice for expert Advisor for the Study of Status of Sugar Status and 

suggested road map for it development. He was also awarded approval and ratification  to the members as an Ordinary Resolution.
LIFE TIME ACHIEVMENT AWARD by The Sugar Technologists None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Association of India.  Presently, he is on the Board of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested financially or 
Company and provides critical suggestions on technical otherwise in this resolution. 
matters, which are beneficial to the Company. He holds nil 



Item No.16   Articles of Association
The Articles of Association of the Company as currently in force were adopted at Extra-ordinary general meeting of the Company held on 
31.03.2005. The present articles are based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (as amended from time to time).  
Considering that substantive sections of the Companies Act, 2013 which deal with the general working of the companies stand notified, it is 
proposed to amend the existing Articles of Association to align it with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 including the Rules framed 
thereunder and adoption of specific sections from Table “F” to Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 which sets out the model articles of 
association for a company limited by shares.
While some of the Articles of the existing Articles of Association of the Company require alteration or deletions, material changes that are 
proposed in the new draft Articles of Association are given below for ease of reference to shareholders.



The proposed new draft Articles of Association is being certain events. Under Section 180 of the Act, the above powers of the 
uploaded short ly  on the Company's websi te at  Board are required to be exercised only with the consent of the company 
www.kmsugar.com for perusal by the shareholders. by a Special Resolution. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has 

vide its General Circular No 4/2014 dated March 25, 2014 clarified that No Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or 
the Ordinary Resolutions passed under Sections 293(1)(a) and their relatives are concerned or interested financially or 
293(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 would be sufficient compliance of otherwise in this item of business. 
Section 180 of the Act until September 11, 2014. The approval of the The Board commends the Special Resolution set out in Item 
Members for the said borrowings and creation of a mortgage or charge No.16 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.
for the said borrowing is therefore now being sought, by way of a Special 
Resolutions, pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and 180(1)(a) of the Act Item Nos. 17 & 18: 
respectively. The Directors commend the Resolutions at Item Nos. 17 At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 8th 
and 18 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the Members of March,2010, the Members had, by way of Ordinary Resolutions 
the Company. and in pursuance of the provisions of Section 293(1)(a) and (d) 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or of the Companies Act, 1956, approved of: (i) borrowing monies 
their respective relatives is concerned or interested in the passing of the on behalf of the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained 
Resolutions at Item Nos. 17 and 18. or to be obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary 

course of business) in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up 
By the Order of the Boardcapital of the Company and its free reserves, subject to the total 

outstanding amount so borrowed not exceeding a sum of Rs. For K. M. Sugar Mills Ltd.
700.00 crore at any point of time; and (ii) creation of a mortgage 
or charge for the said borrowings, as security by way of 
mortgage / hypothecation on the Company's assets in favour of  Rajeev Kumar
lending agencies and trustees for the amounts borrowed i.e. Company Secretary
upto Rs. 700.00 crore, including interest, charges, etc. payable Place: Lucknow
thereon, as the documents for the said purpose could contain Dated: 11.08.2015                               
the power to take over the management of the Company, in 










